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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

M  Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2010
or
O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(dpf
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File No. 001-09195

KB HOME

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 95-3666267
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

10990 Wilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California @024
(Address of principal executive offices)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code{310) 231-4000

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tfe Act:

Name of each exchang

Title of each cla: on which registered
Common Stock (par value $1.00 per share) New York Stock Exchangt
Rights to Purchase Series A Participating Cumulatie Preferred Stock New York Stock Exchangt

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405ed#turities
Act. YesM No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the
Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the gaéty 12 months (or for such shorter period thatrtfgistrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) hastsebdject to such filing requirements for the @aksdays.

YesM NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&&b site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to bensittied and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regude&id during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter patiatithe registrant was required to submit and gash files).
YesM NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the beskgistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infoation statements
incorporated by reference in Part Il of this FatK or any amendment to this Form 10-i

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitimif$arge accelerated filer,” “accelerated filefid “smaller
reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchangé. Ac

Large accelerated filer M  Accelerated filer 0  Non-accelerated filer OO0 Smaller reporting company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act).
YesO No

The aggregate market value of voting stock helddny-affiliates of the registrant on May 31, 2010swa
$1,274,932,694, including 11,174,633 shares helihdyegistrant’s grantor stock ownership trust excluding
27,095,467 shares held in treasury.

There were 76,973,096 shares of the registranttenon stock, par value $1.00 per share, outstarating
December 31, 2010. The registrant’s grantor steakesship trust held an additional 11,080,023 shaféise
registrant’s common stock on that date.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Statenent for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
(incorporated into Part I11).
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PART I

Item 1. BUSINESS
General

KB Home is one of the nation’s largest homebuilderd has been building homes for more than 50 y&ées
construct and sell homes through our operatingsitius across the United States under the name KBeHonless
the context indicates otherwise, the terms “the Gamy,” “we,” “our” and “us” used in this report efto KB
Home, a Delaware corporation, and its predecessutsubsidiaries.

Beginning in 1957 and continuing until 1986, ousimess was conducted by various subsidiaries ofriiau
and Broad, Inc. (“KBI") and its predecessors. I889KBI transferred all of its homebuilding and garge banking
operations to us. Shortly after the transfer, wagieted an initial public offering of 8% of our camn stock and
began operating under the name Kaufman and BroateHoorporation. In 1989, we were spun-off from KBI,
which then changed its name to Broad Inc., and @gaime an independent public company, operatingapityrin
California and France. In 2001, we changed our n@anikB Home. Today, having sold our French opereim
2007, we operate a homebuilding and financial ses/business serving homebuyers in markets natignwi

Our homebuilding operations, which are divided ifaor geographically defined segments for reporting
purposes, offer a variety of homes designed prignéoi first-time, move-umnd active adult homebuyers, includ
attached and detached single-family homes, townBamd condominiums. We offer homes in development
communities, at urban in-fill locations and as mdnnixed-use projects. We use the term “home’eferto a single-
family residence, whether it is a single-family hoor other type of residential property, and wethseerm
“community” to refer to a single development in ahihomes are constructed as part of an integrdaed p

Through our homebuilding segments, we delivered@ fBomes at an average selling price of $214,560glu
the year ended November 30, 2010, compared to 8idfes delivered at an average selling price of 321D
during the year ended November 30, 2009. Our hoitukibg operations represent most of our businessyanting
for 99.5% of our total revenues in 2010 and 2009.

Our financial services operations offer title andurance services to our homebuyers. They also mibetgage
banking services to our homebuyers through KBA Mage, LLC (“KBA Mortgage”), a joint venture with a
subsidiary of Bank of America, N.A. Our financi&rgices operations accounted for .5% of our t@aénues in
2010 and 2009.

In 2010, we generated total revenues of $1.5%hiléind a net loss of $69.4 million, compared talt@venues
of $1.82 billion and a net loss of $101.8 milliean2009. Our financial results for 2010 and 200%rfchallenging
operating conditions that have persisted in thedtaniding industry to varying degrees since a gansusing
market downturn began in mid-2006, as well as tnategyic actions since the downturn began to adign
operations with these conditions and to maintastr@ng financial position.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1MY¥Ishire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 900Z4e
telephone number of our corporate headquarteBli3) 231-4000 and our website address is http:dktghcom.
Our Spanish-language website is http://kbcasa.torddition, location and community informatioraigailable at
(888) KB-HOMES.
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Markets

Reflecting the geographic reach of our homebuildinginess, as of the date of this report, our ppaic
operations are in the nine states and 30 majoretmkesented below. For reporting purposes, wanigg our
homebuilding operations into four segments — Westsf, Southwest, Central and Southeast.

Segment State(s) Major Market(s)
West Coast  California Fresno, Los Angeles, Oakland, Orange County, RiderSacramento,
San Bernardino, San Diego, San Jose, Stockton antlixé
Southwes Arizona Phoenix and Tucsc
Nevada Las Vegas and Rer
Central Colorada Denver
Texas Austin, Dallas/Fort Worth, Houston and San Antc
Southeast Florida Daytona Beach, Fort Myers, Jacksonville, Lakelddando, Sarasota and
Tampa
Maryland Washington, D.C
North Caroline  Charlotte and Raleig
Virginia Washington, D.C

Segment Operating Information. The following table presents certain operatirfgrimation for our
homebuilding reporting segments for the years eitacember 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008:

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008

West Coast

Homes delivere: 2,02: 2,45¢ 2,972

Percentage of total homes delive 27% 29% 24%

Average selling pric $346,30( $315,10(  $354,70(

Total revenues (in millions) (i $ 700.7 $ 8122 $1,055.
Southwest

Homes delivere: 1,15( 1,202 2,39:

Percentage of total homes delive 16% 14% 19%

Average selling pric $158,20( $172,000  $229,20(

Total revenues (in millions) (i $ 1877 $ 2181 $ 618.(
Central:

Homes delivere: 2,66: 2,771 3,34¢

Percentage of total homes delive 36% 33% 27%

Average selling pric $163,70(  $155,50(  $175,00(

Total revenues (in millions) (i $ 436.4 $ 434¢ $ 594.:
Southeast

Homes deliverei 1,51(C 2,06z 3,72%

Percentage of total homes delive 21% 24% 30%

Average selling pric $170,20( $168,60( $201,80(

Total revenues (in millions) (: $ 257.C $ 3517 $ 755.¢
Total:

Homes delivere: 7,34¢ 8,48¢ 12,43¢

Average selling pric $214,50( $207,10C  $236,40(

Total revenues (in millions) (i $1,581.¢ $1,816.« $3,023.

(a) Total revenues include revenues from housing and $ales

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures. The above table does not include homes delivieosd unconsolidated joint
ventures in which we participate. These unconstdiifoint ventures acquire and develop land andpime cases,
build and deliver homes on developed land. Our nsclidated joint ventures delivered 102 homes ib02041
homes in 2009 and 262 homes in 2008.
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Strategy

To varying degrees since mid-2006, many housingetamcross the United States, including thoseemees
have experienced a prolonged downturn comparetketpériod from 2000 through 2005 due to a perdisten
oversupply of homes available for sale and wealsgorer demand for housing. Since 2008, a generadly p
economic and employment environment as well asutarize in financial and credit markets have wordghese
conditions. Although housing affordability has bedhistorically high levels in the past few yedue to lower
selling prices and relatively low residential com&r mortgage interest rates, the negative supmglydamand
dynamics for the homebuilding industry during tlhesent housing downturn have severely constrainedet
orders, revenues and profitability.

We believe housing markets will likely remain weak011 and that our business and the homebuilding
industry will experience uneven results before stained recovery takes hold. At this time, we capmedict when
such a recovery might occur. Based on this viewintend to continue to focus on achieving threenpriy
integrated strategic goals:

« restoring and maintaining the profitability of dusmebuilding operation:
« generating cash and maintaining a strong balareetsanc
 positioning our business to capitalize on futurewgh opportunities

In pursuing these goals during the period from 20@6 through 2009, we reduced our overhead, invgiatad
active community count levels to better align opex@ations with diminished home sales activity coragao the
peak levels reached in the period from 2000 thra®2@b. Consequently, we exited or reduced our tnvests in
certain markets, sold land positions and interest&ound our participation in certain unconsolidgtEnt ventures,
and experienced a sharp decline in our backloghantes delivered compared to our peak period pegnce
primarily due to decreased demand and because advietwvar community locations from which we sold heme
During this period, we also focused on improving operating efficiencies, investing selectivelyaifew markets
with perceived strong growth prospects, and, asudsed further below, redesigning and re-engingerim product
line to meet consumer demand for more affordabiadsoand to lower our direct construction costsgamkrate
higher margins compared to our previous product.

In 2010, building on the sound financial positionahe operational re-positioning we achieved derprior
four years and seeing a number of attractive oppdnés becoming available, we implemented a tad&ind
acquisition initiative to further our primary stegiic goals. Under this initiative, we concentradadacquiring
ownership or control of well-priced developed lgadcels that met our investment and marketing statsdand
were located within or near our existing marketsisTactical shift was designed to help us restmie maintain our
homebuilding operations’ profitability — currentlgur highest priority —by increasing our future revenues throi
a larger inventory base from which we can sellligher-margin and well-received new product. It \abso
designed to help us maintain a three-to-four yapply of developed or developable land. While tineentory and
active community count reductions and other landfplio and operational adjustments we made inrpy&ars and
into 2010 have had a negative effect on our bac&itjhomes delivered on a year-over-year basigntieipate
that our land investment activities in 2010 ancerg@nd planned new community openings will imprsueh
comparisons in 2011. As a result, we believe thatand acquisition initiative and the other actiame have taken
in pursuing our primary strategic goals in the présousing downturn have established a solid fatiod for us to
eventually achieve long-term future growth and pability as and to the extent housing markets oept

While market conditions in 2011 will determine tihegree to which we acquire or dispose of land asset
managing our inventory, the pace with which we opew home communities, and the manner in which weyg
and refine the execution of our primary integratrdtegic goals, we will continue to operate incadance with the
principles of our core operational business magiBhxt.

KBnxt Operational Business Model. Our KBnxt operational business model, first inmpéted in 1997, seeks
to generate greater operating efficiencies andneain investment through a disciplined, fact-bamed process-
driven approach to homebuilding that is founded@onstant and systematic assessment of consuafereces
and market opportunities. We believe our KBnxt afienal business model sets us apart from otheebaitders.
The key principles of our KBnxt operational busesodel include:

¢ gaining a detailed understanding of consumeation and product preferences through regularessrand
research
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* managing our working capital and reducing @perating risks by acquiring primarily developed @mtitled
land at reasonable prices in markets with high ginguotential, and disposing of land and interestsnd
that no longer meet our investment or marketindg:

« using our knowledge of consumer preferenceteiign, construct and deliver the products hometsuy
desire;

« in general, commencing construction of a home afftigr a purchase contract has been sig

« building a backlog of net orders and minimggthe time from initial construction to final dediry of homes
to customers

 establishing an even flow of production of t-quality homes at the lowest possible cost;

« offering customers affordable base pricestaebpportunity to customize their homes througbia of
location, floor plans and interior design optic

Through its disciplines and standards, our KBnxarafional business model is designed to help ud bad
maintain a leading position in our existing markefgportunistically expand our business into ativecnew market
near our existing operations; exit investments tizalionger meet our return or marketing standasdkhrate our
product designs to consumer preferences; and acloaer costs and economies of scale in acquintg a
developing land, purchasing building materials,cauttracting trade labor, and providing home desiga product
options to customers.

Our expansion into a new market and our withdrdvesth an existing market or submarket depends ih eac
instance on our assessment of the maska#bility and our ability to develop and/or sustaperations at a level tt
meets our investment standards. Similar considersithpply to potential asset acquisitions or digjpos in our
existing markets.

Operational Objectives. Guided by the disciplines of our KBnxt operatibbasiness model, our principal
operational objectives during the present housmgrdurn include:

« Positioning our operations to maintain owngrsir control over a forecasted two-to-four yego@y of
developed or developable land and a balanced ggloigribotprint, while continuously evaluating potieh
growth opportunities in or near our existing mask&e believe this approach enables us to effigient
capitalize on the different rates at which we exp@ising markets to stabilize and recover. In it
keeping our land inventory at what we believe gw@dent and manageable level and in line with aturg
sales expectations maximizes the use of our workapjtal, enhances our liquidity and helps us nadind
strong balance sheet to support strategic investienlon¢-term growth.

¢ Providing the best value and choice in honmesaptions for our core customers — first-time, @ap and
active adult homebuyers. By promoting value andaghthrough an affordable base price and product
customization through options, including many emwinentally conscious options, we believe we starid o
from other homebuilders and sellers of existing srfincluding lender-owned homes acquired through
foreclosures and short sales), and can generaterhigvenues

¢ To help achieve the above objective, enhanttiegaffordability of our homes by redesigning aed
engineering our products, building smaller hometh Wexible layouts, reducing cycle times€. , the time
between the sale of a home and its delivery toradimyer) and lowering our direct construction cadts
making our homes more affordable for our value-canss core homebuyers while lowering our production
costs, we believe we can compete effectively wéless of existing homes (including lender-ownednes
acquired through foreclosures and short saleshwive see as our primary competition, generatenese
while maintaining margins, and drive sustainablaiegs over the long tern

« As a complement to providing the best valug @mice, generating high levels of customer satigin and
producing high-quality homes. We believe achieviigh customer satisfaction levels is key to ougkb@rm
performance, and delivering quality homes is ailtio achieving high customer satisfacti
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¢ Restoring the profitability of our homebuildimperations by continuing to align our cost stutet(including
overhead) with the expected size and growth otbasiness, generating and preserving free cash éod,
maximizing the performance of our invested cap

Exemplifying how we have implemented our strateggid operational objectives is our ongoing natiomwid
rollout of The Open Series ™ product designs, which began in late 2008. In @mtiio meeting homebuyer design
sensibilities and affordability needije Open Series product line has been value-engineered to reduaduption
costs and construction cycle times, while adhetdngur quality standards and using materials amgtcoction
techniques that reflect our commitment to more remvhnentally conscious homebuilding methods.
Value-engineering encompasses measures such dgfysirgghe location and installation of interndumbing and
electrical systems, using prefabricated wall parfidering systems, roof trusses and other buildiomponents, ar
generally employing construction techniques thatimize costs and maximize efficiencies. It alsdudes working
continuously with our trade partners and matesafspliers to reduce direct construction costs amstruction
cycle times. All of these actions have allowedaadhieve faster returns and higher gross margims éur
inventory compared to our previous product desigapporting strong cash flow generation and pregresard ou
profitability goal.

Marketing Srategy. During 2010, we continued to focus our markegffgrts on first-time, move-up and
active adult homebuyers. These homebuyers histiyritave been our core customers and it is amoegetlyroups
that we see the greatest potential for future hsahes. Our marketing efforts are directed at diffiéating the KB
Home brand from resale homes and from homes smdgh foreclosures, short sales and by other hoiidgls.
We believe that our Built to Ordé¥ message and approach generate a high perceivesifealour products and ¢
company among consumers and are unique amongpaogectionhomebuilders. Built to Order emphasizes tha
partner with our homebuyers to create a home tautheir individual preferences in design, lay®efuare footage
and homesite location, and to personalize theiréhaith features and amenities that meet their naadsnterests.
Built to Order serves as the consumer face of emments of our KBnxt operational business modelemsures
that our marketing strategy and advertising camysaage closely aligned with our overall operatidoals.

Our KB Home Studios are integral to the Built tal®rexperience we provide. These showrooms, whieh a
generally located close to our communities, allaw lwomebuyers to select from thousands of produdtdesign
options that are available for purchase as pati@briginal construction of their homes. The cawaitkbd efforts of
our sales representatives and KB Home Studio ctargslare intended to provide high levels of cugiom
satisfaction and lead to enhanced customer reteatid referrals.

My Home. My Earth. ™ We have made a dedicated effort to further diffiéiate ourselves from other
homebuilders and sellers of existing homes thraughongoing commitment to become a leading natiooaipany
in environmental sustainability. This commitmemganized under ouvly Home. My Earth. initiative, stems from
growing sensitivities regarding and regulatory mtiten to the potential impact the construction asd of our home
can have on the environment, including on globarage temperatures and associated climate chamdécan our
homebuyers’ interest in reducing this impact inthest cost-effective way possible. This commitnaab stems
from our primary strategic goal to maintain a strdmalance sheet by minimizing expenses, wasteraffidiencies
in our operations. Through oty Home. My Earth. programs:

« we became the first national homebuilder tmeot to building homes that are designed to mest th
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (“EPA”) ENER STAR® guidelines in all of our communities
opened in 2009 and beyor

» we became the first homebuilder in the coutdrgonstruct homes to meet the EPA’s new WaterSens
specifications in 2010. The ENERGY STAR and Watesgeprograms require that our homes meet high
standards for energy and water efficiency and perdoce, respectively, compared to standard neypical
existing homes

« we became the first national homebuilder tmeut to installing exclusively ENERGY STAR appliaxin
all of our homes in 2008 and beyol

« we re-engineered our products to reduce theuatrof building materials necessary to constraett, as
discussed above with respecfltee Open Series product designs, and have developed or adoptediptiod
methods that help minimize our use of materialstaedyeneration of construct-related debris
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* we became a partner in the EBAVasteWise program in 2010, and have voluntantjeuntaken to reduce t
amount of solid construction waste sent to larglféind

« we have published on our website an annuahsability report since 2007. The report outlines
accomplishments and objectives as we work towandgjoal of minimizing the impact our business and
homes can have on the environment, while contintongake the dream of homeownership attainabletic
homebuyers

In many instances, we have been able to implemarilg Home. My Earth. programs at minimal or no additional
cost to us and to our homebuyers. Along with taedard home designs and amenities we offer pursaanirMy
Home. My Earth . programs, we also offer our homebuyers sevet@mpthrough our KB Home Studios that can
help them to further lower their consumption of gyeand water resources and reduce their utilitg.bAs we see
environmental issues related to housing becomiagasingly important to consumers and governmethioaities a
all levels, we intend to continue to research, @at@ and utilize new or improved products and cantbn and
business practices consistent with the goals oMyurlome. My Earth. programs. In addition to making good
business sense, we believe My Home. My Earth. programs can help put us in a better position, @egpto
homebuilders with less-developed programs, to cgmith evolving local, state and federal rules aggulations
intended to protect natural resources and to agddtesate change and similar environmental concerns

Sales Srategy. To ensure the consistency of our message andeaufgeto our Built to Order approach, sales
of our homes are carried out by in-house teamsaletgepresentatives and other personnel who wardopally
with each homebuyer to create a home that meetsoimebuyer’s preferences and budget.

Customer Service and Quality Control

Customer satisfaction is a high priority for us. We committed to building and delivering qualigniies. Our
on-site construction supervisors perform regulargosing quality checks during the constructiongess to ensure
our homes meet our standards and our homebuyegrsttations. We believe prompt and courteous regsoias
homebuyers’ needs throughout the homebuying praeglsgees postiosing repair costs, enhances our reputatic
quality and service, and helps encourage repeatedadal business from homebuyers and the reateest
community. Our goal is for our customers to be 1GG#sfied with their new homes. We also have eyg#e who
are responsible for responding to homebuyers’ plasting needs, including warranty claims.

We provide a limited warranty on all of our hom&ke specific terms and conditions vary dependinghen
market where we do business. We generally provisteuatural warranty of 10 years, a warranty orcteieal,
heating, cooling, plumbing and other building sysdeeach varying from two to five years based orgggahic
market and state law, and a warranty of one yeaastfter components of a home.

Local Expertise

To maximize our KBnxt operational business magleffectiveness and help ensure its consistenuéirec ou!
employees are continuously trained on KBnxt priles@and evaluated based on their achievementefaiet KBnxi
operational objectives. We also believe that owiress requires in-depth knowledge of local marketsder to
acquire land in desirable locations and on faveraéims, to engage subcontractors, to plan comiasititat meet
local demand, to anticipate consumer tastes inifipeatarkets, and to assess local regulatory emvirents.
Accordingly, we operate our business through divisiwith trained personnel who have local markpeetise. We
have experienced management teams in each of\dsiodis. Though we centralize certain functions(sas
marketing, advertising, legal, materials purchasmgchasing administration, product developmenthigecture an
accounting) to benefit from economies of scale,local management exercises considerable autonomy i
identifying land acquisition opportunities, devedlugpand implementing product and sales strategias controlling
costs.

Community Development and Land Inventory Management

Our community development process generally cansistour phases: land acquisition, land develogmen
home construction and sale. Historically, the catiph time of our community development processraaged
from six to 24 months in our West Coast segmeatdomewhat shorter duration in our other homemadldi
segments. The duration of
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the community development process varies basedmang other things, the extent of government agsov
required, the overall size of the community, neaggsite preparation activities, weather conditiand marketing
results.

Although they vary significantly, our communitiggtcally consist of 50 to 250 lots ranging in sfeem 1,000
to 13,000 square feet. In our communities, we dipioffer from three to 15 home designs for homedra to
choose from. We also build an average of two to foadel homes at each community so that prospebtiyers
can preview various home designs. Depending oredhenmunity, we may offer premium lots containing mor
square footage, better views or location benefits.

Land Acquisition and Land Development. We continuously evaluate land acquisition oppditiess as they aris
against our investment and marketing standardanbeilg competing needs for financial strength amdl inventory
for future growth. When we acquire land, we focndand parcels containing fewer than 250 lots #natfully
entitled for residential construction and are «ithteysically developed to start home constructiefefred to as
“finished lots™) or partially finished. Acquiringrfished or partially finished lots enables us tastouct and deliver
homes shortly after the land is acquired with madiadditional development expenditures. We belibigis a mor
efficient way to use our working capital and redutiee operating risks associated with having tebigand/or
entitle land, such as unforeseen improvement @stfor changes in market conditions. However, déipgnon
market conditions and available opportunities, vay/mcquire undeveloped and/or unentitled land. Yee that
the overall balance of undeveloped, unentitledfledtand finished lots in our inventory will vaoyer time.

Consistent with our KBnxt operational business nhoge target geographic areas for potential land
acquisitions and assess the viability of our curieventory based on the results of periodic susvafyboth new and
resale homebuyers in particular markets and otrmarch activities. Local, in-house land acquisisipecialists
conduct site selection analysis in targeted gedtcagreas to identify desirable land acquisitiogéds or to evalua
whether to dispose of an existing interest. We alsostudies performed by third-party marketingggists. Some
of the factors we consider in evaluating land asitjon targets and assessing the viability of autrieventory are:
consumer preferences; general economic conditgpes;ific market conditions, with an emphasis onpttiees of
comparable new and resale homes in the marketctegeales rates; proximity to metropolitan aresbs a
employment centers; population, household formadiath commercial growth patterns; estimated costs of
completing land development; and environmental d@npe matters.

We generally structure our land purchases and dpr@nt activities to minimize or to defer the tigniof cash
and capital expenditures, which enhances retussecaged with new land investments. While we usaréty of
techniques to accomplish this, as further descriiow, we typically use agreements that give usgion right to
purchase land at a future date, at a fixed prickefana small initial deposit payment. Our decisiorexercise a
particular option right is based on the resultdwé diligence and continued market viability anefys/e conduct
after entering into an agreement. In some casegjemision to exercise an option may be conditioorethe land
seller obtaining necessary entitlements, such amgaights and environmental and development apgdso and/or
physically developing the land by a pre-determidate to allow us to build homes relatively quickbepending on
the circumstances, our initial deposit paymengfoioption right may or may not be refundable tif we abandon
the land option contract and do not purchase tldenlying land.

In addition to acquiring land under option agreetagwe may acquire land under agreements that tondiur
purchase obligation on our satisfaction with thessfbility of developing the land and selling honeasthe land by a
certain future date, consistent with our investmaamt marketing standards. Our option and otherhase
agreements may also allow us to phase our lanchases and/or land development over a period of dimeéor
upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. We rasp acquire land with seller financing that isifrecourse to us,
or by working in conjunction with third-party lamtevelopers. Our land option contracts generallpatocontain
provisions requiring our specific performance.

Before we commit to any land purchase or disposngfinterest in land, our senior corporate anébre
management evaluates each asset based on the cfsult local specialists’ due diligence and ao$etefined
financial measures, including, but not limiteddogss margin analyses and specific discounted;-fkecash flow
internal rate of return requirements. The critgu&ing our land acquisition and disposition demisi have resulted
in our maintaining inventory in areas that we badigenerally offer better returns for lower riskddower cash and
capital investment.
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In recent years, in light of difficult market cotidns, we have sold some of our land and inteiiedend and
have abandoned a portion of our options to acdairé. We determined that these properties no lomggtrour
investment or marketing standards. Although wetstiibur strategic focus in 2010 to acquiring lassets in order
to open more new home communities and increaseswanues, as discussed above under “Strategy Ariken
conditions remain challenging, we may sell morewfland and interests in land, and we may abaoddny to sell
more of our options or other agreements to acdaire.

The following table presents the number of inveytots we owned, in various stages of developmant,
controlled under land option contracts or otheeagrents in our homebuilding segments as of NoveBMe2010
and 2009. The table does not include approxim&@&é/acres owned and 64 acres optioned as of Nove3tbe
2010 and approximately 316 acres owned as of Noee®®, 2009 that had not yet been approved forigigizh
into lots.

Total Lots
Homes/Lots in Land Under Lots Under Owned or
Production Development Option Under Option
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

West Coas 6,471 4,68¢ 1,85¢ 2,21¢ 1,39¢ 1,062 9,72t 7,96¢€
Southwes 3,07: 3,511 2,12z 1,671 3,86¢ 3,59: 9,06( 8,781
Central 6,15¢ 5,79¢ 2,58¢ 2,52¢ 2,221 1,791 10,97: 10,12
Southeas 3,22¢ 3,86¢ 4,72¢ 4,07¢ 1,82¢ 2,65( 9,782 10,59¢
Total 18,93( 17,86( 11,297 10,50: 9,31 9,10z 39,54( 37,46

Reflecting our geographic diversity and relativeglanced operational footprint, as of November2a,0, 249
of the inventory lots we owned or controlled wesedted in the West Coast reporting segment, 23% imehe
Southwest reporting segment, 28% were in the Cleiparting segment and 25% were in the Southegstrting
segment.

The following table presents the dollar value afentory we owned, in various stages of developnant,
controlled under land option contracts or otheeagrents in our homebuilding segments as of Nove8me2010
and 2009 (in thousands):

Total Lots
Homes/Lots in Land Under Lots Under Owned or
Production Development Option Under Option
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

West Coas $ 71597¢ $ 530,03 $ 82,40¢ $ 80,22¢ $ 30,766 $ 29,39( $ 829,15 $ 639,64¢
Southwes 118,59¢ 116,77¢ 110,06¢ 94,43! 3,71¢ 8,40¢ 232,38¢ 219,61¢
Central 238,84¢ 240,82! 35,28( 41,40¢ 10,46¢ 42,075 284,597 324,30
Southeas 192,41 190,48¢ 147,81: 115,61 10,36: 11,72( 350,58¢ 317,81¢
Total $1,265,841 $1,078,12. $ 37556¢( $ 331,67t $ 5531 $ 9159 $1,696,72. $1,501,39

Home Construction and Sale. Following the purchase of land and, if necessédmy finishing of lots, we
typically begin marketing homes for sale and carcding model homes. The time required for consiomodf our
homes depends on the weather, time of year, labakIsupply, availability of materials and suppkesl other
factors. To minimize the costs and risks of stagdiiventory, we generally begin construction ofoanie only when
we have a signed purchase contract with a homebbigsvever, cancellations of home purchase contaits to
the delivery of the underlying homes, or speciffategic considerations, may cause us to have isgtentory ol
completed or partially completed homes. Duringghesent housing downturn, we have experienced madaility
in our cancellation rates than in the years immetjidbefore the downturn began. In 2010, we buikald homes in
some communities to help increase sales beforexpieation of a federal homebuyer tax credit in iRgks a result,
at times during the year we had slightly more stagchventory than we have had historically. Mar&enditions
and strategic considerations will determine ounditag inventory levels in 2011.

We act as the general contractor for the majofityus communities and hire experienced subcontradtr all
production activities. Our contracts with our sutiitactors require that they comply with all lawgbgable to their
work, including labor laws, meet performance stadslaand follow local building codes and permitse Wave
developed programs for national and regional pigicigeof certain building materials, appliances atiter items to
take
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advantage of economies of scale and to reduce ttwstggh improved pricing and, where availabletipgration in
manufacturers’ or suppliers’ rebate programs. Astalges of production, our administrative and ib&-supervisory
personnel coordinate the activities of subcontracamd subject their work to quality and cost calstr

Backlog

We sell our homes under standard purchase contvelsiish generally require a homebuyer deposit atitne
of signing. The amount of the deposit requiredesmemong markets and communities. Homebuyers soe al
generally required to pay additional deposits wiiey select options or upgrades for their homesstdbour hom
purchase contracts stipulate that if a homebuyeeceala a contract with us, we have the right toimettse
homebuyer’s deposits. However, we generally peoaithomebuyers to cancel their obligations andinb&funds
of all or a portion of their deposits in the evardrtgage financing cannot be obtained within aquedf time, as
specified in their contract. Since 2008, tighteressidential consumer mortgage lending standards keavto higher
cancellation rates than those experienced beferg tmd we expect these standards to continuevtbahaegative
impact on our cancellation rates in 2011.

“Backlog” consists of homes that are under contbatthave not yet been delivered. Ending backlpgesents
the number of homes in backlog from the previousopeplus the number of net orders (new orderditomes less
cancellations) generated during the current pariauis the number of homes delivered during theerurnperiod.
The backlog at any given time will be affected laycellations. The number of homes delivered hderigally
increased from the first to the fourth quarterry gear.

Our backlog at November 30, 2010, excluding backibgnconsolidated joint ventures, consisted of
1,336 homes, a decrease of 37% from the 2,126 homiesklog at November 30, 2009. The decreaseiin o
backlog levels in 2010 primarily reflected our gtgic decisions in the mi@@06 through 2009 time period to red
our inventory and active community counts to aligm operations with diminished housing market afgtiand
overall lower net orders. Our backlog at Novemhl&rZ10 represented potential future housing reesd
approximately $263.8 million, a 38% decrease frateptial future housing revenues of $422.5 milkkdiNovembe
30, 2009, resulting primarily from the lower numioéihomes in backlog. Our backlog ratio, definedhasies
delivered in the quarter as a percentage of bacdidige beginning of the quarter, was 88% for thertgr ended
November 30, 2010 and 82% for the quarter endedehdver 30, 200¢

Our net orders totaled 6,556 in 2010, a decrea2&%ffrom 8,341 net orders in 2009. Our averageeltion
rate based on gross orders was 28% in 2010, cothpaen average of 25% in 2009. During the fouttarter of
2010, our net orders declined 25% from the corredjmy quarter of 2009, primarily due to a 24% daseein our
overall average active community count, generalyakveconomic and housing market conditions, ardeiged
residential consumer mortgage lending standards. pexrcentage of gross orders, our cancellati@was 37% in
the fourth quarter of 2010, compared to 31% inftheth quarter of 2009.
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The following tables present homes delivered, né¢is and cancellation rates (based on gross Qrolers
homebuilding reporting segment and with respeciutounconsolidated joint ventures for each qualteing the
years ended November 30, 2010 and 2009, and ourgehdcklog at the end of each quarter within thesars:

Homes delivered
2010
First
Seconc
Third
Fourth
Total

2009
First
Seconc
Third
Fourth

Total

Net orders
2010
First
Seconc
Third
Fourth

Total

2009
First
Seconc
Third
Fourth

Total

Cancellation rates
2010

First

Seconc

Third

Fourth

Total

2009
First
Seconc
Third
Fourth

Total

Ending backlog— homes
2010

First

Seconc

Third

Fourth

2009
First
Second (a
Third
Fourth

Unconsolidated

10

West Coast Southwest Central Southeas _ Total Joint Ventures
34C 21€ 52¢ 241 1,32¢ 21
50C 35¢ 55C 37 1,78: 34
60C 337 85t 52¢ 2,32( 24
58: 23¢ 72¢ 36 1,91¢ 23

2,02 1,15(C 2,665 1,51C 7,34¢ 10z
351 267 447 38C 1,44: 23
56¢ 241 52t 42€ 1,761 55
66¢ 314 78% 474 2,24C 37
864 38( 1,01¢€ 78z 3,04: _26

2,45% 1,20z 2,771 2,06z 8,48¢ 141
42¢ 31z 71E 45€¢ 1,91: 19
60€& 351 79€ 48C 2,24¢ 27
33t 18€ 55€ 237 1,31« 16
331 157 37C 227 1,08t _4

1,70: 1,007 2,437 1,40¢ 6,55¢€ _66
45¢ 22z 622 524 1,82; 28
92¢ 35¢ 1,04¢ 578 2,91( 45
591 35E 80¢& 404 2,15¢ 17
417 20C 491 33¢ 1,44¢ 21

2,39t 1,13¢€ 2,96¢ 1,841 8,341 111

17% 14% 29% 21% 22% 21%
15 16 31 26 24 —
23 26 37 40 33 —
23 26 49 35 37 33
19% 19% 36% 29% 28% _10%
26% 27% 29% 28% 28% 48%
16 18 20 26 20 31
23 20 28 32 27 32
20 24 40 30 31 16
21% 22% 28% 29% 25% _34%
612 37¢ 1,10¢ 617 2,71 35
72C 371 1,351 73:  3,17¢ 28
45E 22( 1,052 44z  2,16¢ 20
203 13¢ 693 301 1,33¢ _1
68¢ 30z 892 767 2,651 76

1,04¢ 421 1,41¢ 91€ 3,80« 62
97C 462 1,444 84€ 3,72: 42
522 282 91¢ 40z  2,12¢ 37
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Unconsolidated

West Coas! Southwes _ Central Southeast Total Joint Ventures
Ending backlog— value, in thousands
2010
First $193,93¢ $59,43¢ $172,06¢ $ 98,30f $523,75( $13,82¢
Seconc 241,38! 60,27¢ 224,21: 122,36' 648,23t 11,76(
Third 165,54t 34,49( 171,57 83,70% 455,31¢ 7,48(
Fourth 74,81¢ 21,30¢ 113,15! 54517 263,79 511
2009
First $214,99° $57,16¢ $153,53¢ $134,13! $559,83¢ $30,18(
Second (a 334,600 72,42¢ 228,72. 161,10: 796,85¢ 24,11¢
Third 293,32¢ 75,43¢ 218,43( 146,89t 734,09: 15,45¢
Fourth 174,44% 46,13% 137,27. 64,64% 422,49¢ 15,57

(a) Ending backlog amounts have been adjusted to tefleaconsolidation of previously unconsolidateido
ventures during the second quarter of 2(

Land and Raw Materials

We currently own or control enough land to meetfouecasted production goals. As discussed abaxeeter
depending on market conditions we may continuectpise land assets in 2011 or we may sell certaid br land
interests. In 2010, our land sales generated $8lidmof revenues and $.3 million of losses, irtihg $.3 million
of impairments. In 2009, our land sales genera&&i3million of revenues and $47.9 million of lossecluding
$10.5 million of impairments. Our land option cadr abandonments resulted in pretax, noncash chafge
$10.1 million in 2010 and $47.3 million in 2009.

The principal raw materials used in the constructibour homes are concrete and forest productsddiition,
we use a variety of other construction materialhéhomebuilding process, including sheetrock@athbing and
electrical items. We attempt to enhance the efficyeof our operations by using pre-made, standaddizaterials
that are commercially available on competitive teifrom a variety of sources. In addition, our calited and/or
regionalized purchasing of certain building matsriappliances and fixtures allows us to beneditflarge quantit
purchase discounts and, in some cases, manufaotusapplier rebates. When possible, we arrangbuti
purchases of these products at favorable prices fnranufacturers and suppliers.

Customer Financing

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing fromlanding institution of their choice. KBA Mortgag
representatives on site at our communities off@artange mortgage financing for prospective homehthrough
the joint venture. We believe that the ability d8K Mortgage to offer customers a variety of finanggbptions on
competitive terms as a part of the on-site salesq®s helps to complete sales. KBA Mortgage ortgthéans for
82% of our customers who obtained mortgage finaniirk010 and 84% in 2009.

Employees

We employ a trained staff of land acquisition spksis, architects, planners, engineers, constncti
supervisors, marketing and sales personnel, aaddmand accounting personnel, supplemented assaggdy
outside consultants, who guide the developmentuotommunities from their conception through theketing anc
delivery of completed homes.

At December 31, 2010, we had approximately 1,30&ifue employees, compared to approximately 1,400
December 31, 2009. None of our employees are reptes by a collective bargaining agreement.

Competition and Other Factors

We believe our KBnxt operational business modeti@aarly the aspects that involve gaining a deepe
understanding of customer interests and needsféerihg a wide range of choices to homebuyers, joles/us with
long-term competitive advantages. The homebuildidgstry and housing market are highly competitared we
compete with numerous homebuilders ranging fronored and national firms to small local buildersnparily on
the basis of price, location, financing, desigputation, quality and amenities. In addition, wenpete with
housing alternatives other than new homes, inclydisale homes, foreclosed and short sale homéseatal
housing. In certain markets and at times when Imgudemand is high, we also compete with other busido hire
subcontractors.
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During 2010, operating conditions in most U.S. hiogsnarkets remained difficult, reflecting the incpaf the
housing downturn and the weak economy as discus@ee under “Strategy.” We believe the heightened
competition for homebuyers stemming from these ttmmd will continue in 2011, if not intensify.

Financing

We do not generally finance the development ofammmunities with project financing. By “project
financing,” we mean proceeds of loans specificabiyained for, or secured by, particular communitiestead, our
operations have historically been funded by resfltsperations, public debt and equity financingd &orrowings
under an unsecured revolving credit facility wittrieus financial institutions (the “Credit FacilijyIn 2010,
however, anticipating that we would not need ta®aerany funds under the Credit Facility beforesitheduled
maturity in November 2010, we voluntarily termiréitbe Credit Facility effective March 31, 2010 torénate the
costs of maintaining it.

Environmental Compliance Matters

As part of our due diligence process for all landuasitions, we often use third-party environmegtaisultants
to investigate potential environmental risks andregpuire disclosures and representations and wasainom land
sellers of environmental risks. Despite these &ffdhere can be no assurance that we will avoigrad liabilities
relating to the existence or removal of toxic wastgte restoration, monitoring or other environtaématters
affecting properties currently or previously owr@ccontrolled by us. No estimate of any potentabilities can be
made although we may, from time to time, purchaspegrty that requires us to incur environmentahtep costs
after appropriate due diligence, including, but livatted to, using detailed investigations perfodzy
environmental consultants. In such instances, We steps prior to acquisition to gain reasonalderasce as to the
precise scope of work required and the costs assocwith removal, site restoration and/or monitgriTo the
extent contamination or other environmental isswe& occurred in the past, we will attempt to recaestoration
costs from third parties, such as the generatoraoérdous waste, land sellers or others in thog phiain of title
and/or their insurers. Based on these practicesntieipate that it is unlikely that environmentian-up costs will
have a material effect on our future consolidatedricial position or results of operations. We hagtbeen
notified by any governmental agency of any claiat gny of the properties owned or formerly ownedibyre
identified by the EPA as being a “Superfund” clegnsite requiring remediation, which could haveaterial effect
on our future consolidated financial position suks of operations. Costs associated with theotisavironmental
consultants are not material to our consolidatearftial position or results of operations.

Access to Our Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, gretatements and other information with the Sei@sriand
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). We make our public S#iays available, at no cost, through our website
http://kbhome.com, as soon as reasonably practictdr the report is electronically filed with,farnished to, the
SEC. We will also provide these reports in eledtram paper format free of charge upon request nadeir
investor relations department at investorrelatiokbl@me.com or at our principal executive officear SEC filings
are also available to the public over the Inteatehe SEC’s website at http://sec.gov. The pubky also read and
copy any document we file at the SEC’s public refiee room located at 100 F Street N.E., WashinddaD,
20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 ftlnduinformation on the operation of the publierence room.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following important factors could adversely aepour business. These factors could cause oualact
results to differ materially from the forward-lookj and other statements (i) that we make in redistr statements,
periodic reports and other filings with the SEC #mn time to time in our news releases, annuabmspand other
written reports or communications, (ii) that we pos or make available through our website, anjirtinde orally
from time to time by our personnel and represevaati

The homebuilding industry is experiencing a proload and severe downturn that may continue for an dfithite
period and adversely affect our business and reswit operations

In recent years, many of our served markets antlt8ehomebuilding industry as a whole have expegd a
significant and sustained decrease in demand ferhoenes and an oversupply of new and existing haawa#able
for
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sale, conditions that generally began in mid-2@G6a result, since mid-2006, compared to the perma 2000
through 2005, we and other homebuilders have giyesgerienced fewer home sales and greater Vitfati the
cancellations of home purchase contracts by honexbugind faced higher inventories of unsold homestiae
increased use of discounts, incentives, price ®ions and other marketing efforts by sellers @f aad existing
homes to close sales, putting downward pressutemore selling prices, revenues and profitabilitye3é negative
supply and demand trends have been exacerbated 2008 by a number of factors, including (a) a scemd
persistent downturn in general economic and empésytroonditions that, among other things, has furthmpered
consumer demand and confidence for buying homgsn¢heasing residential consumer mortgage loaeclosure
and short sales activity and sales of lender-owrtedes; (c) volatility and uncertainty in credit aswhsumer
lending markets, including from voluntary and inwaiary delays by financial institutions in finahgj residential
consumer mortgage loan foreclosures and increa@ntands from investors for lenders, residentiasoorer
mortgage loan brokers and other institutions, eirthgents, to repurchase the residential consumeigage loans
or securities backed by residential consumer mgedeans that they originated, issued or adminigt@rgenerally
tighter lending standards for residential consumertgage loans; and (e) the termination, expiratiogcaling back
of homebuyer tax credits and other government pirogrsupportive of home sales. It is uncertain whed,to what
extent, these housing industry trends and factogbtmeverse or improve.

Reflecting this difficult operating environment, wike many other homebuilders, have experiencedtging
degrees since the housing downturn began, dedtimest orders, decreases in the average sellicg pfinew
homes we have sold and delivered and reduced reseand margins relative to the period from 2006ugh 2005,
and we have generated operating losses. Thougmpmved our operating margins and narrowed outasatin
2010 compared to 2009, and housing affordabiliguisently at historically high levels overall, wan provide no
assurances that the homebuilding industry or osineiss will improve substantially or at all in 201fleconomic
conditions, employment, personal income growth @ntsumer confidence remain weak and residentiadiooer
mortgage loan foreclosures, delinquencies and sladgt continue rising in future periods, there lddikely be a
corresponding adverse effect on our business antesults of operations, including, but not limited the number
of homes we deliver, the amount of revenues wergémand our ability to achieve or maintain prddilisy .

Further tightening of residential consumer mortgadending or mortgage financing requirements or furér
volatility in credit and consumer lending market®gld adversely affect the availability of residealticonsumer
mortgage loans for some potential purchasers of diames and thereby reduce our sales.

Since 2008, the residential consumer mortgage henaind mortgage finance industries have experienced
significant instability due to, among other thing=atively high rates of delinquencies, defauttd éoreclosures on
residential consumer mortgage loans and a resudgetine in their market value and the market valugecurities
backed by such loans. The delinquencies, defantt§@eclosures have been driven in part by pensigioor
economic and employment conditions, which have tiegjg affected borrowers’ incomes, and by a deximthe
values of many existing homes in various markelsvibéhe principal balance of the residential consumortgage
loans secured by such homes. A number of provigershasers and insurers of residential consumeigamge
loans and residential consumer mortgage-backedigesinave gone out of business or exited the stadad
lenders, investors, regulators and others havetigues the oversight and the adequacy of lendiagdgtrds for
several residential consumer mortgage loan prograate available to borrowers in recent years, dioly
programs offered or supported by the Federal Hguaoministration (“FHA”), the Veterans Administrati (“VA")
and the federal government sponsored enterprises;aderal National Mortgage Association (also kmew
“Fannie Mae”) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgagep@tion (also known as “Freddie Mac”). Compared t
prior periods, this has led to reduced investorateifor residential consumer mortgage loans aridewesal
consumer mortgage-backed securities, tightenedtecegfiirements, reduced liquidity and availabilitiyresidential
consumer mortgage loan products (particularly satgpand nonconforming loans), and increased dowmpat
requirements and credit risk premiums related tépurchases. It has also led to enhanced regylahor
legislative actions, and government programs fodtwsemodifying the principal balances, interes¢sat
and/orpayment terms of existing residential consumer gawé loans and preventing residential consumergage
loan foreclosures, which have achieved somewhagdnigsults.

The reduction in the availability of residentiahsoimer mortgage loan products and providers ahtktig
residential consumer mortgage loan qualificatiams down payment requirements have made it morediifffor
some categories of
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borrowers to finance the purchase of our homebeptirchase of existing homes from potential mqvéuyers
who wish to purchase one of our homes. Overalkdliactors have slowed any general improvemesimousing
market, and they have resulted in volatile homelpase cancellation rates and reduced demand fdromnes and
for residential consumer mortgage loans origindtedugh our KBA Mortgage joint venture. These rdihrts in
demand have had a materially adverse effect otaginess and results of operations in 2010 thatpgcted to
continue in 2011.

Potentially exacerbating the foregoing trends,0a®, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) was signedamaw and established several new standards ajuireenents
(including risk retention obligations) relatingttte origination, securitizing and servicing of, amhsumer
disclosures for, residential consumer mortgagedo@ihese new standards and requirements are edpedtather
reduce the availability of and/or increase the ctstborrowers to obtain such loans. Federal régrsland
legislators are also discussing steps that mayfiigntly reduce the ability or authority of the RiHFannie Mae an
Freddie Mac to purchase or insure residential amesunortgage loans. In the last few years, the Hrifnie Mae
and Freddie Mac have purchased or insured subsitgrail new residential consumer mortgage loangioated by
lenders, including KBA Mortgage. Also in 2010, a&inoted above, investors in residential consunoetgage-
backed securities, as well as Fannie Mae and Feeddc, increasingly demanded that lenders, brakedsother
institutions, or their agents, repurchase the laanterlying the securities based on alleged breaghenderwriting
standards or of representations and warranties maznection with transferring the loans. Theget-back”
demands are expected to continue into 2011 anetextent successful, could cause lenders anctzal further
curtail their residential consumer mortgage lodgination activities due to reduced liquidity. Cemnas about the
soundness of the residential consumer mortgagénigrehd mortgage finance industries have also beehtened
recently due to allegedly widespread errors by éeaar brokers, or their agents, in the processingsidential
consumer mortgage loan foreclosures and salesedlised homes, leading to voluntary or involuntelays and
higher costs to finalize foreclosures and forealdseme sales, and greater court and regulatoryisgrin addition
to having a potential negative impact on the oagion of new residential consumer mortgage lodresd
disruptions in residential consumer mortgage laaadiosures and lender-owned home sales may makaré
difficult for us to accurately assess the supplamd prevailing prices for unsold homes andferoverall stability o
particular housing markets.

Many of our homebuyers obtain financing for theinte purchases from our KBA Mortgage joint vent@ar
partner, a Bank of America, N.A. subsidiary, pr@gdhe loan products that the joint venture offersur
homebuyers. If, due to higher costs, reduced ligitieightened risk retention obligations and/ewroperating
restrictions or regulatory reforms related to asiag from compliance with the Dodd-Frank Act, desitial
consumer mortgage loan put-back demands or interreternal reviews of its residential consumertgage loan
foreclosure processes, or other factors or busitkesisions, our partner refuses or is unable toenh@ém products
available to the joint venture to provide to ountebuyers, our home sales and our homebuildingiaaddial
services results of operations may be adversedcttl. For instance, in the fourth quarter of 2Gh@cter lending
standards led to an increase in our cancellatimma@mpared to the fourth quarter of 2009. The @e¢p which this
more cautious approach to providing loans to oundiouyers continues into 2011 is unclear, and wepoavide no
assurance that the trend of tighter residentiaseorer mortgage lending standards will slow or reeén the
foreseeable future.

Our strategies in responding to the adverse coratis in the homebuilding industry have had limitedecess, and
the continued implementation of these and otheradtrgies may not be successful.

While we have been successful in generating pesdperating cash flow since the housing downtugabgewe
have done so at reduced gross profit levels antd,201.0, have incurred significant asset impairtr&rarges
compared to the period from 2000 through 2005. Meee, many of our strategic initiatives during timusing
downturn to generate cash and improve our operafiicjency have involved lowering overhead throwgbrkforce
reductions, for which we incurred significant costisd reducing our active community count throutghtegic wind
downs, reduced investments or market exits, curloevelopment and sales of land interests. Thestegic steps
have resulted in our generating to varying degfewer net orders, homes delivered and revenues ax@uto
periods before the housing downturn began, and bavgibuted to the net losses we have recognizeedent
years.

In an effort to generate higher revenues and restod maintain our homebuilding operations’ praifitty,
beginning in late 2008 and continuing through 204@ rolled out new, more flexible product designs|uding The
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Open Series, and we continued to take steps to reduce ounggetieneral and administrative expenses, and to
redeploy our capital into housing markets with pared higher future growth prospects.

These integrated strategic steps helped us namowed losses and improve our operating margiresaoh
quarter of 2010 compared to the corresponding gadrer periods. However, there can be no assurhiat¢hese
trends will continue in 2011 or at all, that we vgliccessfully increase our average active commuaeitint and
inventory base with desirable land assets at anedde cost, or that we will achieve or maintaiofipability in the
near future. In addition, notwithstanding our salrategies, we have experienced volatility in oefrorders and in
cancellations of home purchase contracts by buheosighout the present housing downturn, includ@mng010. We
believe that our volatile net order and canceltatavels have largely reflected weak homebuyeridente due to
sustained home sales price declines, increasedngffeof sales incentives in the marketplace fahbew and
existing homes, tightened residential consumer gage lending standards, and generally poor econanuic
employment conditions, all of which have promptednebuyers to forgo or delay home purchases. Adtditio
volatility arose in 2010 with the April 30 expirati of the federal homebuyer tax credit, which fkellled demand
forward to the first two quarters of the year agd 1o a drop in net orders and customer traffib@periods that
followed. The relatively tight consumer mortgagedmg environment and the inability of some homedrayto sell
their existing homes have also led to lower denfandew homes and to volatility in home purchaseti@ct
cancellations for us and the homebuilding indusitsiny of these factors affecting our net orders @anttellation
rates, and the related market dynamics that pund@nd pressure on our average selling prices, eyerid our
control. It is uncertain how long and to what degtigese factors, and the volatility in net orderd home purchase
contract cancellations we have experienced, wiltiooe. To the extent that they do, and to therexteat they
depress our average selling prices, we expecttibgtwill have a negative effect on our business@ur results of
operations.

Our business is cyclical and is significantly affesxl by changes in general and local economic coiuahis.

Our results of operations can be substantiallycsfi by adverse changes in general economic ondssi
conditions that are outside of our control, inchglchanges in:

« shor- and lon¢term interest rate!
« employment levels and job and personal income drc

¢ housing demand from population growth, houstFfarmation and other demographic changes, amtmgr o
factors;

« the availability and pricing of financing for homefers;
» consumer confidence generally and the confideng®tential homebuyers in particuli
» U.S. and global financial system and credit maskaibility;

* private party and government residential camsumortgage loan programs, and federal and stgtdation
of lending and appraisal practici

« federal and state personal income tax ratdgaovisions, including provisions for the deduntimf
residential consumer mortgage loan interest paysreemd other expense

« the supply of and prices for available nevexisting homes (including lendemwned homes acquired throu
foreclosures and short sales) and other housiagnalives, such as apartments and other residesil

property;
* homebuyer interest in our current or new podiesigns and community locations, and generadwmer
interest in purchasing a home compared to choasgtimgr housing alternatives; a

 real estate taxe

Adverse changes in these conditions may affecbasiness nationally or may be more prevalent or
concentrated in particular regions or localitiesvimich we operate. In recent years, unfavorablegéain many of
these factors negatively affected all of our semvedkets, and we expect the widespread natureegirbsent
housing downturn to
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continue into 2011. Continued weakness in the evgnemployment levels and consumer confidence wibkedly
exacerbate the unfavorable trends the housing mhdseexperienced since mid-2006.

Fluctuating lumber prices and shortages, as wedhastages or price fluctuations in other buildingterials or
commodities, can have an adverse effect on ounbssi Inclement weather, natural disasters, suehréisquakes,
hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, droughts, firesathdr environmental conditions, and labor shortagefisruptions
among key trades, such as carpenters, rooferdrielaes and plumbers, can delay the delivery affeames
and/or increase our costs. Civil unrest or actewbrism can also have a negative effect on osiness.

The potential difficulties described above can eadismand and prices for our homes to fall or cagde take
longer and incur more costs to build our homes.nidg not be able to recover these increased costidigg price
because of market conditions and because the giriegch home we sell is usually set several mdngfisre the
home is delivered, as our customers typically siggir home purchase contracts before construciginis. The
potential difficulties could also lead some homedrgyto cancel or refuse to honor their home pukckastracts
altogether. Reflecting the difficult conditionsanr served markets and the impact of the terminagapiration or
scaling back of homebuyer tax credits and otheegawent programs supportive of home sales, we have
experienced volatility in our net orders and in lopurchase contract cancellations in recent yaarswe may
experience similar or increased volatility in 2011.

Supply shortages and other risks related to demémdbuilding materials and/or skilled labor couldhicrease
costs and delay deliveries.

There is a high level of competition in the homédting industry for skilled labor and building matds.
Increased costs or shortages in building mateoiaskilled labor could cause increases in condtrnatosts and
construction delays. We generally are unable tg pasncreases in construction costs to homebuwyleoshave
already entered into home purchase contracts egsuitthase contracts generally fix the price ofriime at the tirr
the contract is signed, and may be signed weltlimace of when construction commences. Furthemewnot be
able to pass on increases in construction costaulsewmf market conditions. Sustained increasesristauction cost
due to competition for materials and skilled labod higher commaodity prices (including prices famber, metals
and other building material inputs), among othé@rgh, may, over time, decrease our margins.

Changes in global or regional environmental conditis and governmental actions in response to suchrules
may adversely affect us by increasing the costsrofestricting our planned or future residential delopment
activities.

There is growing concern from the scientific comiityiand the general public that an increase in glob
average temperatures due to emissions of greenigasss and other human activities will cause diganit changes
in weather patterns and increase the frequencygewvetity of natural disasters. An increased frequam duration
of extreme weather conditions and environmentah&sveould limit, delay and/or increase the costsutitd new
homes and reduce the value of our land and hoursiggtory in locations that become less desirableonsumers
or blocked to development. Projected climate chaifigieoccurs, may exacerbate the scarcity of wated other
natural resources in affected regions, which ctiod, prevent or increase the costs of residemt@lelopment in
certain areas. In addition, government mandatasdards and/or regulations intended to mitigateduce
greenhouse gas emissions and/or projected clinhatege impacts could result in increased energyspartation
and raw material costs that make building mateféds available or more expensive, or cause ugctg complianc
expenses and other financial obligations to meeahiténg or development- or constructioaelated requirements tt
we will be unable to fully recover (due to markenditions or other factors), and reduce our marghssa result,
climate change impacts, and laws and constructanmdards, and/or the manner in which they arepné¢ed or
implemented, to address potential climate changmats, could increase our costs and have a longddrerse
impact on our business and results of operationis. i a particular concern with respect to our ¥&sast reportin
segment as California has instituted some of thetextensive and stringent environmental laws asdential
building construction standards in the country.
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Inflation may adversely affect us by increasing ¢®shat we may not be able to recover, particulaflgales prices
decrease.

Inflation can have an adverse impact on our restiltgerations because increasing costs for lamittjibg
materials and skilled labor may raise a need fdpuscrease home selling prices to maintain satisfy margins. |
2010, worldwide demand for certain commodities arwhetary policy actions have led to price incredsesaw
materials that are used in construction, includimgber and metals. These pricing trends are expdoteontinue
into 2011 and, in combination with Federal Resgrocies and programs designed to boost economiatyy may
lead to a general increase in inflation. Howewdhée current challenging and highly competitivanditions in the
housing market persist, we may not be able to asgeand may need to decrease, our home sellicgsgo help
stimulate sales. If determined necessary, our lmgeasf home selling prices, in addition to impagtiour margins,
may also reduce the value of our land inventorgluiting the assets we purchased in 2010 pursuanirtstrategic
land acquisition initiative, and make it more difflt for us to recover the full cost of previouglyrchased land with
home selling prices or, if we choose, in dispogihtand assets. In addition, depressed land vahsscause us to
abandon and forfeit deposits on land option cotdrfiave cannot satisfactorily renegotiate the pase price of the
optioned land. We may incur noncash charges agaimstarnings for inventory impairments if the \&ahf our
owned inventory is reduced or for land option caatmabandonments if we choose not to exercisedatidn
contracts, and these charges may be substantiakasccurred in certain periods during the prelseasing
downturn.

Reduced home sales may impair our ability to recalgyvelopment costs or force us to absorb additiordts.

We incur many costs even before we begin to bultids in a community. Depending on a land parctdges
of development when acquired, these include cdgiseparing land, finishing and entitling lots, aindtalling roads
sewage and other utilities, as well as taxes aheraosts related to ownership of the land on whietplan to build
homes. In addition, local municipalities may imposguirements resulting in additional costs. If thee at which
we sell and deliver homes slows or falls, which besurred throughout the present housing downtuenmay incui
additional costs and it will take a longer periddime for us to recover our costs, including tlsts we incurred in
2010 to purchase assets pursuant to our stratagicacquisition initiative. Furthermore, due to kedrconditions
during the current housing downturn, we have abaed@ome options to purchase land, resulting iridifeiture of
deposits and unrecoverable due diligence and deveot costs.

The value of the land and housing inventory we owncontrol may fall significantly and our profitadity may
decrease.

The value of the inventory we currently own or eohtlepends on market conditions, including estenatf
future demand for, and the revenues that can bergtsd from, this inventory. The market value of iowentory
can vary considerably because there is often afisignt amount of time between our initial acquigit or optioning
of land and the delivery of homes on that land. iibesing downturn, which has generally depresseteheales an
selling prices, has caused the fair value of cerdé&iour owned or controlled inventory to fall, 9ome cases well
below the estimated fair value at the time we aeglit. Through our periodic assessments of fduiejave have
been required to write down the carrying valueeastain of our inventory, including inventory thaewmave
previously written down, and record correspondingaash charges against our earnings to refleétrthaired
value. We have also taken noncash charges in ctonedgth abandoning our interests in certain optid inventory
that no longer meets our investment or marketiagdards. Although the magnitude of such noncastgeba
diminished significantly in 2010 compared to pr@riods, if the current housing downturn continwes may need
to take additional charges against our earninggf@ntory impairments or land option contract abmmments, or
both. Any such noncash charges would have an asledfesct on our results of operations, including aiility to
achieve or maintain profitability.

Some homebuyers may cancel their home purchasesiise the required deposits are small and gener
refundable.

Our backlog information reflects the number of herfar which we have entered into a purchase conivitls a
homebuyer, but not yet delivered the home. Our hpurehase contracts typically require only a srdefiosit, and
in some circumstances, the deposit is refundalibe far closing. If the prices for new homes declioempetitors
increase their use of sales incentives, interéss iacrease, the availability of residential caneumortgage
financing diminishes or there is continued weakmess further downturn in local or regional econesor the
national economy and in consumer confidence, custeimay terminate their existing home purchaseraotst with
us because they have been unable to
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finalize their mortgage financing for the purchasein order to attempt to negotiate for a loweacgyrexplore other
options or for other reasons they are unable oiillingvto complete the purchase. In recent yeaes have
experienced volatile home purchase contract catiwlk, in part because of these reasons andsessded above,
in part due to the April 30, 2010 expiration of fiederal homebuyer tax credit. To the extent thaytioue, volatile
home purchase contract cancellations due to thewditions, or otherwise, could have an adversecetfe our
business and our results of operations.

Our long-term success depends on the availabilityfinished lots and undeveloped land that meet dand
investment criteria.

The availability of finished and partially finishéats and undeveloped land assets that meet oastiment and
marketing standards depends on a number of fagtdssde of our control, including land availabilitygeneral,
climate conditions, competition with other hometails and land buyers for desirable property, craditket
conditions, legal or government agency processasi€plarly for land assets that are part of baptoy estates or
are held by financial institutions taken over bygmment agencies), inflation in land prices, zgnilowable
housing density, our ability and the costs to abtaiilding permits, the amount of environmental &oifees,
property tax rates and other regulatory requiremiesthould suitable lots or land become less auailéiie number
of homes we may be able to build and sell couldebleiced, and the cost of attractive land couldease, perhaps
substantially, which could adversely impact ouutessof operations including, but not limited tayranargins, and
our ability to maintain ownership or control of @ ficient supply of developed or developable lamdeintory. The
availability of suitable land assets will also affthe success of the land acquisition strategyntiated in 2010,
and if we decide to reduce our acquisition of namdldue to a lack of available assets that meettandards, our
ability to increase our average community count@venues and to achieve or maintain profitabiiguld likely
be constrained.

Home prices and sales activity in the particular nkats and regions in which we do business affect oesults of
operations because our business is concentratethese markets.

Home selling prices and sales activity in somewfley served markets have declined from timerte tior
marketspecific reasons, including adverse weather, heghl$ of foreclosures, and lack of affordabilityemonomic
contraction due to, among other things, the faiturdecline of key industries and employers. If leaselling prices
or sales activity decline in one or more of our keyved markets, particularly in Arizona, Calif@ani-lorida,
Nevada or Texas, our costs may not decline atat the same rate and, as a result, our overllteeof operation
may be adversely affected.

Interest rate increases or changes in federal lemgliprograms or regulations could lower demand fanrchomes.

Nearly all of our customers finance the purchastheif homes. Before the housing downturn began,
historically low interest rates and the increaseallability of specialized residential consumer tgage loan
products, including products requiring no or lownhopayments, and interest-only and adjustablerestielential
consumer mortgage loans, made purchasing a homeaffordable for a number of customers and mordadla tc
customers with lower credit scores. Increasestar@st rates or decreases in the availability siflential consumer
mortgage loan financing or of certain resident@sumer mortgage loan products or programs mayisaassed
above, lead to fewer residential consumer mortd@ayes being provided, higher down payment requirgmer
borrower costs, or a combination of the foregoary], as a result, reduce demand for our homesanekise our
home purchase contract cancellation rates.

As a result of the volatility and uncertainty iretbredit markets and in the residential consumetgage
lending and mortgage finance industries since 20@8federal government has taken on a signifioaletin
supporting residential consumer mortgage lendinguigph its conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Frehlidie, both
of which purchase or insure residential consumettgage loans and residential consumer mortgageeoack
securities, and its insurance of residential coresumortgage loans through the FHA and the VA. FHa&king of
residential consumer mortgage loans has been piariiz important to the residential consumer moggéinance
industry and to our business. In 2010, approxirge&d2P6 of our homebuyers (compared to approximaiah in
2009) that chose to finance with our KBA Mortgagmi venture purchased a home using an FHA-baabel The
availability and affordability of residential comaer mortgage loans, including interest rates fahdoans, could be
adversely affected by a scaling back or terminadibthe federal government’s mortgage-related gogror
policies. For example, in October 2010, the FHAiinted higher mortgage insurance premiums to hdlfress its
low cash reserves and imposed new minimum crediescand higher down payment requirements for bare
with lower credit scores for
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the residential consumer mortgage loans it insuneaddition, due to growing federal budget deficthe
U.S. Treasury may not be able to continue supmpttie residential consumer mortgage-related aigsvitf Fannie
Mae, Freddie Mac, the FHA and the VA at presentlev

Because Fannie Mae-, Freddie Mac-, FHA- and VA-bddlesidential consumer mortgage loan financiramis
important factor in marketing and selling many aof bomes, any limitations or restrictions in thaitability of suct
government-backed financing could reduce our hastessand adversely affect our results of operatimefuding
the income we earn from our equity interest iniOBA Mortgage joint venture due to lower levels ekidential
consumer mortgage loan originations.

Tax law changes could make home ownership more exgdee or less attractive.

Under current tax law and policy, significant expes of owning a home, including residential congume
mortgage loan interest costs and real estate tgregrally are deductible expenses for the purpbsalculating an
individual’'s federal, and in some cases state, taxable incarbgct to various limitations. If the federal gowmen
or a state government changes income tax lawsras policy makers and a presidential commissiore hav
proposed, by eliminating or substantially redudimgse income tax benefits, the after-tax cost afiogza home
could increase substantially. This could adversalyact demand for and/or sales prices of new hoawespuld
increases in personal income tax rates.

Moreover, in early 2010, our home sales increasguhit because of a federal homebuyer tax crediema
available to certain qualifying homebuyers untilri\B0. The expiration of this homebuyer tax cretiversely
affected our net orders, home purchase contracediation rates, customer traffic levels and ressaftoperations in
subsequent periods of 2010, as weak consumer emtigdand unfavorable economic and employment dondit
caused many potential homebuyers to delay or firg@urchase of a home. It is uncertain whethertamehat
degree the higher demand driven by the federal bager tax credit might return, if at all.

We are subject to substantial legal and regulatoeguirements regarding the development of land, the
homebuilding process and protection of the enviroant, which can cause us to suffer delays and incasts
associated with compliance and which can prohibitrestrict homebuilding activity in some regions areas.

Our homebuilding business is heavily regulated srtiject to an increasing amount of local, statefaddral
regulation concerning zoning, natural and othesuiese protection, building designs, constructioriirods and
similar matters. These regulations often providstrdiscretion to government authorities that aetbese
matters, which can result in unanticipated delayis@reases in the cost of a specified developmssjéect or a
number of projects in particular markets. We may axperience periodic delays in homebuilding mtsjeue to
building moratoria and permitting requirements ity af the locations in which we operate.

In addition, we are subject to a variety of locthte and federal statutes, ordinances, ruleseapndations
concerning the environment, and in 2008 we enterteda consent decree with the EPA and certaiestat
concerning our storm water pollution preventioncticees. As noted above with respect to potentiadatie change
impacts, these laws and regulations, and/or evglviterpretations thereof, and the EPA consentedegray cause
delays in our construction and delivery of new hepmeay cause us to incur substantial complianceotiret costs,
and can prohibit or restrict homebuilding activittycertain regions or areas.

Environmental laws may also impose liability foe tbosts of removal or remediation of hazardousxict
substances whether or not the developer or ownigregbroperty knew of, or was responsible for,ghesence of
those substances. The presence of those substanoes properties may prevent us from selling amés and we
may also be liable, under applicable laws and ed@nis or lawsuits brought by private parties,Harardous or
toxic substances on properties and lots that we Baid in the past.

Further, a significant portion of our businessaaducted in California, one of the most highly reged and
litigious states in the country. Therefore, ourgmtital exposure to losses and expenses due toawvesy tegulations
or litigation may be greater than other homebugdeith a less significant California presence.

The residential consumer mortgage banking opemtidiour KBA Mortgage joint venture are heavily uégec
and subject to the rules and regulations issueal toymber of government and qugsivernment agencies. There
a
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number of federal and state statutes and regufatidnich, among other things, prohibit discriminationpose
various disclosure obligations, establish undemgitjuidelines that include verifying prospectivatowers’
incomes and obtaining property inspections andaiggis, require credit reports on prospective heers and fix
maximum loan amounts. As discussed above, the tigeracted Dodd~rank Act imposed additional standards
obligations with respect to the origination, setizing and servicing of residential consumer moggyans. A
finding that KBA Mortgage materially violated anf/tbe foregoing laws and/or the additional costmaty incur in
complying with such laws or to address any violaithereof could have an adverse effect on ouitsest
operations to the extent it impacts the income are rom our equity interest in KBA Mortgage.

We are subject to a consent order that we entatedniith the Federal Trade Commission in 1979 ahated
consent decrees that were entered into in 1992@08. Pursuant to the consent order and the retateskent
decrees, we provide explicit warranties on our herf@low certain guidelines in advertising and\pde certain
disclosures to prospective purchasers of our hoéading that we have significantly violated thensent order
and/or the related consent decrees could resslthistantial liabilities or penalties and could timir ability to sell
homes in certain markets.

The homebuilding industry and housing market areryecompetitive, and competitive conditions couldvadsely
affect our business or our financial results.

The homebuilding industry is highly competitive. Hebuilders compete not only for homebuyers, bt s
desirable land assets, financing, building materiahd skilled management talent and trade laberc@vhpete in
each of our served markets with other local, regli@md national homebuilders, including within krgubdivisions
containing sections designed, planned and develbpadch homebuilders. Other homebuilders may ledse long-
standing relationships with local labor, matergippliers or land sellers in certain areas, whiely provide an
advantage in their respective regions or local migtiVe also compete with other housing alternstisech as
existing home sales (including lender-owned honeegsiiaed through foreclosure or short sales) anthtdrousing.
The competitive conditions in the homebuilding istty can result in:

 our delivering fewer home

 our selling homes at lower price

« our offering or increasing sales incentives, distswr price concessions for our homr

 our experiencing lower margin

« our selling fewer homes or experiencing higher hgunehase contract cancellations by buy
< impairments in the value of our inventory and othassets

« difficulty in acquiring desirable land assets threget our investment return criteria, and in selting interest
in land assets that no longer meet such criteritaeorable terms

« difficulty in our acquiring raw materials and skil management and trade labor at acceptable p
 delays in the construction of our homes; an
« difficulty in securing external financing, performae bonds or letters of credit facilities on fadmdeaterms

These competitive conditions may adversely affecttusiness and financial results by decreasing our
revenues, impairing our ability to successfully@xe our land acquisition and land asset managestienegies,
increasing our costs and/or diminishing growthm local or regional homebuilding businesses. mphesent
housing downturn, actions taken by our new homehemrsing alternative competitors are reducing ffextvenes:
of our efforts to achieve stability in home sellipigces, to generate higher home sales, revenuemargins, and to
achieve and maintain profitability.
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Our ability to attract and retain talent is critidao the success of our business and a failure togb may
materially adversely affect our performance.

Our officers and employees are an important regp@ed we see attracting and retaining a dedicatdd
talented team to execute our KBnxt operationalr®mss model as crucial to our ability to achieve maghtain an
advantage over other homebuilders. We face inteasgetition for qualified personnel, particulartysanior
management levels, from other homebuilders, frdmeotompanies in the housing and real estate indsisand
from companies in various other industries withpees to certain roles or functions. Moreover, th@gnged
housing downturn and the decline in the marketevaluour common stock during the downturn have niade
relatively more difficult for us to attract and a@t talent compared to the 2000 to 2005 periocdidition, we
currently have a limited number of shares of oungmn stock available for grant as incentive comptos
awards, and an inability to grant equity compewsetd the same degree as other companies may atjvaftect
our talent recruitment and retention efforts. If awe unable to continue to retain and attract jedlemployees, our
performance and our ability to achieve and maintasilompetitive advantage could be materially adgraffected.

Homebuilding is subject to warranty and liabilityaims in the ordinary course of business that caa bignificant.

In the ordinary course of our homebuilding businessare subject to home warranty and constructefact
claims. We record warranty and other liabilities tfee homes we sell based primarily on historieglezience in our
served markets and our judgment of the risks aatstiwith the types of homes we build. We have,raqdire the
majority of our subcontractors to maintain, genéadility insurance (including construction defegtd bodily
injury coverage) and workers’ compensation insueaiitiese insurance policies protect us againsttaopf our
risk of loss from claims related to our homebuitdactivities, subject to certain self-insured rétars, deductibles
and other coverage limits. Through our captive liasae subsidiary, we record expenses and lialiliased on the
estimated costs required to cover our self-insueéehtion and deductible amounts under our ins@waodcies, and
on the estimated costs of potential claims andrckdjustment expenses above our coverage limitsabiare not
covered by our policies. These estimated costbaged on an analysis of our historical claims actude an
estimate of construction defect claims incurredrmityet reported. Because of the uncertaintiesranit to these
matters, we cannot provide assurance that ouransercoverage, our subcontractor arrangementsuaribilities
will be adequate to address all our warranty antsttaction defect claims in the future, or that aoyential
inadequacies will not have an adverse affect orresults of operations. Additionally, the coveradfered by and
the availability of general liability insurance foonstruction defects are currently limited andlgo3here can be n
assurance that coverage will not be further rdstlidncreasing our risks, and/or become morecostl

In 2009, we incurred warranty-related charges aataxt with the repair of homes primarily deliveiad2006
and 2007 and located in Florida that were idemtifis containing or suspected of containing allggddfective
drywall manufactured in China. We are continuinget@ew whether there are additional homes deltvémnd-lorida
or other locations that contain or may contain tirigvall material. Based on the results of our eeyiwe have not
identified homes outside of Florida that contaiis tirywall material. Depending on the outcome af @view and
our actual claims experience, we may incur additiovarranty-related costs and increase our warngadiity in
future periods. In addition, we have been nameal @efendant in lawsuits relating to this drywalltemal, and we
may in the future be subject to other similar tign or claims that could cause us to incur sigaift costs.

Because of the seasonal nature of our business, quarterly operating results fluctuate

We have experienced seasonal fluctuations in oarterly operating results. We typically do not coemoe
significant construction on a home before a honrelmse contract has been signed with a homebuystoridally,
a significant percentage of our home purchase actstiare entered into in the spring and summerhmspand we
deliver a corresponding significant percentagewftmmes in the fall and winter months. Constructdour homes
typically requires approximately three to four muand weather delays that often occur in lateexiand early
spring may extend this period. As a result of themmmbined factors, we historically have experienaeeven
quarterly results, with lower revenues and opegaiticome generally during the first and second gusiof the
year. During the present housing downturn, howewerhave experienced lower sales in the springsantmel
months and correspondingly fewer homes deliverdterfall and winter months as compared to theopdiriom
2000 through 2005. Moreover, our normal sellinggrats were disrupted to a significant extent in@bg the
federal homebuyer tax credit that was made
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available to qualifying homebuyers until April 3the increased demand driven by the federal tax bages credit
in early 2010 resulted in our delivering more horimethe third quarter of 2010 and experiencing lonet orders
and higher home purchase contract cancellationsiithird and fourth quarters, in each case contpre more
typical seasonal pattern. With the current difficubrket conditions expected to continue into 2@t the
expiration of the federal homebuyer tax credit,oaa make no assurances that our historical seagsatiatns will
return in the near future if at all.

Failure to comply with the covenants and conditiomaposed by the agreements governing our indebtegnepuld
restrict future borrowing or cause our debt to bane immediately due and payable.

The indenture governing our outstanding seniorotgoses restrictions on our business operatiods a
activities. Though it does not contain any finahoiaintenance covenants, the indenture contairiaineestrictive
covenants that, among other things, limit our gbtt incur secured indebtedness, to engage inlsateback
transactions involving property or assets abovgegified value, and, as in the case of one of atstanding senior
notes, to engage in mergers, consolidations, ded shassets. If we fail to comply with these riesbns, the
holders of our senior notes could cause our debétome due and payable prior to maturity or coelshand that
we compensate them for waiving instances of nontiamge. In addition, a default under any serieswfsenior
notes could cause a default with respect to owgratbnior notes and result in the acceleratioh@htaturity of all
such defaulted indebtedness.

We participate in certain unconsolidated joint vemes where we may be adversely impacted by therfibf the
unconsolidated joint venture or the other partneirsthe unconsolidated joint venture to fulfill theiobligations.

We have investments in and commitments to certagousolidated joint ventures with unrelated striateg
partners to acquire and develop land and, in s@ses; build and deliver homes. To finance theseitas, our
unconsolidated joint ventures often obtain loapnsnfthird-party lenders that are secured by the nsaladated joint
venture’s assets. In certain instances, we andttie partners in an unconsolidated joint ventuowige guarantees
and indemnities to lenders with respect to the naobidated joint venture’s debt, which may be teggd under
certain conditions when the unconsolidated joimtuee fails to fulfill its obligations under itsdo agreements.
Because we do not have a controlling interest@se¢hunconsolidated joint ventures, we depend heawithe other
partners in each unconsolidated joint venture tb k@) cooperate and make mutually acceptable idesisegarding
the conduct of the business and affairs of the nsalidated joint venture and (b) ensure that theg, the
unconsolidated joint venture, fulfill their respgetobligations to us and to third parties. If tither partners in our
unconsolidated joint ventures do not provide sumtperation or fulfill these obligations due to thi@ancial
condition, strategic business interests (which tmagontrary to ours), or otherwise, we may be reglutio spend
additional resources (including payments undegterantees we have provided to the unconsolidated j
ventures’ lenders) and suffer losses, each of wtiehd be significant. Moreover, our ability to oep such
expenditures and losses by exercising remediegsstgaich partners may be limited due to poterdigdll defenses
they may have, their respective financial conditamal other circumstances.

As discussed below under “Part | — Item 3. Legaldeedings,” we are currently a party to an invamnt
bankruptcy case initiated by the lenders to onthefe unconsolidated joint ventures, which inclusieking to
enforce a guarantee. An unfavorable outcome inctiée could have a material adverse effect onansdidated
financial position and results of operations.

The downturn in the housing market and the contintian of the disruptions in the credit markets coulinit our
ability to access capital and increase our costsapital or stockholder dilution.

We have historically funded our homebuilding anwhficial services operations with internally gerestatash
flows and external sources of debt and equity fiiregn However, during the present housing downtwehave
relied primarily on the positive operating cashwilwe have generated to meet our working capitalis@ad repay
outstanding indebtedness. While we generated pesiferating cash flow in recent years, principilpugh the
receipt of federal income tax refunds, and from b@nd land sales and our efforts to reduce ouheaer and
operating expenses, the persistent weakness hotheing markets and the disruption in the creditketa since
2008 have reduced the availability and increaseatists to us of other sources of liquidity.

22




Table of Contents

Market conditions may significantly limit our altilito replace or refinance indebtedness, partitutare to the
lowering of our senior debt ratings by the threéagpal nationally recognized registered crediingiagencies, as
discussed further below. The terms of potentialreiissuances of indebtedness by us may be mdrietigs than
the terms governing our current indebtedness, lmdssuance, interest and debt service expensebertaigher.
Moreover, due to the deterioration in the credithets and the uncertainties that exist in the gdreronomy and
for homebuilders in particular, we cannot be carthat we would be able to replace existing finagar secure
additional sources of financing, if necessary,ems satisfactory to us or at all. In addition, skgnificant decline
in our stock price since 2006, the ongoing volstiln the stock markets and the reduction in oacldbolders’equity
relative to our debt could also impede our acoesise equity markets or increase the amount ofiditwour
stockholders would experience should we seek adl teeeise capital through issuance of equity.

While we believe we can meet our forecasted capgirements from our cash resources, expectadefaasl
flow and the sources of financing that we anti@patll be available to us, we can provide no assteahat we will
be able to do so, particularly if current diffichibusing or credit market or economic conditionstice or
deteriorate further. The effects on our businégsidity and financial results of these conditi@muld be material
and adverse to us.

We may not realize our deferred income tax assktaddition, our net operating loss carryforwardoald be
substantially limited if we experience an ownershipange as defined in the Internal Revenue Co

Since the end of our 2007 fiscal year, we have igeee significant net operating losses (“NOLs")d are may
generate additional NOLs in 2011. Under federaldass, we can use our NOLs (and certain relatedaslits) to
reduce our future taxable income for up to 20 yesdter which they expire for such purposes. Uhidly expire, we
can carry forward our NOLs (and certain relatedaiedits) that we do not use in any particular yeaeduce our
taxable income in future years, and we have recbedealuation allowance against net deferred tagtas
representing the NOLs (and certain related taxitskethat we have generated but have not yet exhlit
November 30, 2010, we had net deferred tax asstting $772.2 million against which we have predda
valuation allowance of $771.1 million. Our ability realize our net deferred tax assets is basedeoextent to
which we generate profits and we cannot provideasgrances as to when and to what extent we evikigte
future taxable income to realize our net defereedatssets, whether in whole or in part.

In addition, the benefits of our NOLSs, built-in §&% and tax credits would be reduced or eliminiited
experience an “ownership change,” as determineémimternal Revenue Code Section 382 (“Section BgR”"
Section 382 ownership change occurs if a stockihada group of stockholders who are deemed to @aweast 5%
of our common stock increase their ownership byaitban 50 percentage points over their lowest ostmigr
percentage within a rolling three-year period.nfavnership change occurs, Section 382 would impasannual
limit on the amount of NOLs we can use to reducetaxable income equal to the product of the tesdlie of our
outstanding equity immediately prior to the owngrsthange (reduced by certain items specified in
Section 382) and the federal long-term tax-exemigtréest rate in effect for the month of the owngrsihange. A
number of complex rules apply to calculating thigwal limit.

While the complexity of Section 382’s provisiongighe limited knowledge any public company has altioel
ownership of its publicly-traded stock make it itfit to determine whether an ownership changeolcasrred, we
currently believe that an ownership change hasoatrred. However, if an ownership change werectug the
annual limit Section 382 may impose could resull material amount of our NOLs expiring unused should
significantly impair the value of our NOLs and,asesult, have a negative impact on our consolitfit@ncial
position and results of operations.

In 2009, our stockholders approved an amendmemntrtoestated certificate of incorporation thatésigned to
block transfers of our common stock that could Iteéauan ownership change, and a rights agreemanstant to
which we have issued certain stock purchase righlsterms designed to deter transfers of our comstock that
could result in an ownership change. However, tinesasures cannot guarantee complete protectionsigai
ownership change and it remains possible that cneoucur.
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We have a substantial amount of indebtedness iratiein to our tangible net worth, which may restriour ability
to meet our operational and strategic goals.

As of November 30, 2010, we had total outstandielgt @f approximately $1.78 billion and total stockters’
equity of approximately $631.9 million. The amowhbur debt could have important consequencesekample, it
could:

« limit our ability to obtain future financingf working capital, capital expenditures, acquisisi, debt service
requirements or other business net

limit our ability to renew or, if necessaryaesirable, expand the capacity of our letter efiitrfacilities, and
to obtain performance bonds in the ordinary coofseur business

« require us to dedicate a substantial portioouo cash flow from operations to the paymentaf debt and
reduce our ability to use our cash flow for othergmses

impact our flexibility in planning for, or reactirtg, changes in our busine:

place us at a competitive disadvantage becausewerhore debt than some of our competitors;

* make us more vulnerable in the event of cathweakness or a further downturn in our business
general economic or housing market conditic

Our ability to meet our debt service and othergdiions will depend on our future performance. Business
is substantially affected by changes in economatesy Our revenues, earnings and cash flows vatythve level of
general economic activity and competition in thelets in which we operate. Our business could la¢saffected
by financial, political, regulatory, environmentaid other factors, many of which are beyond outrobrA higher
interest rate on our debt could adversely affectoperating results.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash fitom operations and external financing may not\zglable
to us in an amount sufficient to meet our debtiserabligations, fulfill the financial or operatiahobligations we
may have under certain unconsolidated joint vertargsactions, support our letter of credit fai@st(including our
cash-collateralized letter of credit facilities witarious financial institutions (the “LOC Faciég”)), or to fund our
other liquidity or operational needs. Further, @teange of control occurs as defined in the indengoverning our
$265.0 million of 9.1% senior notes due 2017 (265 Million Senior Notes”), we would be requireddffer to
purchase these notes (but not our other outstarseinigr notes) at 101% of their principal amounggether with all
accrued and unpaid interest, if any. If we are tsmadbgenerate sufficient cash flow from operationbave external
financing available to us, we may need to refinaater a portion of our debt obligations on or dref maturity,
which we may not be able to do on favorable termest @ll, or raise capital through equity issuartbes would
dilute existing stockholders’ interests.

Our ability to obtain external financing could bedwversely affected by a negative change in our ctedting by a
third-party rating agency.

Our ability to access external sources of financindavorable terms is a key factor in our abit@yfund our
operations and to grow our business. As of the ofatieis report, our credit rating by Fitch RatingBB-, with a
stable outlook, and our credit rating by Moody’sédator Services is B1, with a negative outlook.JOly 16, 2010,
Standard and Poor’s Financial Services lowereccredit rating to B+ from BB-, though it upgradesl dutlook
from negative to stable. Further downgrades ofooedit rating by any of these principal nationatgognized
registered credit rating agencies may make it ddfieult and costly for us to access external fioiag.

We may have difficulty in continuing to obtain thedditional financing required to operate and develour
business.

Our homebuilding operations require significant amts of cash and/or the availability of externahficing.
While we terminated the Credit Facility in 2010, established LOC Facilities in order to supportaieraspects of
our operations in the ordinary course of our busshecluding our acquisition of land assets anmddewrelopment ¢
communities. We anticipate that we will need tomtein these facilities in 2011, and, if necessarglasirable, we
may in the future seek to expand their capacityraer into additional such facilities. It is notsgible to predict the
future
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terms or availability of additional external capita for maintaining or, if necessary or desiral@epanding the
capacity of the LOC Facilities or entering into #idehal such facilities. Moreover, our outstandggnior notes
contain provisions that may restrict the amount raauire of debt we may incur in the future. Thexe be no
assurance that we can actually borrow additionad$yraise additional capital through other meansuccessfully
maintain or, if necessary or desirable, expand#pacity of the LOC Facilities or enter into aduiital such
facilities, each of which depends, among otherdfi@gton conditions in the capital markets and @rc@ved credit
worthiness, as discussed above. If conditionserctpital markets change significantly, it coulduee our ability ti
generate sales and may hinder our future growthresults of operations. Potential federal and stgalations
limiting the investment activities of financial titsitions, including regulations that have beemary be issued
under the recently enacted Dodd-Frank Act, coudd ahpact our ability to obtain additional finangiand to
maintain or, if necessary or desirable, expand-®€ Facilities or enter into additional such fag#is, in each case
on favorable terms or at all.

Our results of operations could be adversely afeatif we are unable to obtain performance bonds.

In the course of developing our communities, wegdiren required to provide to various municipa$itend
other government agencies performance bonds toesduel completion of our projects and to suppaonilar
development activities by certain of our unconsatkd joint ventures. Our ability to obtain such é®and the cost
to do so depend on our credit rating, overall mackpitalization, available capital, past operagicand financial
performance, management expertise and other faatotsding prevailing surety market conditions,igr
tightened in 2010 with certain providers exiting tharket or substantially reducing their issuamégeerformance
bonds, and the underwriting practices and resowftperformance bond issuers. If we are unablétain
performance bonds when required or the cost oradipeial restrictions or conditions imposed by issue obtain
them increases significantly, we may not be abléeteelop or we may be significantly delayed in depimg a
community or communities and/or we may incur sigaifit additional expenses, and, as a result, msaimated
financial position, results of operations, cashvBaand/or liquidity could be adversely affected.

Changes in accounting standards could affect oupmeted financial results.

New accounting standards or interpretations oftiexjsstandards that may become applicable to ukldwave ¢
significant effect on our reported results of opierss, and may also cause us to incur significdditeonal expenses
in order to comply with them.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

We lease our corporate headquarters in Los Ang€lagprnia. Our homebuilding division offices (et for
our San Antonio, Texas office) and our KB Home Riadire located in leased space in the marketsenher
conduct business. We own the premises for our Saano office.

We believe that such properties, including the popgint located therein, are suitable and adequateé& the
needs of our businesses.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
South Edge, LLC Litigation

On December 9, 2010, certain lenders to South Bdde, a Nevada limited liability company (“South gl
filed a Chapter 11 involuntary bankruptcy petitiorthe United States Bankruptcy Court, DistriciN&vada,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. v. South Edge, LLC (Case No. 10-32968-bam) . KB HOME Nevada Inc., our wholly-
owned subsidiary, is a member of South Edge togettik other unrelated homebuilders and a thirdypproperty
development firm. KB HOME Nevada Inc. holds a 48.B%rest in South Edge. The involuntary bankruptcy
petition alleges that South Edge failed to undertedetain development-related activities and tayegmounts due
on secured loans that the petitioning lenders &aisgd a lending syndicate) made to South Edgéivzand 2007,
totaling $585.0 million in initial aggregate pripal amount (the
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“Loans”). At November 30, 2010, the outstandingpifpal balance of the Loans was approximately ¥Ballion.
The Loans were used by South Edge to partiallynfieathe purchase and development of the undertyiogerty for
a residential community located near Las VegasaNavThe petitioning lenders for the involuntarpltraiptcy —
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, Nl @rédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Banlalse
filed motions to appoint a Chapter 11 trustee foutS Edge, and have asserted that, among othenacthe trustee
can enforce alleged obligations of the South Edgmbers to purchase land parcels from South Edgétingsin
repayment of the Loans. On January 6, 2011, Sodgfe filed a motion for the court to dismiss or bst@in from
the involuntary bankruptcy petition, and the caatieduled a trial that commenced on January 24, 26d is
planned to continue until no later than FebruarQ0L1. The exact timing of the court’s decisiontlo® motion is
uncertain.

We, KB HOME Nevada Inc., and the other South Edgentvers and their respective parent companies each
provided certain guaranties to the lenders in cotimie with the Loans, including a limited severabganty that, by
its terms, purports to guarantee the repaymeittedeinders of the Loans certain amounts, inclugnigcipal and
interest, if an involuntary bankruptcy petitiorfiled against South Edge that is not dismissediwi@® days or for
which an order approving relief under bankruptay ia entered (the “Springing Repayment Guaranty'dur
Springing Repayment Guaranty were enforced, ourimmam potential responsibility at November 30, 20dduld
have been approximately $180.0 million in aggregaitecipal amount, plus a potentially significam@unt for
accrued and unpaid interest and attorneys’ feessipect of the Loans. This potential Springing Repent
Guaranty obligation, however, does not accounafor offsets or defenses that could be availabiestm prevent or
minimize the impact of its enforcement, or any &dhn in the principal balance of the Loans aridirayn purchases
of land parcels from South Edge under authoritgptally given to a Chapter 11 trustee (as desdréimve) or
otherwise.

The petitioning lenders previously filed a lawsniDecember 2008 against the South Edge memberthaind
respective parent companies (including us and KBEMNevada Inc.) JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. v. KB HOME
Nevada, et al., U.S. District Court, District of Nevada (Case No. 08-CV-01711 PMP)) (the “Lender Litigation”).The
Lender Litigation, which, among other things, igléag to enforce completion guaranties and aldorice the South
Edge members (including KB HOME Nevada Inc.) toghaise land parcels from and to provide certaimfiia anc
other support to South Edge, has been stayed petiddroutcome of the involuntary bankruptcy petititf the
involuntary bankruptcy petition is dismissed, w@eat the Lender Litigation to resume.

A separate arbitration proceeding was also comnteimcklay 2009 to address one South Edge member’s
claims for specific performance by the other merslaard their respective parent companies to purdaageparcels
from and to make certain capital contributions taith Edge and, in the alternative, damages. OngJui@10, the
arbitration panel issued a decision denying theifipgoerformance claims and awarding to the claittatal
damages of approximately $37.0 million againsbhthe defendants. The parties involved have appethle
arbitration panel’s decision to the United Statesi@ of Appeal for the Ninth CircuiEocus South Group, LLC, et
al. v. KB HOME Nevada Inc, et al., (Case No. 10-17562) , and the case is pending. If the appeal on theagam
awarded by the arbitration panel is denied, KB HONEvada Inc. will be responsible for a share oséhdamages.

While there are defenses to the above legal prangedhe ultimate resolution of these mattersthediming
of such resolutions are uncertain and involve mpldtfactors. Therefore, a meaningful range of piidénutcomes
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. dwmfable outcomes were to occur, however, theaepisssibility
that we could incur significant losses in excesarabunts accrued for these matters that could hamaterial
adverse effect on our consolidated financial positnd results of operations.

Other Matters

We are also involved in litigation and governmertgeedings incidental to our business. These pducgg are
in various procedural stages and, based on repbctunsel, we believe as of the date of this refhat provisions
or accruals made for any potential losses (to xtene estimable) are adequate and that any liegsildr costs arising
out of these proceedings are not likely to haveatenally adverse effect on our consolidated finangosition or
results of operations. The outcome of any of thgseeedings, however, is inherently uncertain, ifndfavorable
outcomes were to occur, there is a possibility thay could, individually or in the aggregate, havwmaterially
adverse effect on our consolidated financial positr results of operations.

Item 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The following table presents certain informatiogaeding our executive officers as of December 81,02

Year Years
Assumed at Other Positions and Other
Present KB Business Experience within the
Name Age Present Position Position Home Last Five Years (a) From - To
Jeffrey T. Mezge 55 President and Chit 200¢ 17 Executive Vice President and Chief Operai  199¢-2006
Executive Officer (b, Officer
Jeff J. Kaminsk 49 Executive Vice President al 201(¢ — Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic  200¢-2010
Chief Financial Officer and Strategy Board member, Federal-Mogul
Corporation (a global supplier of automotive
powertrain and safety technologit
Senior Vice President, Global Purchasing 200¢5-2008
Strategy Board Member, Federal-Mogul
Corporation
Brian J. Woran 50 Executive Vice President, Gene 201( — Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Offic 200¢-2010
Counsel and Secretary H&R Block, Inc. (a provider of tax, banking
and business and consulting servic
Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer ¢ 2005-2009
Chief Compliance Officer, Centex
Corporation (a homebuilder and provider o
mortgage banking service
Glen W. Barnar( 66 Senior Vice President, KBn 200¢ 12 Regional General Manag 2004-2006
Group
William R. Hollinger 52 Senior Vice President ar 2007 23 Senior Vice President and Control 20012006
Chief Accounting Office
Thomas F. Nortol 40 Senior Vice President, Humi 200¢ 2 Chief Human Resources Officer,’s 200€-2009

Resources

(&) All positions described were with us, unless othsevindicated

(b) Mr. Mezger has served as a director since 2

Restaurants, Inc. (an owner and operator ¢
national full service restaurant
Senior Vice President of Human Resourt 2003-2006
American Golf Corporation (a worldwide golf
course management firr

There is no family relationship between any of executive officers or between any of our executiffcers

and any of our directors.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2010, there were 775 holdersaird of our common stock. Our common stock ideida
on the New York Stock Exchange under the tickerlsyitKBH.” The following table presents, for thenieds
indicated, the price ranges of our common stoc,csh dividends declared and paid per share:

Year Ended November 30, 2010 Year Ended November 30, 2009
Dividends Dividends Dividends Dividends
High Low Declared Paid High Low Declared Paid
First Quarte $17.3C $12.5¢ $.062¢ $.062t $16.3¢ $ 8.7C $.062¢ $.062¢
Second Quarte 20.1: 14.0% .062¢ .062¢ 19.61 7.8t .062¢ .062¢
Third Quartel 14.41 9.4: .062¢ .062¢ 19.0C 11.1¢ .062¢ .062¢
Fourth Quarte 13.1¢ 10.2¢ .062¢ .062¢ 20.7C 13.3i .062¢ .062¢

The declaration and payment of cash dividends arestof our common stock, whether at current levet
all, are at the discretion of our board of direst@nd depend upon, among other things, our expédtiere earning
cash flows, capital requirements, debt structutkatjustments thereto, operational and financiss$tment strate(
and general financial condition, as well as geneusiness conditions.

The description of our equity compensation plamgired by Iltem 201(d) of Regulation S-K is incoraiad
herein by reference to “Part lll — Item 12. Segufitwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mamaget and
Related Stockholder Matters” of this report.

We did not repurchase any of our equity securdi@ing the fourth quarter of 2010.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total netilkK B Home common stock, the S&P 500 Index, the
S&P Homebuilding Index and the Dow Jones Home Quaaosbn Index for the last five year-end periodsiesh
November 30

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
Among KB Home, S&P 500 Index, S&P Homebuilding
Index and Dow Jones Home Construction Index
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The above graph is based on the KB Home commok staet index prices calculated as of the last tigadiay
before December 1 of the year-end periods preseAtedf November 30, 2010, the closing price of KBme
common stock on the New York Stock Exchange was3Rlfier share. On December 31, 2010, our commaR sto
closed at $13.49 per share. The performance of@umon stock depicted in the graphs above repregast
performance only and is not indicative of futurefpemance. Total return assumes $100 invested dtahalose on
November 30, 2005 in KB Home common stock, the S&B Index, the S&P Homebuilding Index and the C
Jones Home Construction Index including reinvestroédividends.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The data in this table should be read in conjunctith Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Raial
Condition and Results of Operations and our Codatdd Financial Statements and the Notes theret. &e
included later in this report.

KB HOME
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Homebuilding:

Revenue! $1,581,76. $1,816,41! $3,023,16' $ 6,400,59. $9,359,84.

Operating income (los! (16,045 (236,52() (860,649 (1,358,33) 570,31¢

Total asset 3,080,301 3,402,56! 3,992,14! 5,661,56. 7,825,33

Mortgages and notes payal 1,775,562 1,820,37( 1,94153 2,161,79. 2,920,333
Financial services

Revenue! $ 823 % 843t 3% 10,761 $ 1593t $ 20,24(

Operating incom: 5,11¢ 5,18¢ 6,27¢ 11,13¢ 14,317

Total asset 29,44 33,42« 52,15: 44,39: 44,024
Discontinued operation

Total asset $ — $ — $ — $ — $1,394,37!
Consolidated

Revenue! $1,589,991 $1,824,85( $3,033,93! $ 6,416,521 $9,380,08:

Operating income (los! (10,93) (231,33f) (854,365 (1,347,19) 584,63:

Income (loss) from continuing operatic (69,36¢) (101,789 (976,13) (1,414,77) 392,94

Income from discontinued operations, net of

income taxes (& — — — 485,35t 89,40

Net income (loss (69,36¢) (101,789 (976,13) (929,419 482,35:

Total asset 3,109,74¢ 3,435,98' 4,044,301 5,705,995 9,263,73

Mortgages and notes payal 1,775,52' 1,820,37( 1,941,53 2,161,79. 2,920,33

Stockholder equity 631,87¢ 707,22: 830,60 1,850,68 2,922,74
Basic earnings (loss) per sha

Continuing operation $ (.90 $ (1.39% (1259% (1839 % 4.9¢

Discontinued operatior — — — 6.2¢ 1.1:

Basic earnings (loss) per shi $ (.90 $ (1.39% (1259% (12.0H) % 6.12
Diluted earnings (loss) per sha

Continuing operation $ (90% (1.39% (1259% (18.39)% 4.7¢

Discontinued operatior — — — 6.2¢ 1.0¢

Diluted earnings (loss) per sh $ (90% (1.39% (1259% (12.09¢% 5.82
Cash dividends declared per common sl $ 2t $ 28§ .B12t $ 1.0C $ 1.0C

(a) Discontinued operations consist only of our forfaerFnch operations, which have been presented esntiisuec
operations for all periods presented. Income frasoahtinued operations, net of income taxes, in72@6ludes
gain of $438.1 million realized on the sale of @armer French operation
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview. Revenues are generated from our homebuilding apesaand our financial services operations.
The following table presents a summary of our cbdated results of operations for the years endedelhber 30,
2010, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands, except per simaoents):

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008
Revenues
Homebuilding $1,581,76. $1,816,41 $3,023,16!
Financial service 8,23: 8,43¢ 10,76
Total $1,589,99 $1,824,85( $3,033,93!
Pretax income (loss
Homebuilding $ (88,51) $ (330,38) $ (991,749
Financial service 12,14 19,19¢ 23,81¢
Total pretax los: (76,36%¢) (311,189 (967,93)
Income tax benefit (expens 7,00( 209,40( (8,200)
Net loss $ (69,369 $ (101,789 $ (976,13)
Basic and diluted loss per sh: $ (90) $ (1.39) $ (1259

During the year ended November 30, 2010, we antidahgebuilding industry continued to face a difficul
operating environment amid the ongoing housing damnthat began in mid-2006. This environment, hick
there is a persistent oversupply of homes avaifflsale and soft demand for new homes, was pgeldn
throughout 2010 by rising sales of lender-owned é®acquired through foreclosures and short satesrglly
weak economic conditions, high unemployment, tightertgage lending standards and reduced creditaidy,
muted consumer confidence, intense competitiomdone sales, and the expiration on April 30 of a&fal
homebuyer tax credit. These negative factors unithechprogress toward broad-based market staboizaind
stalled any meaningful recovery in the overall th8using market, despite improved affordabilityseveral marke
stemming from lower home selling prices and reldtivow residential consumer mortgage intereststate

Although this environment resulted in our delivgriewer homes and, consequently, generating logxamue:
in 2010 compared to 2009, we narrowed our netito2910 by 32% due to a higher housing gross maagdlowe
overhead costs. In addition, we generated operatoagme from our homebuilding operations in eactheflast two
quarters of 2010; achieved year-over-year improvermeour pretax results in each quarter of 20k€rmding a
trend of such improvement to 11 consecutive qusirard in the fourth quarter of 2010 generatedapreairnings fc
the first time in nearly four years. These improvesults were largely due to the initiatives weéput into place
over the past several quarters to achieve theviolip three primary integrated strategic goals:aesand maintain
the profitability of our homebuilding operationgrgrate cash and maintain a strong balance sineeposition our
business to capitalize on future growth opportesitiThis includes continuing to execute on our KiRiperational
business model; improving and refining our prodaférings, includingThe Open Series, to compete with resale
homes and to meet the affordability demands and@mwental sustainability concerns of our core cosirs —
first-time, move-u@nd active adult homebuyers; aligning our overhearirrent market conditions while retaini
a solid growth platform through a tight focus omtrolling costs, improving our operating efficieesiand
monitoring local market activity levels and demaariz trends; maintaining a strong and liquid bataskeet to
allow us to make opportunistic investments in ausibess; and acquiring attractively-priced new lanterests
meeting our investment standards in desirable nsakith perceived favorable growth prospects. Weete these
initiatives have helped position us operationatig éinancially to be able to generate higher fureneenues and
sustained profitability as and to the extent hogisirarkets improve over time. Given the present atpey
environment and our outlook, however, the positieads in our gross margin and earnings resultsmagontinue
in 2011 or to the same degree as in 2010.
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In 2010, we continued to make progress toward &ofgeour highest priority of restoring and mainfagthe
profitability of our homebuilding operations, as n@&rowed our net loss on a year-over-year basis. result was
largely driven by lower pretax, noncash chargesfset impairments and land option contract abandats, as
well as our success in expanding our housing gresgin and reducing our selling, general and adstritive
expenses.

Our total revenues of $1.59 billion for the yeadett November 30, 2010 decreased 13% from $1.98rbih
2009, which had declined 40% from $3.03 billio2B08. Revenues decreased in 2010 and 2009 prinaardyo
lower housing and land sale revenues. The yearym@r decrease in housing revenues in 2010 refldeteer
homes delivered, partly offset by a higher aversgkng price. In 2009, the decline in housing rawes resulted
from a decrease in homes delivered and a loweageeselling price. Homes delivered decreased i 20 2009
mainly due to our operating with a strategicallywés overall average active community count in egedr compare
to the previous year, as discussed above undet FRaitem 1. Business — Strategy.” “Active commties” are
those that deliver five or more homes in a quarteporting period. The active community counttfog year is
based on the average of the quarterly reportingg®rLand sale revenues totaled $6.3 million ih®6ompared to
$58.3 million in 2009, reflecting a significantlgduced volume of land sales activity.

Our overall average selling price increased in 28d@pared to 2009 primarily due to changes in comtyu
and product mix, as we delivered more homes fromkets that supported higher selling prices. In 2@Q8 overall
average selling price declined from 2008, reflegtime challenging housing market conditions anensé
competition for sales as well as our rollout of mrawduct, includingrhe Open Series, at lower price points
compared to our previous product.

Included in our total revenues were financial segirevenues of $8.2 million in 2010, $8.4 millinr2009 anc
$10.8 million in 2008. Financial services revendesreased in both 2010 and 2009, reflecting fewerds
delivered by our homebuilding operations.

We posted a net loss of $69.4 million, or $.90gikrted share, in 2010, which narrowed from ourlos$ of
$101.8 million, or $1.33 per diluted share, in 20002010, our net loss included pretax, noncastigas of
$19.9 million for inventory impairments and the alanment of land option contracts we no longer péahto
pursue, an aftetax valuation allowance charge of $26.6 millioniaganet deferred tax assets to fully reserve dh
benefits generated from our net loss for the peaod an income tax benefit of $7.0 million, prifhaassociated
with an increase in the carryback of our 2009 N@Lsffset earnings we generated in 2004 and 2008.riajority
of the inventory impairments and land option cotitebandonments in 2010 occurred during the fustrigr and
affected our Central and Southeast reporting setgnen

In 2009, our net loss of $101.8 million, or $1.38 giluted share, was largely due to pretax, ndncharges of
$206.7 million for inventory and joint venture impaents and the abandonment of land option corgrddtese
charges reflected the ongoing weakness in housargehconditions, which depressed asset valuesnigjarity of
these charges were associated with our West Cods$@utheast reporting segments. The net lossd8 a3o
included an income tax benefit of $209.4 milliorhigh primarily resulted from federal tax legislatienacted in the
fourth quarter of 2009 that allowed us to carrykbaar 2009 NOLSs to offset earnings we generatezDiod and
2005. As a result, we received a federal tax refafrflL90.7 million in the first quarter of 2010.

In 2008, we incurred a net loss of $976.1 million$12.59 per diluted share, largely due to prataxcash
charges of $748.6 million for inventory and joirmnture impairments and the abandonment of landwgbntracts,
and $68.0 million for goodwill impairments. Most thiese charges were associated with our West Coasthwest
and Southeast reporting segments. The net 09308 also reflected a $355.9 million valuation alkmee charge
against net deferred tax assets to fully resergaak benefits generated from our pretax losshfemeriod.

Our housing gross margin increased to 17.4% in 2@40 6.5% in 2009 and negative 7.1% in 2008. Wesha
improved our housing gross margin for the last mioesecutive quarters, as measured on a yearyeaebasis. T
improvement in our housing gross margin in 2010 garad to 2009 primarily reflected improved opemgtin
efficiencies, an increase in the number of homéigated from our new products, suchT® Open Series, which
are designed to be built with lower direct condinrccosts, a decrease in inventory impairmentland option
contract abandonment charges, and the impact efitovy impairment charges incurred in prior yeatsich
lowered our land cost basis with respect to theveeit communities. In 2009, the year-over-yeargase in our
housing gross margin resulted from lower inveniargairment and land option contract abandonmemntgasaand
our strategies to reduce direct construction castsincrease our operational efficiencies. Our imgugross margin,
excluding inventory impairment and land option cant abandonment charges (as described below tiNdar
GAAP Financial Measures”), improved to 18.6% in @0dompared to 15.5% in 2009 and 10.6% in 2008.
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Our backlog at November 30, 2010 was comprised386Lhomes, representing projected future housing
revenues of approximately $263.8 million, compéared backlog at November 30, 2009 of 2,126 homes,
representing projected future housing revenueg®2$% million. The number of homes in backlog desdi 37%
year over year, reflecting a decrease in net ordet®e latter half of 2010 and an increase ingeecentage of hom
delivered from our backlog in the fourth quarteartly due to improved construction cycle times. Pogential
future housing revenues in backlog decreased 3&ooxeer year, reflecting the lower level of homedacklog.
Net orders from our homebuilding operations dedi@&% to 6,556 in 2010 from 8,341 in 2009 due 12%
decrease in our overall average active communimt@enerally weak economic and housing marketlitions, a
sharp reduction in demand following the April 301D expiration of the federal homebuyer tax creadit] an
increase in our cancellation rate. As a percentdgeoss orders, our cancellation rate increase&8% in 2010,
compared to 25% in 2009.

Our cash, cash equivalents and restricted casledd$d.02 billion at November 30, 2010, compared to
$1.29 billion at November 30, 2009. Our debt batgaacNovember 30, 2010 was $1.78 billion, down from
$1.82 billion at November 30, 2009, mainly duehe tepayment of mortgages and land contracts diaadosellers
and other loans. At November 30, 2010, our ratidedit to total capital was 73.8%, compared to 72a0%
November 30, 2009. Our ratio of net debt to toggdital (as described below un*Non-GAAP Financial
Measures”) was 54.5% at November 30, 2010 and 4219%vember 30, 2009.

Our inventory balance of $1.70 billion at NovemB8&r 2010 was 13% higher than the $1.50 billion mhedsat
November 30, 2009. This increase primarily reflddtee results of our land acquisition initiative2@10, as
discussed above under “Part | — Item 1. BusinesStrategy.” Through this initiative, we ended oud@Giscal
year with a geographically diverse land portfolmrprised of 39,540 lots owned or controlled, coredap 37,46
lots owned or controlled at November 30, 2009.

HOMEBUILDING

We have grouped our homebuilding activities intorfeeportable segments, which we refer to as Weast;
Southwest, Central and Southeast. As of Novembge2@ID, our reportable homebuilding segments ctatsisf
ongoing operations located in the following staWsst Coast — California; Southwest — Arizona arevétla;
Central — Colorado and Texas; and Southeast —ddpMaryland, North Carolina, and Virginia.

The following table presents a summary of certaiarfcial and operational data for our homebuilding
operations (dollars in thousands, except averdtjagsprice):

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008
Revenues
Housing $ 1,575,48 $ 1,758,15 $ 2,940,24.
Land 6,27¢ 58,25¢ 82,92¢
Total 1,581,76: 1,816,41! 3,023,16!
Costs and expense
Construction and land cos
Housing (1,301,67) (1,643,75) (3,149,08)
Land (6,617) (106,15¢) (165,737)
Total (1,308,28) (1,749,91) (3,314,81)
Selling, general and administrative exper (289,52() (303,029 (501,02)
Goodwill impairmen — — (67,970
Total (1,597,80)) (2,052,93) (3,883,81)
Operating los: $ (16,045 $ (236,52() $ (860,64)
Homes delivere: 7,34¢€ 8,48¢ 12,43¢
Average selling pric: $ 214,50( $ 207,10( $ 236,40(
Housing gross margi 17.%% 6.5% (7.)%
Selling, general and administrative expenses & @eptage of housir
revenue: 18.4% 17.2% 17.(%
Operating loss as a percentage of homebuildingeas 1.0% (13.0% (28.5%
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Revenues. Homebuilding revenues totaled $1.58 billion il@pdecreasing 13% from $1.82 billion in 2009,
which had decreased 40% from $3.02 billion in 200& year-over-yeatecreases in 2010 and 2009 reflected I
housing and land sale revenues.

Housing revenues decreased to $1.58 billion in 2@tfpared to $1.76 billion in 2009 and $2.94 hillia
2008. In 2010, housing revenues declined 10% flwrptevious year due to a 13% decrease in homesick,
partly offset by a 4% increase in the averagersgfirice. In 2009, housing revenues fell 40% fra@¥@&due to a
32% decrease in homes delivered and a 12% dealitheeiaverage selling price.

In 2010, we delivered 7,346 homes, down from 8 A@&®es in 2009. Each of our homebuilding reporting
segments delivered fewer homes in 2010 compar2d@8, with decreases ranging from 4% to 27%. The
yearover-year decline in the total number of homesvdedd in 2010 was principally due to a 12% deaeaghe
overall average number of active communities weatpe and weak demand for new homes. This dedlio@ii
overall average active community count reflectsithgact of the reduction in our community countt tva
undertook in prior years, although in 2010 we impdaited a targeted land acquisition initiative featesigned to
support future growth in our average active comryurunt and our revenues. These actions are fudibeussed
above under “Part | — Item 1. Business — Strategy.”

In 2009, we delivered 8,488 homes, down from 12 4&8es delivered in 2008, with year-over-year deses
in each of our homebuilding reporting segments. Iblager delivery volume in 2009 compared to 2008 wesnly
due to a 38% reduction in the overall average nurabactive communities we operated.

The average selling price of our homes rose to F2Din 2010 from $207,100 in 2009, reflecting l@gh
average selling prices in three of our four homigling reporting segments. Year over year, averatjmg prices
increased 10% in our West Coast segment, 5% itCentral segment and 1% in our Southeast segmeatirin
Southwest segment, the average selling price fb® 2@creased 8% from 2009. The increase in ouatharerage
selling price was primarily due to changes in aummunity and product mix, as we delivered more hofnam
markets that supported higher selling prices.

Our 2009 overall average selling price decreaséd ft8m $236,400 in 2008 as average selling priessinkd
11% in our West Coast segment, 25% in our Southseggnhent, 11% in our Central segment and 16% in our
Southeast segment. In 2009, selling price declwbih varied depending on local market circumstsnoccurred
because of difficult economic and job market cdndg, intense competition from homebuilders antésebf
existing homes (including lendewned homes acquired through foreclosures and shtas), and our rollout of ni
product at price points lower than those of ourjmes product to meet consumer demand for moredsfade
homes.

Land sale revenues totaled $6.3 million in 201@®.3$5nillion in 2009 and $82.9 million in 2008. Gealdy,
land sale revenues fluctuate with our decisiompamtain or decrease our land ownership positiazeitain marke
based upon the volume of our holdings, our margedinategy, the strength and number of competingldpers
entering particular markets at given points in tithe availability of land in markets we serve, gnévailing marke
conditions. Land sale revenues were more significa®009 and 2008 compared to 2010 because weasgidater
volume of land in those years, rather than holdrifuture development, as the housing downturrtinaed and the
land no longer fit our marketing strategy.

Operating Loss.  Our homebuilding business generated operatirsgfsf $16.0 million in 2010,
$236.5 million in 2009 and $860.6 million in 20@Bur homebuilding operating loss as a percentage of
homebuilding revenues was negative 1.0% in 201§atiee 13.0% in 2009, and negative 28.5% in 2008.
Homebuilding operating results improved on a petags basis in 2010 and 2009, mainly due to theeas® in our
housing gross margin in each of those years.

Within our homebuilding operations, the 2010 ogderploss was principally due to pretax, noncashrgés of
$19.9 million for inventory impairments and landiop contract abandonments. In 2009, our homemgldi
operating loss was largely due to pretax, nonchahges of $157.6 million for inventory impairmeatsd land
option contract abandonments. The 2008 homebuildp®gating loss reflected pretax, noncash charfjes o
$520.5 million for inventory impairments and langtion contract abandonments and $68.0 million fowdyvill
impairments, as well as a lower housing gross matgventory impairment charges in 2010, 2009 ab@B2vere
incurred as a result of persistent increases isihgusupply and decreases in demand, both of whitkdownward
pressure on sales prices and, in turn,
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asset values. During these years, poor market tonslialso depressed land values and led us tartarenour land
option contracts on projects that no longer metiouestment and/or marketing standards.

Our housing gross margin improved by 10.9 percenpagnts to 17.4% in 2010 from 6.5% in 2009. Our
housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairireemd land option contract abandonment chargessased by
3.1 percentage points to 18.6% in 2010 from 155%009. The year-over-year improvement in our haygross
margin, excluding inventory impairment and landi@picontract abandonment charges, reflected aeaserin
homes delivered from our new, value-engineeredymisd such a¥he Open Series, which are designed to be built
with lower direct construction costs, and improwegerating efficiencies. Our housing gross margigada0 was als
favorably impacted by an increase in homes deltv&n@m communities newly opened during the yeaictvihad a
relatively lower land cost basis compared to mainyuo older communities; an increase in homes dedigt from
markets that supported higher selling prices; aedrhpact of inventory impairment charges incuiregrior years,
which lowered our land cost basis with respechéorelevant communities. In light of the soft deghand intense
competition for sales in the present operating rmvnent, however, we may not experience similargmnar
improvement in 2011.

In 2009, the homebuilding operating loss was $2&tilkon compared to $860.6 million in 2008. As a
percentage of homebuilding revenues, our homelmgjldperating loss was negative 13.0% in 2009 agdtie
28.5% in 2008. The 2009 homebuilding operating f@sowed from 2008 mainly due to an increase inhowsing
gross margin, which improved by 13.6 percentagatpdo 6.5% in 2009 from negative 7.1% in 2008. Bawsing
gross margin, excluding inventory impairment anttlaption contract abandonment charges, increasddb
percentage points to 15.5% in 2009 from 10.6% ®82d he year-over-year improvement in our housirgs
margin reflected the impact of our delivering mof@ur new value-engineered product, which helpsel direct
construction costs, and increased operating efffdtés. Our margins were also favorably impactedhbgntory-
related charges incurred in prior periods.

Our land sales generated losses of $.3 milliorDit02 $47.9 million in 2009 and $82.8 million in B he
land sale losses in 2010, 2009 and 2008 includgedimment charges of $.3 million, $10.5 million &&86.2 million,
respectively, related to planned future land sales.

We evaluate our land and housing inventory for vecability in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification Topic No. 360, “Property, Plant, angquipment” (“ASC 360"), whenever indicators of patiah
impairment exist. Based on our evaluations, wegeized pretax, noncash charges for inventory inmperiits of
$9.8 million in 2010, $120.8 million in 2009 and@§b9 million in 2008.

The inventory impairment charges in all three yeafiected declining asset values in certain markete to th
challenging economic and housing market conditiGusther deterioration in housing market supply dechand
factors may lead to additional impairment chargesanise us to reevaluate our strategy concernirgicassets
that could result in future charges associated laitkl sales or the abandonment of land option aotgr

When we decide not to exercise certain land opta@rtracts due to market conditions and/or changes i
marketing strategy, we write off the costs, inchglhon-refundable deposits and pre-acquisitions¢ostated to the
abandoned projects. We recognized abandonmenteshasgociated with land option contracts of $10llomin
2010, $47.3 million in 2009 and $40.9 million inGA Inventory impairment and land option contrdzredonment
charges are included in construction and land dnsisr consolidated statements of operations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses i289.5 million in 2010, down from $303.0 milliam2009,
which had decreased from $501.0 million in 2008 Vhar-over-year decrease in each period reflestgdns we
have taken to streamline our organizational stngdy consolidating certain homebuilding operatj@tsategically
exiting or winding down activity in certain marketand reducing our workforce to adjust the sizewfoperations
in line with market conditions. Our selling, genexrad administrative expenses also decreased id 20d 2009
based on the lower volume of homes delivered. Aiguoiof the cost reductions in 2010 and 2009 welated to
lower salary and other payroll-related expenseasstieg from year-over-year decreases in our perdarmat of
7% in 2010 and 24% in 2009. As a percentage ofihgusvenues, to which these expenses are mogtlylos
correlated, selling, general and administrativeegges increased to 18.4% in 2010 from 17.2% in 208&h had
increased slightly from 17.0% in 2008. The percgesancreased in 2010 and 2009 because our exphsdions
have been outpaced by the corresponding year-aaardeclines in our housing revenues.
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Goodwill Impairment. We recorded goodwill in connection with variowgjaisitions in prior years. Goodwill
represented the excess of the purchase price lowéait value of net assets acquired. We testedwitidor
potential impairment annually as of November 30 betlveen annual tests if an event occurred or mistances
changed that would more likely than not reduceftiirevalue of a reporting unit below its carryinghaunt. During
2008, we determined that it was necessary to eteay@dwill for impairment between annual tests tue
deteriorating conditions in certain housing marlatd the significant inventory impairments we idféed and
recognized in that year.

Based on the results of our goodwill impairmentieaions performed in 2008, we determined that&ihe
goodwill previously recorded was impaired. As autesve recognized goodwill impairment charges of
$24.6 million related to our Central reporting segmand $43.4 million related to our Southeast ntipp segment
during 2008. These charges were recorded at oporate level because all goodwill was carried at kavel. We
had no goodwill balance as of November 30, 201Qdxter 30, 2009 or November 30, 2008.

Interest Income. Interest income, which is generated from sharitmvestments and mortgages receivable,
totaled $2.1 million in 2010, $7.5 million in 20@&d $34.6 million in 2008. Generally, increases decreases in
interest income are attributable to changes inrtezest-bearing average balances of our short-tevestments and
mortgages receivable, as well as fluctuations terést rates. Mortgages receivable are primarigted to land
sales. The year-over-year decrease in interestriaéo 2010 was mainly due to lower interest rat@2009, the
yearover-year decline in interest income reflectedtardase in the average balance of cash and castalegts we
maintained and lower interest rates.

Interest Expense, Net of Amounts Capitalized/Loss on Early Redemption of Debt. Interest expense results
principally from borrowings to finance land purchashousing inventory and other operating and ahpéeds. Our
interest expense, net of amounts capitalized,&dt®#66.5 million in 2010, $50.8 million in 2009 a$®&.6 million in
2008. Interest expense in 2010 included a tot&lld® million of debt issuance costs written oftonnection with
our voluntary reduction of the aggregate commitmartder the Credit Facility from $650.0 million t@@).0 million
and our subsequent voluntary termination of thediCfeacility. The percentage of interest capitadizeas 45% in
2010, 57% in 2009 and 98% in 2008. The percentiyeX)10 and 2009 decreased from the correspongiag
earlier periods due to the lower amounts of inventpalifying for interest capitalization. Grosgerest incurred
during 2010 increased by $2.6 million to $122.2lionil, from $119.6 million in 2009 primarily due tbe write-off
of debt issuance costs and a higher overall avenageest rate for borrowings in 2010. Gross irdenecurred
during 2009 decreased by $36.8 million from $156ilion in 2008, reflecting comparatively lower aedl debt
levels in 2009.

In 2009, our loss on early redemption of debt &xteé§1.0 million. This amount represented a $3.Taniloss
associated with our early redemption of $250.0iamilin aggregate principal amount of our $350.0iatilof 63/ 8
% senior notes due 2011 (the “$350 Million Seniotés”), partly offset by a gain of $2.7 million asgmted with
our early extinguishment of mortgages and landremtd due to land sellers and other loans. In 2008loss on
early redemption of debt of $10.4 million was coisgd of $7.1 million associated with our redempidn
$300.0 million of our 2/ 4% senior subordinated notes due 2010 (the “$300dviBenior Subordinated Notes”)
and $3.3 million associated with an amendment @fQhedit Facility, which reduced our aggregate catment
under the Credit Facility.

Equity in Loss of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures. Our unconsolidated joint ventures operate inowagimarkets
typically where our homebuilding operations areated. These unconsolidated joint ventures postetboeed
revenues of $122.2 million in 2010, $60.8 million2009 and $112.8 million in 2008. The year-ovearyacrease i
unconsolidated joint venture revenues in 2010 wasapily related to the sale of land by an uncoitsded joint
venture in our Southeast reporting segment. The-gear-year decrease in unconsolidated joint ventavenues in
2009 was primarily due to a decline in the numbdrames delivered by the unconsolidated joint vesgu
Activities performed by our unconsolidated joinhwgres generally include acquiring, developing seling land,
and, in some cases, constructing and deliveringeso@ur unconsolidated joint ventures delivered H@2es in
2010, 141 homes in 2009 and 262 homes in 200&ctefh in part the lower number of unconsolidatgdtjventure
investments we had each year. Our unconsolidatetijentures generated combined losses of $171®mih
2010, $102.9 million in 2009 and $383.6 million2B08. Our equity in loss of unconsolidated jointtvees totaled
$6.3 million in 2010, $49.6 million in 2009 and £18 million in 2008. In 2009 and 2008, our equityass of
unconsolidated joint ventures included charges38t% million and $141.9 million, respectively, gcognize the
impairment of certain unconsolidated joint ventysamarily in our West Coast, Southwest and Sowuthegporting
segments. There were no such charges in 2010.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This report contains information about our hougingss margin, excluding inventory impairment antlla
option contract abandonment charges, and our gatiet debt to total capital, both of which are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfee (“GAAP”). We believe these non-GAAP financial
measures are relevant and useful to investorsderstanding our operations and the leverage emglioyeur
operations, and may be helpful in comparing us witter companies in the homebuilding industry méRktent the'
provide similar information. However, because tbeging gross margin, excluding inventory impairmemd land
option contract abandonment charges, and theahtiet debt to total capital are not calculateddnordance with
GAAP, these measures may not be completely comigat@iother companies in the homebuilding induatrg thus
should not be considered in isolation or as anradtése to operating performance measures presthigeSAAP.
Rather, these non-GAAP financial measures shoulasbd to supplement their respective most diredtiyparable
GAAP financial measures in order to provide a greahderstanding of the factors and trends affgainr
operations.

Housing Gross Margin, Excluding Inventory Impairment and Land Option Contract Abandonment Charges.
The following table reconciles our housing grosergin calculated in accordance with GAAP to tha-BAAP
financial measure of our housing gross margin,weknly inventory impairment and land option contract
abandonment charges (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008

Housing revenue $157548  $1,758,15  $2,940,24.
Housing construction and land co (1,301,67) (1,643,75) (3,149,08)
Housing gross margi 273,81( 114,40( (208,84
Add: Inventory impairment and land option contralshndonment

charges 19,57% 157,64. 520,54:
Housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairinemd land

option contract abandonment char $ 29338 $ 272,04 $ 311,70:
Housing gross margin as a percentage of housirentes 17.4% 6.5% (7.9)%
Housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairinemd land

option contract abandonment charges, as a pere@sotdgpusing

revenues 18.€% 15.5% 10.6%

Housing gross margin, excluding inventory impairtreamd land option contract abandonment chargesnan-
GAAP financial measure, which we calculate by divighousing revenues less housing constructionardicosts
before pretax, noncash inventory impairment and [@stion contract abandonment charges associatacheuising
operations recorded during a given period, by hmgusévenues. The most directly comparable GAAPhiiie
measure is housing gross margin. We believe houpiogs margin, excluding inventory impairment aaad option
contract abandonment charges, is a relevant aridl useasure to investors in evaluating our perfarogaas it
measures the gross profit we generated specifioallhe homes delivered during a given period aréeces the
comparability of housing gross margin between mkxid his financial measure assists us in makiregesiic
decisions regarding product mix, product pricing aonstruction pace. We also believe investorsfimitl housing
gross margin, excluding inventory impairment anttlaption contract abandonment charges, relevahtuseful
because it represents a profitability measurertteat be compared to a prior period without regardat@ability of
charges for inventory impairments or land optiontcact abandonments.
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Ratio of Net Debt to Total Capital. The following table reconciles our ratio of débtotal capital calculated in
accordance with GAAP to the non-GAAP financial megasf our ratio of net debt to total capital (dod in
thousands):

November 30,

2010 2009

Mortgages and notes payal $1,775,52! $ 1,820,371
Stockholder' equity 631,87¢ 707,22¢

Total capital $2,407,40  $2,527,59
Ratio of debt to capite 73.8% 72.(%
Mortgages and notes payal $1,775,52! $ 1,820,371
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and restrictec (1,019,87) (1,289,00)

Net debt 755,65: 531,36:
Stockholder equity 631,87¢ 707,22¢

Total capital $ 1,387,52! $1,238,58
Ratio of net debt to total capit 54.5% 42.%

The ratio of net debt to total capital is a non-GAfinancial measure, which we calculate by dividing
mortgages and notes payable, net of homebuildisly aad cash equivalents and restricted cash, alycapital
(mortgages and notes payable, net of homebuildis§ and cash equivalents and restricted cashstgakholders’
equity). The most directly comparable GAAP finahameasure is the ratio of debt to capital. We helithe ratio of
net debt to total capital is a relevant and usefehisure to investors in understanding the levezagsoyed in our
operations and as an indicator of our ability tta@bexternal financing.

HOMEBUILDING SEGMENTS

The following table presents financial informatibated to our homebuilding reporting segmentgHeryears
indicated (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
West Coast
Revenue! $ 700,64! $ 812,200 $1,055,02
Construction and land cos (545,98 (792,18) (1,202,05,)
Selling, general and administrative exper (64,459 (79,659 (120,446
Operating income (los! 90,20: (59,63¢) (267,479
Other, ne (29,959 (28,809 (30,56%)
Pretax income (los $ 60,25( $ (88,447 $ (298,04)
Southwest
Revenue! $ 187,73t $ 218,09%¢ $ 618,01«
Construction and land cos (141,88) (210,26%) (722,649
Selling, general and administrative exper (45,467 (35,485 (69,86°)
Operating income (los: 39C (27,657 (174,49
Other, ne (16,197 (20,91Y (37,700
Pretax los: $ (15,80 $ (4857) $ (212,199
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Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008
Central:
Revenue! $ 436,400 $ 434,400 $ 594,31
Construction and land cos (364,730) (391,27 (570,51
Selling, general and administrative exper (62,55() (62,645 (96,30¢6)
Operating income (los! 9,11¢ (19,519 (72,509
Other, ne (10,890 (9,869 (10,28¢)
Pretax los $ (@779 $ (29,38) $ (82,789
Southeast
Revenue: $ 256,97¢ $ 351,71 $ 755,81
Construction and land cos (245,419 (346,729 (808,35¢)
Selling, general and administrative exper (36,055 (40,097 (125,799
Operating los! (24,499 (35,109 (178,33Y
Other, ne (18,309 (43,309 (80,239
Pretax los: $ (42,80) $ (78,419 $ (258,569

The following table presents information concerning housing revenues, homes delivered and avekrdljeg
price by homebuilding reporting segment:

Percentage Percentage
of of
Total Total Average
Housing Housing Homes Homes Selling
Years Ended November 30, Revenues Revenues Delivered Delivered Price
(in thousands’
2010
West Coas $ 700,64 44% 2,027 27% $346,30!
Southwes 181,91° 12 1,15( 16 158,20(
Central 435,94 28 2,66: 36 163,70(
Southeas 256,97¢ 16 1,51(C 21 170,20(
Total $1,575,48 10C% 7,34¢ 100% $214,50(
2009
West Coas $ 772,88t 44% 2,45: 29% $315,10(
Southwes 206,74 12 1,20z 14 172,00(
Central 430,79¢ 24 2,771 33 155,50(
Southeas 347,72! 20 2,062 24 168,60(
Total $1,758,15 10C% 8,48¢ 100% $207,10(
2008
West Coas $ 1,054,25! 36% 2,97: 24% $354,70!
Southwes 548,54 19 2,39¢ 19 229,20(
Central 585,82¢ 20 3,34¢ 27 175,00(
Southeas 751,61! 25 3,72 30 201,80(
Total $ 2,940,224, 100%  12,43¢ 100% $236,40(

West Coast . Our West Coast segment generated total revesfug#00.7 million in 2010, down 14% from
$812.2 million in 2009 mainly due to lower housi@yenues. All of this segmesttevenues in 2010 were gener:
from housing operations. Housing revenues decrdags8&6 in 2010 from $772.9 million in 2009 due X%
decline in homes delivered, partially offset byO#dlincrease in the average selling price. Homeseted
decreased to 2,023 in 2010 from 2,453 homes in ,2@fi@cting a 23% year-over-year decline in theraill average
number of active communities we operated in thigreent. The average selling price increased to 88460 2010
from $315,100 in 2009, mainly due to a change adpct mix, somewhat improved operating conditiam] an
increase in homes
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delivered from certain markets within this segntéiat supported higher selling prices. There weréand sale
revenues from this segment in 2010. Land sale i®m®totaled $39.3 million in 2009.

This segment posted pretax income of $60.3 miliioR010, compared to a pretax loss of $88.4 millioa009
Pretax results improved in 2010 compared to 2008auily due to a reduction in pretax, noncash cearfgr
inventory impairments and land option contract aleaments and lower selling, general and adminis&at
expenses. Pretax, noncash charges for inventorgiimpnts and land option contract abandonmentsdsed to
$4.6 million in 2010 from $77.6 million in 2009, dmwere less than 1% of segment total revenuesin 26d 10%
of segment total revenues in 2009. The gross mampnoved to 22.1% in 2010 from 2.5% in 2009, refileg an
increase in the average selling price, a decr@agdigdct construction costs, and lower inventorgted impairment
and abandonment charges in 2010. Selling, genedshdministrative expenses of $64.5 million in 20&areased
by $15.2 million, or 19%, from $79.7 million in 280primarily due to cost reduction initiatives ahe lower
number of homes delivered. Other, net expensesdadino unconsolidated joint venture impairmentgésiin
2010 and $7.2 million of such charges in 2009.

In 2009, revenues from this segment decreased @¥812.2 million from $1.06 billion in 2008 dueltwer
housing revenues. Housing revenues decreased 26%7 209 million in 2009 from $1.05 billion in 20@8 a result
of a 17% decrease in homes delivered and an 11%thedécthe average selling price. We deliveredb3,homes at
an average selling price of $315,100 in 2009 a@@2homes at an average selling price of $354,7@0D08. The
yearover-year decrease in the number of homes detivess primarily due to a 26% reduction in the ollera
average number of active communities we operatédeisegment. The lower average selling price bB2@flectec
downward pricing pressures resulting from interm@getition and our rollout of new product at lovpeice points
compared to those of our previous product. Land salenues totaled $39.3 million in 2009 and $.aniin 2008.

This segment generated pretax losses of $88.40mili 2009 and $298.0 million in 2008. The pretassl|
decreased in 2009 compared to 2008, largely dae¢duction in total charges for inventory impaintseand land
option contract abandonments. These charges dedr&m$77.6 million in 2009 from $246.5 million 2008, and,
as a percentage of segment total revenues werear 089 and 23% in 2008. The gross margin imprdeed
positive 2.5% in 2009 from negative 13.9% in 2008 tb lower inventory impairment and land optiontcact
abandonment charges, reduced direct constructists,cand improved operating efficiencies. Sellggneral and
administrative expenses decreased by $40.7 mikipB4%, to $79.7 million in 2009 from $120.4 nultiin 2008 a
a result of operational consolidations, workforeductions and other cost-saving initiatives. Othet,expenses
included unconsolidated joint venture impairmerft$2 million in 2009 and $43.1 million in 2008.

Southwest . Total revenues from our Southwest segment deete4% to $187.7 million in 2010 from
$218.1 million in 2009, mainly due to lower housieyenues. Housing revenues decreased 12% to $dflich in
2010 from $206.7 million in 2009, reflecting a 4%cdease in the number of homes delivered and ade®%ne in
the average selling price. We delivered 1,150 ham@§10 compared to 1,202 homes in 2009, prinlighle to
our operating an overall average of 13% fewer aatvmmunities in this segment year over year. Veeage
selling price decreased to $158,200 in 2010 fro2¥100 in 2009 due to downward pricing pressur@s fintense
competition and our continued rollout of new pradaiclower price points compared to our previowsdpict. Land
sale revenues totaled $5.8 million in 2010 compé#wefil1.4 million in 2009.

Pretax losses from this segment narrowed to $18l®min 2010 from $48.6 million in 2009, largefue to a
decrease in pretax, noncash charges for invemgpgirments. These charges decreased to $1.0 miilli2810 and
represented less than 1% of segment total revehu2609, pretax, noncash inventory impairment gharotaled
$28.8 million and represented 13% of segment tetz@nues. The gross margin improved to 24.4% i) 26dm
3.6% in 2009, reflecting a decrease in direct aoetibn costs and the reduction in inventory impegnt charges.
Selling, general and administrative expenses iseéy $10.0 million, or 28%, to $45.5 million i8I0 from
$35.5 million in 2009, mainly due to a charge ag#ed with the writedown of a note receivable, aigher legal
and advertising expenses. Other, net expenseglettino unconsolidated joint venture impairment geain 2010
and $5.4 million of such charges in 2009.

In 2009, total revenues from our Southwest segmecateased 65% to $218.1 million from $618.0 million
2008, primarily due to lower housing revenues. Huysevenues fell 62% to $206.7 million in 2009rfro
$548.5 million in 2008 due to a 50% decrease imtimaber of homes delivered and a 25% decline imtleeage
selling price. We delivered 1,202 homes at an aeeszlling price of $172,000 in 2009, and 2,393 é@at an
average
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selling price of $229,200 in 2008. The year-oveary@ecrease in the number of homes delivered wgsliadue to

a 47% decrease in the overall average number wkEamdtmmunities we operated in this segment. Thetaverag:
selling price in 2009 reflected intense pricinggsure stemming from an oversupply of new and rdsadees in our
served markets in the segment, rising foreclosaneslower demand, as well as our rollout of newdpod at lower

price points compared to our previous product. Rees from land sales totaled $11.4 million in 2606&hpared to

$69.5 million in 2008.

Pretax losses from this segment totaled $48.6aniiln 2009 and $212.2 million in 2008. The 200%quxdoss
decreased from the prior year principally due tedocharges for inventory impairments and landaptiontract
abandonments. These charges decreased to $28@ nmilR009 from $160.8 million in 2008, and repreted 13%
of segment total revenues in 2009 compared to 262008. The gross margin improved to positive 3i62009
from negative 16.9% in 2008, mainly due to the pedlinventory impairment charges. Selling, gennal
administrative expenses decreased by $34.4 milioA9%, to $35.5 million in 2009 from $69.9 mitian 2008,
due primarily to overhead reductions and other-sasing initiatives. Included in other, net expenaere
unconsolidated joint venture impairments of $5.4iom in 2009 and $30.4 million in 2008.

Central. Total revenues from our Central segment increabgltly to $436.4 million in 2010 from
$434.4 million in 2009, reflecting higher housiryenues. Housing revenues rose 1% to $435.9 mili@010
from $430.8 million in 2009, mainly due to a 5%r@ase in the average selling price, partially dffsea 4%
decline in the number of homes delivered. Homelweleld decreased to 2,663 in 2010 from 2,771 irD2€6spite
4% increase in the overall average number of actiwvemunities we operated in this segment. The geesalling
price rose to $163,700 in 2010 from $155,500 in@dimarily due to favorable changes in commuaitg produc
mix and somewhat improved operating conditionseairiain markets within this segment. Land sale raesriotaled
$.5 million in 2010 and $3.6 million in 2009.

Pretax losses from this segment totaled $1.8 millic2010 and $29.4 million in 2009. These pretsults
improved in 2010 compared to 2009 largely due weelopretax, noncash inventory-related charges.prégx loss
in 2010 included $6.9 million of pretax, noncashdaption contract abandonment charges, compared to
$23.9 million of pretax, noncash inventory impainheharges in 2009. As a percentage of segmentrésanues,
these pretax, noncash charges were 2% in 2010%rid 8009. The gross margin improved to 16.4% ih@fHom
9.9% in 2009, mainly due to an increase in theayeselling price, a decrease in direct constrnatasts and lowe
inventory-related charges. Selling, general andiadinative expenses totaled $62.6 million in b2€1.0 and 2009.

In 2009, this segment generated total revenued®4.8 million, down 27% from $594.3 million in 2008
reflecting lower housing and land sale revenuesisity revenues declined 26% to $430.8 million i62€rom
$585.8 million in 2008, mainly due to a 17% decesimshomes delivered and an 11% decline in theaaeeselling
price. Homes delivered decreased to 2,771 in 218 8,348 homes in 2008, partly due to a 30%
yeal-over-year reduction in the overall average nunaberctive communities we operated in this segmEme.
average selling price declined to $155,500 in 286& $175,000 in 2008, reflecting downward pricprgssure due
to highly competitive conditions, and our rollodtlower-priced new product. Land sale revenuedeadta
$3.6 million in 2009 and $8.5 million in 2008.

This segment posted pretax losses of $29.4 milid009 and $82.8 million in 2008. The loss decedas
2009 compared to 2008 largely due to lower invgnimpairment charges. These charges decrease®id Bllion
in 2009 compared to $51.5 million in 2008. As acpatage of segment total revenues, inventory impeit charge
were 5% in 2009 and 9% in 2008. The gross margprawed to 9.9% in 2009 from 4.0% in 2008, mainlye do
lower inventory impairment charges and lower diistruction costs. Selling, general and admitiste expense
decreased by $33.7 million, or 35%, to $62.6 millio 2009 from $96.3 million in 2008, as a restlthe steps we
had taken to align our overhead costs with mar&etlitions in this segment. Other, net expensesided no
unconsolidated joint venture impairment charge®0f9 and $2.6 million of such charges in 2008.

Southeast. Our Southeast segment generated total reven$25@t0 million in 2010, down 27% from
$351.7 million in 2009, primarily due to lower hang revenues. All of this segment’s revenues in®@gre
generated from housing operations. In 2010, housxagnues declined 26% from $347.7 million in 200@ to a
27% decrease in homes delivered, partly offsetrby% increase in the average selling price. Weseedd 1,510
homes in 2010 compared to 2,062 homes in 200®atafy a 19% reduction in the overall average numbactive
communities we operated in this segment. The aessalling price rose to $170,200 in 2010 from $&68,in 200¢
principally due to a change in community and praduoix. There were no land sale revenues in 2016dlsale
revenues totaled $4.0 million in 2009.

41




Table of Contents

This segment posted pretax losses of $42.8 milid2010 and $78.4 million in 2009. The pretax lnasrowed
on a year-over-yedrasis, primarily due to the decline in total pretasncash charges for inventory impairments
land option contract abandonments, which decre@s$d.5 million in 2010 from $37.8 million in 2008s a
percentage of segment total revenues, these charyes3% in 2010 and 11% in 2009. The gross manggmoved
to 4.5% in 2010 from 1.4% in 2009, largely duelte teduction in pretax, noncash charges for invgnto
impairments and land option contract abandonmemndgtze slight increase in the average selling p&etling,
general and administrative expenses decreased.0yn#Hion, or 10%, to $36.1 million in 2010 frond@.1 million
in 2009 as a result of our actions to reduce oatlie line with market conditions in this segmebither, net
expenses included no unconsolidated joint ventapmairment charges in 2010 and $25.9 million of stitérges in
20009.

In 2009, this segment generated total revenue8%E.$ million in 2009, down 53% from $755.8 million
2008, primarily due to a decrease in housing regenin 2009, housing revenues declined 54% to $34ilion
from $751.6 million in 2008 as a result of a 45%r@ase in homes delivered and a 16% decline inheage
selling price. We delivered 2,062 homes in 2009 parad to 3,725 homes in 2008, reflecting a 48%atalu in the
overall average number of active communities weaipe. The average selling price fell to $168,602009 from
$201,800 in 2008, due to downward pricing presfuara highly competitive conditions and our rollaftnew
product at lower price points compared to our gresiproduct. Revenues from land sales totaled&#lion in
2009 and $4.2 million in 2008.

This segment posted pretax losses of $78.4 milid009 and $258.6 million in 2008. The
yearover-year decrease in the pretax loss primarfteceed lower total charges for inventory impairrtseand land
option contract abandonments, which decreased#@$8illion in 2009 from $148.0 million in 2008. As
percentage of segment total revenues, these chaegesl1% in 2009 and 20% in 2008. The gross mangimoved
to positive 1.4% in 2009 from negative 7.0% in 20®&inly due to the lower level of inventory impagnt and
land option contract abandonment charges. Selfjageral and administrative expenses decreasedsy $8llion,
or 68%, to $40.1 million in 2009 from $125.8 miliégn 2008 as a result of our actions to reducelweat in line
with market conditions in this segment. Includediher, net expenses were unconsolidated jointvent
impairments of $25.9 million in 2009 and $65.7 ioillin 2008.

FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

Our financial services segment provides title arslifance services to our homebuyers. This segrient a
provides mortgage banking services to our homelsupelirectly through KBA Mortgage. We and a sukesigiof
Bank of America, N.A., each have a 50% ownershiprést in KBA Mortgage. KBA Mortgage is operatedduyr
joint venture partner and is accounted for as awonsolidated joint venture in the financial sergiceporting
segment of our consolidated financial statements.

The following table presents a summary of selefitexhcial and operational data for our financialvéses
segment (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008

Revenue: $ 823 $ 843 $ 10,76]
Expense! (3,119 (3,257 (4,489
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint venti 7,02¢ 14,01¢ 17,54(

Pretax incomt $ 12,24: $ 19,19¢ $ 23,81¢
Total originations (a)

Loans 5,70¢ 7,17(¢ 10,14

Principal $1,092,50;  $1,317,90. $2,073,38:

Percentage of homebuyers using KBA Mortg 82% 84% 80%
Loans sold to third parties (e

Loans 5,85( 6,967 11,28¢

Principal $1,092,73¢  $1,275,68:  $2,328,70:

(a) Loan originations and sales occur within KBA Moggz
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Revenues. Our financial services operations generate reeemuimarily from the following sources: interest
income, title services, and insurance commissiBimancial services revenues totaled $8.2 millio2040,
$8.4 million in 2009 and $10.8 million in 2008. Thear-over-year decrease in financial servicesmaeg in 2010
was primarily due to lower revenues from title $eeg as a result of our homebuilding operationsréighg fewer
homes. In 2009, the year-over-year decline in fofrservices revenues was mainly due to lowermags from
title and insurance services, also reflecting ichezase fewer homes delivered from our homebuildjmgrations.

Financial services revenues included a nominal anolinterest income in 2010 and 2009 and $.2ionilbf
interest income in 2008, which was earned primdrdyn money market deposits. Financial servicegmees also
included revenues from title services and insurammeemissions totaling $8.2 million in 2010, $8.4limn in 2009
and $10.6 million in 2008.

Expenses. General and administrative expenses totaled $8libn in 2010, $3.2 million in 2009 and
$4.5 million in 2008. In 2010, these expenses dewe slightly from 2009 corresponding to the slidgdrease in
revenues. The year-over-year decreases in gemata@dministrative expenses primarily reflect thitoers we have
taken to reduce overhead in our financial servigEsations.

Equity in Income of Unconsolidated Joint Venture. The equity in income of unconsolidated joint wentof
$7.0 million in 2010, $14.0 million in 2009 and $3illion in 2008 related to our 50% interest iBK Mortgage.
The year-over-year decreases in unconsolidatetiyeimure income in 2010 and 2009 were mainly dugetlines
in the number of loans originated by KBA Mortgaggflecting in large part the lower volume of homesdelivere:
in each year. The year-over-yafmacline in unconsolidated joint venture income ®2 was also due to a decreas
average loan size as a result of the generallynewerage selling prices of our homes compare®@8 2KBA
Mortgage originated 5,706 loans in 2010, 7,170$dar2009 and 10,141 loans in 2008. The percerdbgar
homebuyers using KBA Mortgage as a loan originatas 82% in 2010, 84% in 2009 and 80% in 2008.

The equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventirr 2008 was affected by KBA Mortgage’s adoptién o
Topic 5DD (formerly Staff Accounting Bulletin No0®, “Written Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair \éalu
Through Earnings”) and the provisions as requingébcounting Standards Codification Topic No. 8%F&nancial
Instruments” (*ASC 825"). Topic 5DD expresses therent view of the SEC that, consistent with thelgoce in
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 860tdfisfers and Servicing” and ASC 825, the expecétduture
cash flows related to the associated servicingarfi$ should be included in the measurement ofdihedlue of all
written loan commitments that are accounted fdaiatvalue through earnings. ASC 825 permits esgito choose
to measure various financial instruments and cedthier items at fair value on a contract-by-caritbasis. Under
ASC 825, KBA Mortgage elected the fair value optionresidential consumer mortgage loans held éte that
were originated subsequent to February 29, 200& result of KBA Mortgage’s adoption of Topic 5Dbca
ASC 825, our equity in income of unconsolidateajaienture of the financial services segment insgday
$1.7 million in 2008.

INCOME TAXES

We recognized an income tax benefit of $7.0 miliim2010, compared to an income tax benefit of
$209.4 million in 2009 and income tax expense o2 $8illion in 2008. The income tax benefit in 20&dected the
recognition of a $5.4 million federal income taxnbét from an additional carryback of our 2009 NGboffset
earnings we generated in 2004 and 2005, and tlees@vof a $1.6 million liability for unrecognizéa benefits du
to the status of federal and state tax audits.ifit@me tax benefit in 2009 resulted primarily fréime recognition of
a $190.7 million federal income tax benefit basedte carryback of our 2009 NOLs to offset earniwgsgenerate
in 2004 and 2005, and the reversal of a $16.3anilliability for unrecognized federal and state baxefits due to
the status of federal and state tax audits. Thenigctax expense in 2008 was mainly due to theldvgahce of tax
benefits related to our 2008 loss as a resultfofl @aluation allowance. Due to the effects of deferred tax asset
valuation allowance, carryback of NOLs, and changesir unrecognized tax benefits, our effectiverates in
2010, 2009 and 2008 are not meaningful items agsome tax amounts are not directly correlatethéoamount ¢
our pretax losses for those periods.

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership,Buginess Assistance Act of 2009 was enacted awix
and amended Section 172 of the Internal Revenue @oextend the permitted carryback period foreifisg
certain NOLs against earnings from two years téoujive years. Due to this federal tax legislatiarg, were able to
carry back our 2009 NOLs to offset earnings we geted in 2004 and 2005. As a result, we filed guliegtion for
a federal tax refund of
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$190.7 million and reflected this amount as a neadale in our consolidated balance sheet as of Nbeer30, 2009.
We received the cash proceeds from the refunderitst quarter of 2010. In September 2010, welfda amended
application for a federal tax refund to carry backadditional amount of our 2009 NOLs to offseneags we
generated in 2004 and 2005. The amended applicg¢inarated a refund in the amount of $5.4 millag we
received the cash proceeds of this refund in thelicquarter of 2010.

Since 2007, due to the prolonged housing downthmasset impairment and land option contract adrameén
charges we have incurred and the NOLs we have ghost=have generated substantial deferred taxsaandt
established a corresponding valuation allowanc@ageertain of those deferred tax assets. In a@ecare with
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 740 ctbme Taxes” (“ASC 740"), we evaluate our defemsed
assets quarterly to determine if valuation allovesnare required. ASC 740 requires that compangesasvhether
valuation allowances should be established baseleooonsideration of all available evidence usirighore likely
than not” standard. During 2010, we recorded anmeeease of $21.1 million to the valuation allowaragainst net
deferred tax assets. The net increase was commisedi26.6 million valuation allowance recordediagt the net
deferred tax assets generated from the loss forehe partially offset by the $5.4 million fedematome tax benefit
from the additional carryback of our 2009 NOLs ffset earnings we generated in 2004 and 2005.

During the first nine months of 2009, we recogniaetkt increase of $67.5 million in the valuatiioveance.
This increase reflected the net impact of an $&8lfon valuation allowance recorded during thesfiinine months
of 2009, partly offset by a reduction of deferrad assets due to the forfeiture of certain equityeld awards. In the
fourth quarter of 2009, we recognized a decreasieevaluation allowance of $196.3 million primgrilue to the
benefit derived from the carryback of our 2009 N@hsffset earnings we generated in 2004 and 288% result,
the net decrease in the valuation allowance foy#ds ended November 30, 2009 totaled $128.8 milllde
decrease in the valuation allowance was reflectemi@oncash income tax benefit of $130.7 milliod amoncash
charge of $1.9 million to accumulated other compredive loss. During 2008, we recorded a valuatilmwance of
$355.9 million against our net deferred tax asséts. valuation allowance was reflected as a nonchatge of
$358.2 million to income tax expense and a nonbasiefit of $2.3 million to accumulated other confynesive los
(as a result of an adjustment made in accordanitetia@ adoption of provisions of Accounting Stamf$ar
Codification Topic No. 715, “Compensation — Retimmh Benefits” (“ASC 715")). The majority of the téenefits
associated with our net deferred tax assets caaried forward for 20 years and applied to offséire taxable
income.

Our net deferred tax assets totaled $1.1 milliomotth November 30, 2010 and 2009. The deferredsart
valuation allowance increased to $771.1 milliolNavember 30, 2010 from $750.0 million at Novemb@y 3009,
reflecting the impact of the $21.1 million net iease in the valuation allowance recorded in 205@rited above.

The benefits of our NOLSs, built-in losses and teedits would be reduced or potentially eliminatedé
experienced an “ownership change” under Section B82ed on our analysis performed as of Novembge2@00,
we do not believe we have experienced an ownercdtdpge as defined by Section 382, and, therefoedNOLs,
built-in losses and tax credits we have generatedld not be subject to a Section 382 limitatior&shis reporting
date.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview. We historically have funded our homebuilding &indncial services activities with internally
generated cash flows and external sources of aebéquity financing.

During the period from mid-2006 through 2009, awrfidllenging conditions in the housing market, weued
on generating cash by exiting or reducing our itrmesits in certain markets, selling land positiond mterests, and
improving the financial performance of our homebimg operations. The cash generated from these®ffo
improved our liquidity, enabled us to reduce deltls and strengthened our consolidated finanoisitipn. Based
on the prolonged housing downturn and our goataifitaining a strong and liquid balance sheet asitipning
our business to capitalize on future growth opputies, in 2010, we continued to manage our usesh to operate
our business and we made strategic acquisitioafiraictive land assets that met our investmeninaatketing
standards. We ended our 2010 fiscal year with $till@n of cash and cash equivalents and resttictesh,
compared to $1.29 billion at November 30, 2009. fitagority of our cash and cash equivalents werested in
money market accounts and U.S. government securidiepending on housing market conditions in 2@l plan
to use a portion of our unrestricted cash to aeqaidlditional land assets and increase our actimemmity count.
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Capital Resources. At November 30, 2010, we had $1.78 billion of tgages and notes payable outstanding
compared to $1.82 billion outstanding at Novemlir209, reflecting the repayment of mortgagesland
contracts due to land sellers and other loans g&@10.

Our financial leverage, as measured by the ratibebt to total capital, was 73.8% at November 80,02
compared to 72.0% at November 30, 2009. The inergasur financial leverage primarily reflected tecrease in
our stockholders’ equity as a result of net loss®sinventory impairment and land option contréetralonment
charges we incurred in 2010. Our ratio of net deltal capital at November 30, 2010 was 54.5%ared to
42.9% at November 30, 2009.

At November 30, 2009, we maintained the Credit lRgiavith a syndicate of lenders that was scheduited
mature in November 2010. Anticipating that we wonitd need to borrow under the Credit Facility befiis
scheduled maturity and to trim the costs associatfdmaintaining it, effective December 28, 200& voluntarily
reduced the aggregate commitment under the Creditity from $650.0 million to $200.0 million, areffective
March 31, 2010, we voluntarily terminated the Crédicility.

With the Credit Facility’s termination, we proceéde enter into the LOC Facilities with variousdircial
institutions to obtain letters of credit in the i@y course of operating our business. As of Ndwen30, 2010,
$87.5 million of letters of credit were outstandimgder the LOC Facilities. The LOC Facilities raquis to deposit
and maintain cash with the financial institutiosscallateral for our letters of credit outstandiAg.of November 3l
2010, the amount of cash maintained for the LOGlikeas totaled $88.7 million and was included estricted cash
on our consolidated balance sheet as of that bhe®011, we may maintain or, if necessary or desiraenter into
additional or expanded letter of credit facilitiegh the same or other financial institutions.

Under the terms of the Credit Facility, we wereuieed, among other things, to maintain a minimum
consolidated tangible net worth and certain finahsiatement ratios, and were subject to limitation acquisitions,
inventories and indebtedness. As a result of tlaliCFacility’s termination, these restrictions aeduirements are
no longer in effect. In addition, the terminatiditlee Credit Facility released and discharged $iaur subsidiaries
from guaranteeing any obligations with respectupsenior notes (the “Released Subsidiaries”). &lofeour
subsidiaries (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”) corgitm provide a guarantee with respect to our serotes.

In addition to the cash deposits maintained forl®€ Facilities, restricted cash on our consoliddialance
sheet at November 30, 2010 included $26.8 millibeash in an escrow account required as collafera surety
bond.

The indenture governing our senior notes does aiai any financial maintenance covenants. Sulgect
specified exceptions, the indenture contains aergstrictive covenants that, among other thirigst bur ability to
incur secured indebtedness, or engage in salebaeséransactions involving property or assets almuertain
specified value. Unlike our other senior notes,térens governing our $265 Million Senior Notes @dntcertain
limitations related to mergers, consolidations, salkés of assets.

As of November 30, 2010, we were in compliance whthapplicable terms of all of our covenants urcder
senior notes, the indenture, and mortgages andclamitiacts due to land sellers and other loans.aBility to secur
future debt financing may depend in part on oulitglib remain in such compliance.

As further discussed below under “Off-Balance SWgeangements,” various financial and non-financial
covenants apply to the outstanding debt of our nsalidated joint ventures, and a failure of sucluaconsolidated
joint venture to comply with any applicable debtvenants could result in a default and cause lertdessek tc
enforce guarantees, if applicable, provided bynta our corresponding unconsolidated joint vempartner(s).
As discussed above under “Part | — Item 3. Legat@edings,” we are currently party to an involuptaainkruptcy
case initiated by the lenders to one of these wal@ated joint ventures, which may impact the ecément of a
guarantee. An unfavorable outcome in this caseddoave a material adverse effect on our consolibi@t@ncial
position and results of operations.

Depending on available terms, we also finance celaad acquisitions with purchase-money finandiagn
land sellers or with other forms of financing frénird parties. At November 30, 2010, we had outditaon
mortgages and land contracts due to land selletotner loans payable in connection with such fairag of
$118.1 million, secured primarily by the underlyipgperty, which had a carrying value of $161.9iomil
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Consolidated Cash Flows. Operating, investing and financing activitiesadiset cash of $269.5 million in 20
and $202.2 million in 2008. These activities praddchet cash of $36.4 million in 2009.

Operating Activities. Operating activities used net cash of $133.9anilin 2010 and provided net cash of
$349.9 million in 2009. The year-over-year changaeét operating cash flows was largely due to are@se in
inventories in 2010, reflecting land acquisitiotivty undertaken as part of our strategy to restmur homebuildin
operations to profitability, as discussed aboveeuriBart | — Item 1. Business — Strategin’contrast, in 2009, v
strategically reduced our inventories and limitadd purchase activity to align our operations \tlith prevailing
market conditions during that period and to suppartbalance sheet goals. As noted above underri@ve” we
may use a portion of our unrestricted cash in 20Jdcquire additional land assets and increasadtive
community count, depending on market conditions.

Our uses of operating cash in 2010 included aneeéase in inventories of $129.3 million (excludingentory
impairments and land option contract abandonm&ats.2 million of inventories acquired through sefiaancing
and a decrease of $41.6 million in consolidate@imeries not owned) in conjunction with our landedsacquisition
activities, a decrease in accounts payable, acaxgenses and other liabilities of $199.2 milliamet loss of
$69.4 million, and other operating uses of $1.7iaml Partially offsetting the cash used was a ease in
receivables of $211.3 million, mainly due to a $Z9@illion federal income tax refund we receivedidg the first
quarter of 2010 as a result of the carryback of2Z0@9 NOLs to offset earnings we generated in 20@12005.

In 2009, operating cash was provided by a net dseren inventories of $433.1 million (excluding ém¢ory
impairments and land option contract abandonm&i.2 million of inventories acquired through sefiaancing,
decrease of $45.3 million in consolidated inve®mot owned, and an increase of $97.6 milliomugntories in
connection with the consolidation of certain prexgly unconsolidated joint ventures), other opetaiaurces of
$8.3 million and various noncash items added tan#tdoss for the year. The cash provided in 2088 partly offse
by a decrease in accounts payable, accrued expandexther liabilities of $252.6 million and a hegs of
$101.8 million.

In 2008, operating cash was provided by a net dseren inventories of $545.9 million (excluding ém¢ory
impairments and land option contract abandonm&86.,0 million of inventories acquired through sefiaancing
and a decrease of $143.1 million in consolidateemtories not owned), other operating sources &f@8hillion anc
various noncash items added to the net loss foyebe Partially offsetting the cash provided i®2@vas a net loss
of $976.1 million, a decrease in accounts payatlerued expenses and other liabilities of $282IBomiand an
increase in receivables of $60.6 million.

Investing Activities. Investing activities used net cash of $16.1 onillin 2010, $21.3 million in 2009 and
$52.5 million in 2008. In 2010, cash of $15.7 moitliwas used for investments in unconsolidated jentures and
$.4 million was used for net purchases of propang equipment. The year-over-year decreases inuseshfor
investing activities in 2010 and 2009 were primadlie to a reduction in our investments and p@dibon in
unconsolidated joint ventures each year. In 2009,%million of cash was used for investments inansolidated
joint ventures and $1.4 million of cash was usechfet purchases of property and equipment. In 26$88,6 million
of cash used for investments in unconsolidated j@ntures was partially offset by $7.1 million piced from net
sales of property and equipment.

Financing Activities. Net cash used for financing activities totaled %5 million in 2010, $292.2 million in
2009 and $491.0 million in 2008. We used a largeoant of cash for financing activities in 2009 thar2010
primarily due to our repayment of $200.0 millionaiggregate principal amount of 88 % senior subordinated not
upon their scheduled maturity in December 2002009, our uses of financing cash decreased frompribeyear
due to cash required to establish an interestwesarcount in connection with the Credit Facility2008 (which we
restricted cash) and the higher amount of dividgradd on our common stock in 2008.

In 2010, cash was used for net payments on morsgage land contracts due to land sellers and @thes of
$101.2 million, dividend payments on our commorcktof $19.2 million, an increase in the restrictagh balance
of $1.2 million, and repurchases of common stock.dfmillion in connection with the satisfactionerhployee
withholding taxes on vested restricted stock. Téehaused was partially offset by $1.9 million pd®d from the
issuance of common stock under employee stock plads.6 million from excess tax benefits assodiatgh the
exercise of stock options.

As with the dividends on our common stock paid®2, our board of directors declared four quarteagh
dividends of $.0625 per share of common stock du2idl0. The last of these was paid on Novembe2dB) to
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shareholders of record on November 4, 2010. Thiadgon and payment of future cash dividends ancommon
stock are at the discretion of our board of diresstand depend upon, among other things, our exgédature
earnings, cash flows, capital requirements, debtstre and any adjustments thereto, operatiorthfiaancial
investment strategy and general financial condjtaanwell as general business conditions.

In 2009, cash was used for the repayment of $25@lidn in aggregate principal amount of the $350liwh
Senior Notes and the $200.0 million in aggregaitecfpal amount of &/ 8 % senior subordinated notes due
December 15, 2008 upon their maturity, paymen&76f0 million on mortgages and land contracts duard
sellers and other loans, dividend payments on oomaeon stock of $19.1 million, payment of seniorasoissuance
costs of $4.3 million, and repurchases of commonoksbf $.6 million in connection with the satisfiact of
employee withholding taxes on vested restrictedkstbhese uses of cash were partly offset by $2&8llion of
cash provided from the issuance of the $265 Milamior Notes, $3.1 million of cash provided frdm tssuance |
common stock under employee stock plans and $1libmof cash provided from a reduction in the lvala of cash
deposited in an interest reserve account we eshegaliin connection with the Credit Facility (whiehs restricted
cash).

In 2008, cash was used for the early redemptich@®$300 Million Senior Subordinated Notes, to lelsth an
interest reserve account with a balance of $11%libmin connection with the Credit Facility (whiovas restricted
cash), dividend payments on our common stock of@s68llion, net payments on mortgages and landrasig due
to land sellers and other loans of $12.8 milliod agpurchases of common stock of $1.0 million inrextion with
the satisfaction of employee withholding taxes ested restricted stock. These uses of cash wetlg pHset by
$7.0 million provided from the issuance of commuotk under our employee stock plans.

Shelf Registration Satement.  On October 17, 2008, we filed an automaticalfeafve universal shelf
registration statement (the “2008 Shelf Registraiovith the SEC, registering debt and equity sdms that we
may issue from time to time in amounts to be deiteech Our previously effective shelf registratidied with the
SEC on November 12, 2004 (the “2004 Shelf Registn&t was subsumed within the 2008 Shelf RegistratOn
July 30, 2009, we issued the $265 Million Senioté$aunder the 2008 Shelf Registration. We havéssaed any
other securities under the 2008 Shelf Registration.

Share Repurchase Program. At November 30, 2010, we were authorized to rejpase four million shares of
our common stock under a board-approved sharealegse program. We did not repurchase any sham@s of
common stock under this program in 2010. We hateepmurchased common shares pursuant to a commck st
repurchase plan for the past several years andeaynption of such stock repurchases will be atitheretion of
our board of directors.

In the present environment, we are managing oupfisash for investments to maintain and grow ausifess
Based on our current capital position, we beliegeehave adequate resources and sufficient accessaimal
financing sources to satisfy our current and realslynanticipated future requirements for fundsdquare capital
assets and land, consistent with our investmemntetiag and operational standards, to constructdsyrio finance
our financial services operations, and to meetahgr needs in the ordinary course of our businast$, on a short-
and long-term basis. Although our land asset adtgprisand development activities will remain sulljezmarket
conditions in 2011, we are analyzing potential @sitjans and will use our present financial positand cash
resources to purchase assets in desirable, longrarkets when the prices, timing and strategiméet our
investment and marketing standards. We may alsomusseploy our cash or engage in other financaaisactions
in 2011 to modify our overall debt structure to,cag other things, reduce our financial leverageiatetest costs.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have investments in unconsolidated joint vesttinat conduct land acquisition, development ancktoer
homebuilding activities in various markets where lmomebuilding operations are located. Our partivetsese
unconsolidated joint ventures are unrelated hontédns, and/or land developers and other real estdites, or
commercial enterprises. We entered into these watiolated joint ventures in previous years to redoicshare
market and development risks and increase the nuafiloeir owned and controlled homesites. In sonséaimces,
participating in unconsolidated joint ventures Baabled us to acquire and develop land that we tmigthotherwist
have had access to due to a project’s size, fingnuéeds, duration of development or other circantsts. While
we have viewed our participation in unconsolidgtedt ventures as beneficial to our homebuildingwdties, we do
not view such
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participation as essential and have unwound odicpgaation in a number of unconsolidated joint vews in the pa
few years.

We and/or our unconsolidated joint venture parttgpially have obtained options or entered intoeot
arrangements to have the right to purchase portbtige land held by certain of the unconsolidgdatt ventures.
When an unconsolidated joint venture sells lanourohomebuilding operations, we defer recognitibowr share o
such unconsolidated joint venture earnings urtiibane sale is closed and title passes to a homebatywhich time
we account for those earnings as a reduction ofakeof purchasing the land from the unconsoldifét venture

We and our unconsolidated joint venture partnersenigitial and/or ongoing capital contributionsthese
unconsolidated joint ventures, typically on a patarbasis. The obligations to make capital contiging are
governed by each unconsolidated joint venture’paetive operating agreement and related docum@éfesalso
share in the profits and losses of these uncoraelidoint ventures generally in accordance withrespective
equity interests. These unconsolidated joint verstimad total assets of $789.4 million at NovemiBe2810 and
$921.5 million at November 30, 2009. Our investmarthese unconsolidated joint ventures totaleds$ énillion
at November 30, 2010 and $119.7 million at Novengir2009.

The unconsolidated joint ventures have financed kmd inventory investments through a variety of
arrangements. To finance their respective landiaitipun and development activities, certain of anconsolidated
joint ventures have obtained loans from t-party lenders that are secured by the underlyingerty and related
project assets. Our unconsolidated joint ventueesdutstanding debt, substantially all of which wesured, of
approximately $327.9 million at November 30, 20hd $469.1 million at November 30, 2009. South Edge
accounted for all or most of those outstanding defunts.

In certain instances, we and/or our partner(shinrgconsolidated joint venture have provided cotigate
and/or carve-out guaranties. A completion guaragtgrs to the physical completion of improvements project
and/or the obligation to contribute equity to aramsolidated joint venture to enable it to funccibenpletion
obligations. Our potential responsibility under completion guarantees, if triggered, is highly elegient on the
facts of a particular case. A carve-out guarantyegaly refers to the payment of (i) losses a lesdéfers due to
certain bad acts or omissions by an unconsolidatatlventure or its partners, such as fraud orampsopriation, or
due to environmental liabilities arising with respto the relevant project, or (ii) outstandingngipal and interest
and certain other amounts owed to lenders upofilithg by an unconsolidated joint venture of a wutary
bankruptcy petition or, in certain circumstancés, filing of an involuntary bankruptcy petition.

In addition to the above-described guarantees,ave hlso provided a Springing Repayment Guararnttyeto
lenders to South Edge. The Springing Repaymentdbtyaand certain legal proceedings regarding SBdtie are
discussed further below in Note 15. Legal Mattarthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementisisnreport.
The lenders to one of our other unconsolidated pentures have filed a lawsuit against some otithensolidated
joint ventur¢s members and certain of those members’ parenpeaaies seeking to recover damages under
completion guarantees, among other clafWiachovia Bank, N.A. v. Focus Kyle Group LLC, et al. U.S District
Court, Southern District of New York (Case No. 08-cv-8681 (LTS)(GWG))) . We and the other parent companies,
together with the members, are defending the lawsui

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢*'FASB”) revised the authoritative guidance for
determining the primary beneficiary of a varialsigerest entity (“VIE”). In December 2009, the FA&Bued
Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-17, “Improveisi¢éo Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involvath
Variable Interest Entities” (*“ASU 2009-17"), whigrovided amendments to Accounting Standards Cediifin
No. 810,“Consolidation” (“ASC 810") to reflect the reviseglidance. The amendments to ASC 810 replaced the
guantitative-based risk and rewards calculatiord&ermining which reporting entity, if any, hasantrolling
interest in a VIE with an approach focused on idging which reporting entity has the power to diréhe activities
of a VIE that most significantly impact the VEE&conomic performance and (i) the obligation teoab losses of tt
VIE or (ii) the right to receive benefits from th¢E. The amendments also require additional disgles about a
reporting entity’s involvement with VIEs. We adogtidne amended provisions of ASC 810 effective Ddmmmi,
2009. The adoption of the amended provisions of 88Cdid not have a material effect on our consaéd
financial position or results of operations.

Our investments in joint ventures may create aabéeiinterest in a VIE, depending on the contrdderans of
the arrangement. We analyze our joint ventures@om@ance with ASC 810 to determine whether the\MdEs
and, if so,
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whether we are the primary beneficiary. All of goint ventures at November 30, 2010 and NovembeRB09
were determined under the provisions of ASC 810iegiple at each such date to be unconsolidated yeimtures,
either because they were not VIEs or, if they wédies, we were not the primary beneficiary of theeg!

In the ordinary course of our business, we enterland option contracts, or similar contractsptocure land
for the construction of homes. The use of such @rtébn and other similar contracts generally alavg to reduce
the market risks associated with direct land owmiprand development, reduces our capital and fil&nc
commitments, including interest and other carrydngts, and minimizes the amount of our land invéescon our
consolidated balance sheets. Under such contreetsill pay a specified option deposit or earneshey deposit i
consideration for the right to purchase land infthiare, usually at a predetermined price. Underrédquirements of
ASC 810, certain of these contracts may createiahla interest for us, with the land seller beidgntified as a
VIE.

In compliance with ASC 810, we analyze our landapand other similar contracts to determine whethe
corresponding land sellers are VIEs and, if so,thérewe are the primary beneficiary. Although wendd have
legal title to the optioned land, ASC 810 requinsdo consolidate a VIE if we are determined tahgeprimary
beneficiary. As a result of our analyses, we deiteedhthat as of November 30, 2010 we were not thegey
beneficiary of any VIEs from which we are purchasiand under land option and other similar conga8ince
adopting the amended provisions of ASC 810, inrd@téng whether we are the primary beneficiary,ceesider,
among other things, whether we have the powerraxtthe activities of the VIE that most signifitigrimpact the
VIE’s economic performance. Such activities wouldlide, among other things, determining or limitthg scope
or purpose of the VIE, selling or transferring peay owned or controlled by the VIE, or arrangintahcing for the
VIE. We also consider whether we have the obligatipabsorb losses of the VIE or the right to reedienefits
from the VIE.

Based on our analyses as of November 30, 2009 hwiéce performed before we adopted the amended
provisions of ASC 810, we determined that we wheegrimary beneficiary of certain VIEs from whicle were
purchasing land under land option or other sindtartracts and, therefore, consolidated such VIEsr B our
adoption of the amended provisions of ASC 810 eitedmining whether we were the primary beneficiarg,
considered, among other things, the size of ouosiepelative to the contract price, the risk ofabing land
entitlement approval, the risk associated with ldadelopment required under the land option orrodheilar
contract, and the risk of changes in the markateraf the optioned land during the contract peridte
consolidation of VIEs in which we determined we &véte primary beneficiary increased inventorieshwi
corresponding increase to accrued expenses andliatbiéties, on our consolidated balance shee$d%.0 million
at November 30, 2009. The liabilities related to cansolidation of VIEs from which we have arrangegurchase
land under option and other similar contracts regnéthe difference between the purchase pricanaf hot yet
purchased and our cash deposits. Our cash depalsitsd to these land option and other similar reats$ totaled
$4.1 million at November 30, 2009. Creditors, iffaof these VIEs have no recourse against us.

As of November 30, 2010, we had cash depositsnigt$2.6 million associated with land option antest
similar contracts that we determined to be uncadatdd VIES, having an aggregate purchase pri¢86fL million,
and had cash deposits totaling $12.2 million asdediwith land option and other similar contrabést twe
determined were not VIEs, having an aggregate pseprice of $274.3 million.

We also evaluate our land option and similar cas$réor financing arrangements in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 470etd’ (“ASC 470”), and, as a result of our evaluap
increased inventories, with a corresponding inaéasccrued expenses and other liabilities, orconsolidated
balance sheets by $15.5 million at November 300201d $36.1 million at November 30, 2009.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

The following table presents our future cash rezrants under contractual obligations as of Nover8ber
2010 (in millions):

Payments due by Perioc

Total 2011 2012-201t  2014-201% Thereafter

Contractual obligation:
Long-term debt $1,775.8 $204.2 $ 137 $ 998.Z $ 559.c
Interest 578.. 110.t 212.( 157.2 98.t
Operating lease obligatiol 31.7 9.4 15.2 7.0 —
Total (a) $2,385.! $324.2 $ 241.C $1,162.¢ $ 657.i

(a) Total contractual obligations exclude our accrealuincertain tax positions recorded for financegdarting
purposes as of November 30, 2010 because we abéeunanake a reasonable estimate of cash settismath
the respective taxing authorities for all periodssgnted. We anticipate potential cash settlensgptirements
for 2011 to range from $2.0 million to $3.0 millic

We are often required to obtain performance bondsletters of credit in support of our obligatidnssarious
municipalities and other government agencies imeotion with community improvements such as roadgiers
and water, and to support similar development digts/by certain of our unconsolidated joint veetirAt
November 30, 2010, we had $414.3 million of perfance bonds and $87.5 million of letters of crediistanding
At November 30, 2009, we had $539.7 million of periance bonds and $175.0 million of letters of itred
outstanding. If any such performance bonds orrkettécredit are called, we would be obligatedeionburse the
issuer of the performance bond or letter of craflié. do not believe that a material amount of anyeruly
outstanding performance bonds or letters of creillibe called. Performance bonds do not have dtai@iration
dates. Rather, we are released from the performamugs as the underlying performance is compld&tbd.
expiration dates of some letters of credit issuecbinnection with community improvements coincidéhvhe
expected completion dates of the related projectbligations. Most letters of credit, however, mgued with an
initial term of one year and are typically extenadeda year-to-year basis until the related perforeeanbligation is
completed.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Discussed below are accounting policies that weelare critical because of the significance efdbtivity to
which they relate or because they require the tisgnificant judgment in their application.

Homebuilding Revenue Recognition. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significantdunting Policies in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsigreport, revenues from housing and other rdatesales are
recognized in accordance with ASC 360 when sakeglased and title passes to the buyer. Saleda@sedcwhen a
of the following conditions are met: a sale is aonmated, a sufficient down payment is received gdmaings
process is complete and the collection of any raimgireceivables is reasonably assured.

Inventories and Cost of Sales.  As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant@unting Policies in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements inr#pert, housing and land inventories are statedstt unless th
carrying amount is determined not to be recoverablehich case the inventories are written dowfatovalue in
accordance with ASC 360. Fair value is determiresed on estimated future cash flows discountethfarent
risks associated with the real estate assetsher galuation techniques. Due to uncertaintieh@nestimation
process, it is possible that actual results coiffdrdrom those estimated. Our inventories typligao not consist of
completed projects. However, order cancellationstr@tegic considerations may result in our haamglatively
small amount of inventory of constructed or palfiabnstructed unsold homes. In 2010, we had dlighbre
standing inventory than we have had historicabydscussed above under “Part | — Item 1. Busiress
Community Development and Land Inventory Managerent

We rely on certain estimates to determine our caogbn and land costs and resulting gross mar@gssciate:
with revenues recognized. Construction and lantscr® comprised of direct and allocated cost$ydicg
estimated future costs for warranties and amenitiasd, land improvements and other common costgenerally
allocated on a
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relative fair value basis to homes within a pamretommunity. Land and land development costs ohelelated
interest and real estate taxes.

In determining a portion of the construction amdl@osts for each period, we rely on project busitfeit are
based on a variety of assumptions, including futamestruction schedules and costs to be incurtési pbssible that
actual results could differ from budgeted amouats/arious reasons, including construction del&jsor or
materials shortages, increases in costs that hatwehbeen committed, changes in governmentalinremgents,
unforeseen environmental hazard discoveries or ott@nticipated issues encountered during congtrudtvhile
the actual results for a particular constructionjgut are accurately reported over time, variathetween the
budgeted and actual costs of a project could réstitie understatement or overstatement of cortstruand land
costs and homebuilding gross margins in a spefiorting period. To reduce the potential for sdigortion, we
have set forth procedures that collectively comgascritical accounting policy.” These procedunghjch we have
applied on a consistent basis, include updatirgesssng and revising project budgets on a mongwysbobtaining
commitments from subcontractors and vendors farréutosts to be incurred, reviewing the adequaaeyasfanty
accruals and historical warranty claims experieaod, utilizing the most current information avai@ato estimate
construction and land costs to be charged to expére variances between budgeted and actual taets
historically not had a material impact on our cditeded results of operations. We believe thatpalicies provide
for reasonably dependable estimates to be usdwtioaiculation and reporting of construction andilaosts.

Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Abandonments. As discussed in Note 6. Inventory
Impairments and Land Option Contract Abandonmenthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsisn
report, each land parcel or community in our owimegntory is assessed to determine if indicatongadéntial
impairment exist. Impairment indicators are assessparately for each land parcel or community goaterly
basis and include, but are not limited to: sigaifitdecreases in sales rates, average sellingpvickime of homes
delivered, gross margins on homes delivered oeptefl margins on homes in backlog or future housates;
significant increases in budgeted land developraadtconstruction costs or cancellation rates; ojepted losses
on expected future land sales. If indicators okptal impairment exist for a land parcel or comityrihe
identified inventory is evaluated for recoverapilih accordance with ASC 360. When an indicatopatential
impairment is identified, we test the asset fookerability by comparing the carrying amount of #sset to the
undiscounted future net cash flows expected todmei@gted by the asset. The undiscounted futureasétflows are
impacted by trends and factors known to us atithe they are calculated and our expectations katemarket
supply and demand, including estimates concerniegage selling prices; sales and cancellation yates
anticipated land development, construction andfmead costs to be incurred. These estimates, teardls
expectations are specific to each land parcel smeonity and may vary among land parcels or comnamit

A real estate asset is considered impaired wharaitying amount is greater than the undiscountagé net
cash flows the asset is expected to generate. tetpedal estate assets are written down to faireyathich is
primarily based on the estimated future cash fldissounted for inherent risk associated with easet The
discount rates used in our estimated discountdd ft@ass ranged from 17% to 20% during 2010 and fik0fo to
22% during 2009 and 2008. These discounted casls #we impacted by: the risk-free rate of retuxpeeted risk
premium based on estimated land development, eaaristn and delivery timelines; market risk from gutial future
price erosion; cost uncertainty due to developmerbnstruction cost increases; and other risksip¢o the asset
or conditions in the market in which the assebcated at the time the assessment is made. Thasesfare specifi
to each land parcel or community and may vary amand parcels or communities.

Based on the results of our evaluations, we reeeginpretax, noncash inventory impairment charges of
$9.8 million in 2010 corresponding to eight comntigsi or land parcels with a post-impairment failuesof
$11.6 million. In 2009, we recognized pretax, natcaventory impairment charges of $120.8 million
corresponding to 61 communities or land parcelb wipost-impairment fair value of $129.0 million.

As of November 30, 2010, the aggregate carryingevaf inventory that had been impacted by pretarcash
inventory impairment charges was $418.5 milliopresenting 72 communities and various other lamdgls As o
November 30, 2009, the aggregate carrying valuevaitory that had been impacted by pretax, nonzasntory
impairment charges was $603.9 million, represent®8 communities and various other land parcels.

Our optioned inventory is assessed to determinghghd continues to meet our investment and marget
standards. Assessments are made separately fooptiched parcel on a quarterly basis and are taffielsy, among
other factors: current and/or anticipated salesstaiverage selling prices and home delivery voj@esimated land
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development and construction costs; and projeatefitgbility on expected future housing or landexalWhen a
decision is made not to exercise certain land aptantracts due to market conditions and/or chamgesarketing
strategy, we write off the costs, including nondrefable deposits and pagquisition costs, related to the abandc
projects. Based on the results of our assessmeatscognized land option contract abandonmengeisanf
$10.1 million in 2010 corresponding to 1,007 Idts2009, we recognized land option contract abandnt charge
of $47.3 million corresponding to 1,362 lots.

The value of the land and housing inventory weemntly own or control depends on market conditions,
including estimates of future demand for, and theenues that can be generated from, such inventeyhave
analyzed trends and other information related th edi the markets where we do business and haeeparated thi
information as well as our current outlook into Hesumptions we use in our impairment analyses.t®tie
judgment and assumptions applied in the estimationess with respect to impairments and land om@miraci
abandonments, it is possible that actual resulifdadiffer substantially from those estimated.

We believe the carrying value of our remaining imeey is recoverable. In addition to the factord &iends
incorporated in our impairment analyses, we comsateapplicable, the specific regulatory environtne
competition from other homebuilders, the impacthef resale and foreclosure markets, and the lecalanic
conditions where an asset is located in assedsingetoverability of each asset remaining in oueirtory.
However, if conditions in the overall housing mar&ein specific markets worsen in the future beyonr current
expectations, if future changes in our marketimgtegyy significantly affect any key assumptionsduigseour fair
value calculations, or if there are material changehe other items we consider in assessing erability, we may
need to take additional charges in future periodsniventory impairments or land option contracamadlonments, or
both, related to existing assets. Any such nonchahges would have an adverse effect on our calzeli financie
position and results of operations and may be riahter

Fair Value Measurements. As discussed in Note 7. Fair Value Disclosureth@éNotes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in this report, Accountingh8tads Codification Topic No. 820, “Fair Value Massments
and Disclosures,” (“ASC 820") defines fair valuepyides a framework for measuring the fair valuassets and
liabilities under GAAP and establishes a fair vatigrarchy that requires an entity to maximizeubke of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobs®devaputs when measuring fair value. The fair edhierarchy
can be summarized as follows:

Level 1Fair value determined based on quoted prices imeastarkets for identical assets or liabiliti

Level 2Fair value determined using significant observadybeits, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities or quoted prices for identical or sianilassets or liabilities in markets that are néivacinputs
other than quoted prices that are observable ®asset or liability, or inputs that are derivemhgipally
from or corroborated by observable market datazdsyelation or other mean

Level 3Fair value determined using significant unobservatybuts, such as pricing models, discounted cash
flows, or similar technique:

Fair value measurements are used for inventoriesramrecurring basis when events and circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverdtddr. value is determined based on estimated futasé flows
discounted for inherent risks associated with estdte assets, or other valuation techniques. @uedertainties in
the estimation process, it is possible that acesllts could differ from those estimates.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaghvalents, restricted cash, mortgages and netesvable,
senior notes, and mortgages and land contracttodaad sellers and other loans. Fair value measemés of
financial instruments are determined by variousketdata and other valuation techniques as ap@tepiVhen
available, we use quoted market prices in activekeia to determine fair value.

Warranty Costs. As discussed in Note 14. Commitments and Conticigs in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in this report, we providergtéd warranty on all of our homes. The speciéiots and
conditions of warranties vary depending upon theketan which we do business. We generally proddstructural
warranty of 10 years, a warranty on electricaltingacooling, plumbing and other building systesash varying
from two to five years based on geographic markdtsiate law, and a warranty of one year for otieenponents c
the home. We
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estimate the costs that may be incurred under lgaikd warranty and record a liability in the anmbwf such costs
at the time the revenue associated with the sadadf home is recognized. Our expense associatedhsiissuanc
of these warranties totaled $5.2 million in 2016.,8million in 2009 and $17.2 million in 2008.

Factors that affect our warranty liability incluthee number of homes delivered, historical and grated rates
of warranty claims, and cost per claim. Our primasgumption in estimating the amounts we accruaéoranty
costs is that historical claims experience is argtrindicator of future claims experience. We pdidally assess the
adequacy of our recorded warranty liabilities, vhgce included in accrued expenses and otheritiabiln the
consolidated balance sheets, and adjust the amasimiscessary based on our assessment. While ierechitle
warranty accrual reflected in the consolidated mzdasheets to be adequate, unanticipated changes liegal
environment, local weather, land or environmentalditions, quality of materials or methods usethm
construction of homes, or customer service pragticelld have a significant impact on our actualrarty costs in
the future and such amounts could differ from aurent estimates. A 10% change in the historicatady rates
used to estimate our warranty accrual would nailt@s a material change in our accrual.

Insurance. As discussed in Note 14. Commitments and Conticigs in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in this report, we have, and requirentijerity of our subcontractors to maintain, gehkadility
insurance (including construction defect and boufijyry coverage) and workers’ compensation insceaifhese
insurance policies protect us against a portioounfrisk of loss from claims related to our homddiing activities,
subject to certain self-insured retentions, detlesiand other coverage limits. In Arizona, Califar Colorado and
Nevada, our general liability insurance takes tirenfof awrap-uppolicy, where eligible subcontractors are enro
as insureds on each project. We self-insure aguodf our overall risk through the use of a capthaurance
subsidiary. We record expenses and liabilities thasethe estimated costs required to cover ourigslired
retention and deductible amounts under our ins@r@aticies, and on the estimated costs of potecdidins and
claim adjustment expenses above our coverage laniisat are not covered by our policies. Thesenaséd costs
are based on an analysis of our historical claingsiaclude an estimate of construction defect caiimeurred but
not yet reported. Our expense associated withisglirance totaled $7.4 million in 2010, $9.8 millim 2009 and
$10.1 million in 2008.

We engage a third-party actuary that uses ourrigsicclaim and expense data, as well as industs, do
estimate our unpaid claims, claim adjustment expeasd incurred but not reported claims liabilif@sthe risks
that we are assuming under the self-insured podi@mur general liability insurance. Projectionla$ses related to
these liabilities requires actuarial assumptioas #ne subject to variability due to uncertaintisgarding
construction defect claims relative to our marleetd the types of product we build, claim settlenpaiterns,
insurance industry practices and legal or regwaittterpretations, among other factors. Becaugbheflegree of
judgment required and the potential for variabilitthe underlying assumptions used in determitiiege estimate
liability amounts, actual future costs could diffesm our currently estimated amounts.

Sock-Based Compensation. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significantéunting Policies in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements in this repegtmeasure and recognize compensation expensaaes witt
our grant of equity-based awards in accordance Adttounting Standards Codification Topic No. 718,
“Compensation—Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718"), whiequires that companies measure and recognize
compensation expense at an amount equal to thedlaie of share-based payments granted under ccaiiem
arrangements over the vesting period. We have geoviome compensation benefits to our employetiform
of stock options, restricted stock, phantom shanesstock appreciation rights (“SARs”). Determinthg fair value
of share-based awards requires judgment to idetitEfyappropriate valuation model and develop tBeragtions,
including the expected term of the stock optionSARs, expected stock-price volatility and dividemeld, to be
used in the calculation. Judgment is also requirexstimating the percentage of share-based avlaatiare
expected to be forfeited. We estimated the fainealf stock options and SARs granted using thelB&aholes
option-pricing model with assumptions based priigam historical data. The expected volatility faictvas based
on a combination of the historical volatility of oommon stock and the implied volatility of pullyicraded option
on our common stock. In addition, we estimatedfdlirevalue of certain restricted common stock tkagubject to a
market condition (“Performance Shares”) using a ddbarlo simulation model, as discussed in NoteEt8ployee
Benefit and Stock Plans in the Notes to Consoliti&ieancial Statements in this report. If actuabits differ
significantly from these estimates, stock-basedpmmsation expense and our consolidated resultsestions
could be materially impacted.
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Income Taxes. As discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significantédunting Policies in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this repogtaacount for income taxes in accordance with A8@ The
provision for, or benefit from, income taxes isotdated using the asset and liability method, unddch deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recorded baseddifference between the financial statement axtaais of assets
and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effectthe year in which the differences are expeatagverse. Deferred
tax assets are evaluated on a quarterly basigeondee whether a valuation allowance is requiredccordance
with ASC 740, we assess whether a valuation alleeamould be established based on our determinattiwhethe
it is more likely than not that some portion orditthe deferred tax assets will not be realizdtk Ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets depends priynarilthe generation of future taxable income dutirgperiods in
which those temporary differences become deductiiégment is required in determining the futuse ta
consequences of events that have been recognipen oconsolidated financial statements and/or étixrns.
Differences between anticipated and actual outcarhdsese future tax consequences could have aialdtepact
on our consolidated financial position or resufteperations.

As discussed in Note 16. Income Taxes in the Nmt€onsolidated Financial Statements in this repoduly
2006, the FASB issued guidance that prescribesagnition threshold and measurement attributeghi@financial
statement recognition and measurement of a taxiposaken or expected to be taken in a tax retwe.adopted
this guidance effective December 1, 2007. The catiud effect of the adoption was recorded in 2008 &2.5
million reduction to beginning retained earningsatcordance with this guidance, we recognizeuirconsolidate:
financial statements, the impact of a tax positi@ntax return’s position or future tax positian“more likely than
not” to prevail (defined as a likelihood of more tha¥606f being sustained upon audit, based on the temhmerits
of the tax position).

We recognize accrued interest and penalties retatadrecognized tax benefits in our consolidatedrfcial
statements as a component of the provision fommectaxes consistent with our historical accoungfialicy. Our
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, combinedhnaccrued interest and penalties, is reflecteal @mponent of
accrued expenses and other liabilities in our clideted balance sheets. Judgment is required iluatiag
uncertain tax positions. We evaluate our uncettairpositions quarterly based on various facterdpiding change
in facts or circumstances, tax laws or the stafudits by tax authorities. Changes in the redigmior
measurement of uncertain tax positions could hawat@rial impact on our consolidated results ofrafiens in the
period in which we make the change.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Statsddipdate No. 2010-06, “Improving Disclosures About
Fair Value Measurements” (“ASU 2010-06"), which yides amendments to Accounting Standards Codifinati
Subtopic No. 820-10, “Fair Value Measurements aistibsures — Overall.” ASU 2010-06 requires addiéib
disclosures and clarifications of existing discl@sufor recurring and nonrecurring fair value measwents. The
revised guidance was effective for us in the seapradter of 2010, except for the Level 3 activityotbsures, whic
are effective for fiscal years beginning after Daber 15, 2010. ASU 2010-06 concerns disclosure andywill not
have an impact on our consolidated financial positr results of operations.

In December 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Statsddpdate No. 2010-29, “Disclosure of Supplemsntar
Pro Forma Information for Business Combination®®§U 2010-29"), which addresses diversity in prae@dout
the interpretation of the pro forma revenue andiegs disclosure requirements for business comibmsit The
amendments in ASU 2010-29 specify that if a publitity presents comparative financial statemehtsgntity
should disclose revenue and earnings of the cordlangty as though the business combination(s)dbedtirred
during the current year had occurred as of thertméiggy of the comparable prior annual reportinggeaonly. The
amendments in ASU 2010-29 also expand the supplkaiy@o forma disclosures to include a descriptbthe
nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pranfbadjustments directly attributable to the busiressmbination
included in the reported pro forma revenue andiegsn The amendments in ASU 2010-29 are effective
prospectively for business combinations for whioh &cquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual
reporting period beginning on or after December28,0. We believe the adoption of this guidancé nat have a
material impact on our consolidated financial posior results of operations.
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OUTLOOK

Our backlog at November 30, 2010 totaled 1,336 pmapresenting potential future housing reventies o
approximately $263.8 million. By comparison, at Bmber 30, 2009, our backlog totaled 2,126 homesesenting
potential future housing revenues of approxima$dl22.5 million. The 37% year-over-yedgcline in the number «
homes in backlog was primarily due to a lower nundienet orders generated in the latter half of@6@mpared to
2009 and a higher backlog conversion rate, whighiagrhed 90% in the fourth quarter of 2010 ver2% & the
yeal-earlier quarter, partly due to improved construeitycle times. The 38% year-over-year decreatigein
projected future housing revenues in our backlfigeted the lower number of homes in backlog.

Our homebuilding operations generated 1,085 nedrsrith the fourth quarter of 2010, representingaehse (
25% from the 1,446 net orders posted in the coareding quarter of 2009. This decrease primarillectéd a 24%
decline in our overall average active communityrtpgenerally weak economic and housing market itiond, a
sharp reduction in demand following the April 301D expiration of the federal homebuyer tax credd an
increase in our cancellation rate. As a percentdgeoss orders, our fourth quarter cancellatida veas 37% in
2010 and 31% in 2009. As a percentage of beginpéuglog, the cancellation rate was 29% in the foqrtarter of
2010 and 17% in the year-earlier quarter. Theiwat higher cancellation rates in 2010 were driuepart by
tighter residential consumer mortgage lending steas] particularly in the fourth quarter of the yea

Throughout 2010, adverse housing market conditieryimarily an ongoing oversupply of homes avaiabl
for sale and restrained consumer demand for hougargcularly following the expiration of the fedé homebuyer
tax credit in the second quarter — prolonged tffiicdlt operating environment that we and the houmileling
industry have faced since the housing downturn hhégaid-2006. The main factors perpetuating trasalitions
in 2010 were mounting sales of lender-owned horagaieed through foreclosures and short sales; argén weak
economic and employment environment; tighter may¢geredit standards and reduced credit availapittyid
consumer confidence; intense competition for hoatess and the actual or proposed winding down, ataiu or
reversal of government programs and policies supmgonf homeownership such as the federal homebiayecredi
that expired in April 2010. We expect these factorsontinue to negatively impact housing markietsluding our
served markets, to varying degrees into 2011.

Though market conditions are likely to remain abrading, our highest priority for 2011 continuedb®
restoring and maintaining the profitability of dusmebuilding operations at the scale of prevailingsing market
activity. We made progress toward this goal thraugt2010, particularly in the fourth quarter, asaehieved year-
over-year improvement in our pretax results foraleenth consecutive quarter and generated peatamngs for
the first time in nearly four years. These finahoésults were achieved due in large part to baghdr housing gro:
margins and lower selling, general and administea¢ixpenses.

To support the achievement of our profitability basawe enter 2011, we intend to maintain the d&gden
elements of the integrated strategic actions we liaken in the past few years to transform andipasbur busines
to capitalize on future growth opportunities, irdilg following principles of our KBnxt operationlilisiness mode
working diligently to increase our future revenbgsexpanding our active community count and indrepsaffic to
our communities along with improving our net ordenversion levels; making targeted inventory inwesits in
attractive markets; driving additional operatioatficiencies and overhead expense reductions; aiaingy a strong
balance sheet; remaining attentive to market cammdit and achieving high levels of customer satigfa by
offering homebuyers our unique combination of vaued choice together with innovative and flexibterte design
and a commitment to environmentally conscious petsland options. Foremost among these actionsuare o
ongoing initiatives to acquire ownership or contsbivell-priced finished or partially finished lotlsat meet our
investment and marketing standards within or neareaisting served markets, and to open new hormeramities
in select locations that are expected to offenative potential sales growth. Accordingly, we ettty expect to
increase our total count of owned or controlled iat2011 from the 39,540 lots we owned or corgbht
November 30, 2010, which represented an increa2ed@b such lots from the 37,465 lots we ownedontrolled a
November 30, 2009, and to open approximately 70 m@we communities in the first half of the yeaiparily in
our West Coast and Central regions. Many of these communities will feature our value-engineered peoduct
and, with the improved operating efficiencies apgartunistic inventory investments we have made eaxpected 1
generate revenues more quickly and at a lowerl@sss compared to our older communities. We aratieip
increasing our average active community count by
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approximately 25% in 2011, compared to the aveeamg®e community count for 2010. The pace and Kterg to
which we acquire new land interests, open new hoonemunities and generate revenues in 2011, howenler,
depend significantly on market and economic coodgiduring the year, including actual and expestdes rates,
and the availability of desirable land assets.dyralso depend on our using or redeploying our casbhurces to
reduce our present financial leverage and relatteddst expense through purchases of, or tendensdfir, our
outstanding senior notes, or in conjunction witbdater financial transactions to adjust our ovetebit structure.

Despite our progress over the past several quarter®ur current plans for 2011, we remain cautiowsir
overall outlook given the significant negative fastand trends noted above and the continuing taiogr as to
when our served markets may experience a susteeaesery. Our ability to generate positive resfribsn our
strategic initiatives, including achieving and ntaining profitability and sustaining improvementdar margins ar
increasing the number of homes delivered, remainstcained by, among other things, the current kamcad
supply and demand conditions in many housing maskehich are unlikely to abate soon given the prese
economic and employment environment and low lesEtonsumer confidence, and by the reduction iregowment
programs and incentives designed to support homexsliip and/or home purchases. Given present arettg
market conditions, the sequential and year-over-yegrovements we have experienced in recent quaineour
margins and earnings may not continue in 2011.

We continue to believe a meaningful improvemertdnsing market conditions will require a sustained
decrease in unsold homes, selling price stabitimatieduced mortgage delinquency and foreclostes,rand an
improved economic climate, particularly with respecemployment levels and consumer and credit atark
confidence that support a decision to buy a home c#hnot predict when or the extent to which tleesmts may
occur. Moreover, if conditions in our served maska¢cline further, we may need to take noncashgelsaor
inventory and joint venture impairments and lantapcontract abandonments, and we may decidentbateed to
reduce, slow or even abandon our present land siiqgniand development and new home community aepian:
for those markets. Our 2011 results could alsodversely affected if general economic conditionsidbnotably
improve or actually decline, if job losses acceatei@ weak employment levels persist, if residemtieasumer
mortgage delinquencies, short sales and foreclssnceease, if residential consumer mortgage lendegcomes le:
available or more expensive, or if consumer comfieweakens, any or all of which could further gelaecovery
in housing markets or result in further deteriamatin operating conditions, and if competition fmme sales
intensifies. Despite these difficulties and risksg, believe we are favorably positioned financialhd operationally
to succeed in advancing our primary strategic ggegticularly in view of longer-term demographéconomic and
population-growth trends that we expect will ongaia drive future demand for homeownership.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Investors are cautioned that certain statementstwd in this document, as well as some statennts in
periodic press releases and other public disclgsamd some oral statements by us to securitiegsisand
stockholders during presentations, are “forwardking statements” within the meaning of the Priv@eeurities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”). Statemisrthat are predictive in nature, that depend upaefer to
future events or conditions, or that include wadsh as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “pldh%elieves,”
“estimates,” “hopes,” and similar expressions ciuitgt forward-looking statements. In addition, atgtements
concerning future financial or operating performafiacluding future revenues, homes deliveredpneérs, selling
prices, expenses, expense ratios, margins, earoirggrnings per share, or growth or growth rafes)ye market
conditions, future interest rates, and other ecao@onditions, ongoing business strategies or @otsp future
dividends and changes in dividend levels, the vafuzacklog (including amounts that we expect @ize upon
delivery of homes included in backlog and the tigniri those deliveries), potential future acquisii@nd the impa
of completed acquisitions, future share repurchasdspossible future actions, which may be provioeds, are
also forward-looking statements as defined by the Porwardlooking statements are based on current expecs
and projections about future events and are sutgatdks, uncertainties, and assumptions aboubparations,
economic and market factors, and the homebuildidgstry, among other things. These statementsare n
guarantees of future performance, and we have exifgppolicy or intention to update these stateteen

Actual events and results may differ materiallynfrthose expressed or forecasted in forward-looking
statements due to a number of factors. The mostrtapt risk factors that could cause our actudigperance and
future events and actions to differ materially freach forward-looking statements include, but arelimited to:
general economic, employment and business condjtamverse market conditions that could resulduitéonal
impairments or abandonment charges and operatisgdoincluding an oversupply of unsold homes,rdagl home
prices and increased foreclosure and short sakgtacamong other things; conditions in the capétad credit
markets (including residential consumer mortgageliteg
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standards, the availability of residential consumertgage financing and mortgage foreclosure rateajerial
prices and availability; labor costs and availtysilchanges in interest rates; inflation; our delsel and structure;
weak or declining consumer confidence, either gaheor specifically with respect to purchasing resn
competition for home sales from other sellers af aad existing homes, including sellers of homesioled
through foreclosures or short sales; weather cimmdit significant natural disasters and other emwirental factors;
government actions, policies, programs and reguriatdirected at or affecting the housing marketl(iding, but nc
limited to, the Dodd-Frank Act, tax credits, taxémtives and/or subsidies for home purchases,dduations for
consumer mortgage interest payments and propesg téax exemptions for profits on home sales,@ndrams
intended to modify existing mortgage loans andrevent mortgage foreclosures), the homebuildingsiry, or
construction activities; the availability and co$tand in desirable areas and our ability to idfgreind acquire such
land; legal or regulatory proceedings or claimsluding the claims concerning South Edge descridi®e in Part
| — Item 3. Legal Proceedings”; the ability andglingness of participants in our unconsolidatethj ventures to
fulfill their obligations; our ability to accessmital; our ability to use the net deferred tax &sgee have generated;
our ability to successfully implement our currentigplanned product, geographic and market positg(including
but not limited to, our efforts to expand our intay base/pipeline with desirable land positiongnterests at
reasonable cost and to expand our active commauaityt and open new communities), revenue growthcast
control strategies; consumer interest in our nemdpct designs, includinghe Open Series; and other events
outside of our control.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We enter into debt obligations primarily to suppgeheral corporate purposes, including the opersitid our
subsidiaries. We are subject to interest rateaiskur senior notes. For fixed rate debt, changé@stérest rates
generally affect the fair value of the debt instamt) but not our earnings or cash flows. Undercourent policies,
we do not use interest rate derivative instrumentaanage our exposure to changes in interest rates

The following tables present principal cash flowssbheduled maturity, weighted average interessranhd the
estimated fair value of our long-term debt obligati as of November 30, 2010 and November 30, 288ix(s in

thousands):
Fair Value at
As of November 30, 2010 for the Years Ended Novembg0, November 30,
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015  Thereatfter Total 2010
Long-term debr
Fixed Rate $99,91¢ $ — $ — $249,49¢ $748,81! $ 559,24! $1,657,47. $ 1,638,700
Weighted Average Interest Re 6.4% —% —% 5.8% 6.1% 8.1%
Fair Value at
As of November 30, 2009 for the Years Ended Novemb&0, November 30,
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014  Thereafter _ Total 2009
Long-term debr
Fixed Rate $ — $9980C $§ — — $249,35¢ $1,307,24. $1,656,40. $ 1,587,20

Weighted Average Interest R¢ —% 6.4% —% —% 5.8% 7.C%
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A

KB HOME
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Number

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2 60
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 20d 200¢ 61
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the Years Ended November 30, 2010, 2209 200¢ 62
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2 63
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 64
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 10C

EX-10.40

EX-12.1

EX-21

EX-23

EX-31.1

EX-31.2

EX-32.1

EX-32.2

EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT

EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT

EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT

EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMEN"
EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT

Separate combined financial statements of our wamated joint venture activities have been orditte
because, if considered in the aggregate, they waatidonstitute a significant subsidiary as defibgdrule 3-09 of
Regulation S-X.
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Total revenues $1,589,99 $1,824,85 $3,033,93
Homebuilding:
Revenue! $1,581,76: $1,816,41! $3,023,16!
Construction and land cos (1,308,28) (1,749,91) (3,314,81)
Selling, general and administrative exper (289,52() (303,029 (501,02)
Goodwill impairmen — — (67,970
Operating los! (16,045 (236,52() (860,64
Interest incomi 2,09¢ 7,51¢ 34,61(
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized/lossaoly
redemption of dek (68,307 (51,767) (12,96¢)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu (6,257 (49,615 (152,75()
Homebuilding pretax los (88,517 (330,38 (991,749
Financial services
Revenue! 8,23: 8,43¢ 10,76
Expense! (3,119 (3,25)7) (4,489
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint venti 7,02¢ 14,01¢ 17,54(
Financial services pretax incor 12,14: 19,19¢ 23,81¢
Total pretax loss (76,369 (311,189 (967,93)
Income tax benefit (expens 7,00( 209,40( (8,200
Net loss $ (69,369 $ (101,789 $ (976,13)
Basic and diluted loss per shar: $ (90 $ (1.3 $ (1259
Basic and diluted average shares outstandir 76,88¢ 76,66( 77,50¢

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Shares)

Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Receivable:
Inventories
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Other asset

Financial service
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Mortgages and notes payal

Financial service
Stockholder equity:

Preferred stoc— $1.00 par value; authorized, 10,000,000 shares; rssnec
Common stock — $1.00 par value; authorized, 29Q@@shares at
November 30, 2010 and 2009; 115,148,586 and 11803G&Ghares issue(

KB HOME

at November 30, 2010 and 2009, respecti

Paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive |

Grantor stock ownership trust, at cost: 11,082 a2811,228,951 shares at

November 30, 2010 and 2009, respecti

Treasury stock, at cost: 27,095,467 and 27,047sRa8es at November 30,

2010 and 2009, respective
Total stockholder” equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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November 30,

2010 2009
$ 904,40. $1,174,71!
11547 114,29
108,04 337,93(
1,696,72. 1,501,39.
105,58 119,66¢
150,07t 154,56t
3,080,301 3,402,56!
29,44 33,42
$3,109,74! $3,435,98!
$ 233,21 $ 340,97
466,50! 560,36¢
1,775,52' 1,820,37!
2,475,25. 2,721,71!
2,62( 7,05(C
115,14¢ 115,12(
873,51 860,77
717,85: 806,44.
(22,657 (22,249
(120,44 (122,01)
(931,549 (930,85()
631,87¢ 707,22:
$3,109,74! $3,435,98!
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In Thousands)

Years Ended November 30, 2010, 2009 and 20

Number of Shares Accumulated
Grantor Other Grantor
Stock Comprehensive  Stock Total
Common Ownership Treasury Common Paid-in Retained Income Ownership Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Trust Stock Stock  Capital Earnings (Loss) Trust Stock Equity

Balance at November 30, 20 114,97¢ (12,209 (25,45) $ 114,97¢ $851,62¢ $1,968,88. $ (22,929 $ (132,60¢) $(929,26)$ 1,850,68
Comprehensive los

Net loss — — — — —  (976,13) — — — (976,13)

Postretirement benefits adjustm: — — — — — — 5,621 — — 5,521

Total comprehensive lo: — — — — — — — — — (970,61
Dividends on common stoc — — — — — (62,967) — — — (62,967)
Adoption of new income tax accounting guidal — — — — — (2,459 — — — (2,45¢)
Exercise of employee stock optic 144 — — 144 1,447 — — — — 1,587
Restricted stock amortizatic — — — — 4,94¢ — — — — 4,94¢
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — 5,01¢ — — — — 5,01¢
Grantor stock ownership tru — 302 — — 2,08¢ — — 3,28: — 5,37(
Treasury stocl — — (61) — — — — — (967) (967)
Balance at November 30, 20 115,12( (11,907) (25,519 115,12( 865,120 927,32 (17,409 (129,32f) (930,239 830,60!
Comprehensive los

Net loss — — — — — (101,789 — — — (101,78

Postretirement benefits adjustm: — — — — — — (4,84%) — — (4,842

Total comprehensive lo: — — — — — — — — — (106,62()
Dividends on common stoc — — — — — (19,097 — — — (19,097
Exercise of employee stock optic — — — — (4,099 — — — — (4,097)
Restricted stock awart — — — — (4,846 — — 4,84¢ — —
Restricted stock amortizatic — — — — 1,39C — — — — 1,39C
Stocl-based compensatic — — — — 2,581 — — — — 2,581
Grantor stock ownership tru — 672 — — 611 — — 2,46: — 3,07¢
Treasury stocl — — (1,53%) — — — — — (61€) (616€)
Balance at November 30, 20 115,12( (11,229 (27,047 115,12( 860,77: 806,44: (22,244  (122,01°) (930,85() 707,22
Comprehensive los

Net loss — — — — — (69,36¢) — — — (69,36¢)

Postretirement benefits adjustm: — — — — — — (419 — — (419

Total comprehensive lo: — — — — — — — — — (69,78:)
Dividends on common stoc — — — — — (19,227 — — — (19,229
Exercise of employee stock optic 29 — — 29 2,07¢ — — — — 2,10
Restricted stock awart — — — — (307) — — 307 — —
Restricted stock amortizatic — — — — 2,291 — — — — 2,297
Stoclk-based compensatic — — — — 5,771 — — — — 5,771
Cast-settled stock appreciation rights excha — — — — 2,34¢ — — — — 2,34¢
Grantor stock ownership tru — 14¢€ — — 21& — — 1,26¢ — 1,48:
Treasury stocl — — (48) — 342 — — — (693) (350)
Balance at November 30, 20 115,14¢ (11,089 (27,099 $ 115,14¢ $873,51¢ $ 717,85. $ (22,657 $ (120,447 $(931,54) $ 631,87¢

See accompanying note
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexvi(used) by
operating activities
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated joint wees
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joiehtures
Amortization of discounts and issuance c«
Depreciation and amortizatic

Loss on voluntary termination of revolving creditflity/early redemption of del

Provision for deferred income tax
Tax benefits from sto-based compensatic
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Inventory impairments and land option contract almsaments
Goodwill impairment
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable:
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiied
Other, nei

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu
Sales (purchases) of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted ca
Proceeds from issuance of senior n¢
Payment of senior notes issuance ¢
Repayment of senior and senior subordinated r
Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedcsklfers and other loa
Issuance of common stock under employee stock |
Excess tax benefit associated with exercise okstptions
Payments of cash dividen
Repurchases of common stc

Net cash used by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended November 30,

2010

2009

2008

$ (69,36¢) $ (101,789 $ (976,13)

(772)  3560( 135,21
20,41( 7,662 22,18
2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,06%
3,28¢ 5,23¢ 9,313
1,80z 97€ 10,38t

= — 221,30

(583) 4,09: 2,097
8,072 3,971 5,016
19,928  168,14¢ 606,79
= = 67,97
211,31¢ 35,667 (60,565
(129,33)  433,07*  545,85(
(199,209 (252,62 (282,78)
(1,669 8,29¢ 32,60:
(133,96) 349,91 341,32
(15,669 (19,929 (59,62
(420 (1,379 7,07¢
(16,089 (21,29) _ (52,55
(1,18%) 1,112 (115,409
— 259,73 —

_ (4,292 _

—  (453,10) (305,819
(101,15) (78,989 (12,800
1,851 3,07¢ 6,95¢
582 = =
(19,229 (19,09  (62,96))
(350) (61€) (967)
(119,479  (292,17) _ (490,999
(269,53)  36,44: (202,22)
1,177,96. 1,141,551 1,343,74:

$ 908,43( $1,177,96. $1,141,51i
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KB HOME
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Operations. KB Home is a builder of single-family homes, tdvames and condominiums. As of
November 30, 2010, the Company had ongoing op@stioArizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Maayd,
Nevada, North Carolina, Texas and Virginia. The @any also offers mortgage banking services thrdUgh
Mortgage, a joint venture with a subsidiary of BarilAmerica, N.A. KBA Mortgage is accounted foras
unconsolidated joint venture within the Companffhancial services reporting segment. The Compaiayides title
and insurance services through its financial ses/gubsidiary, KB Home Mortgage Company (“KBHMC").

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts of the Company and all
significant subsidiaries and joint ventures in vihéccontrolling interest is held, as well as carMiEs required to
be consolidated pursuant to ASC 810. All interconypansactions have been eliminated. Investments i
unconsolidated joint ventures in which the Complaay less than a controlling interest are accouiotedsing the
equity method.

Use of Estimates. The accompanying consolidated financial statemkeate been prepared in conformity with
GAAP and, therefore, include amounts based onrniméar estimates and judgments of management. Actsalts
could differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash. The Company considers all highly liquid shortter
investments purchased with an original maturittho€e months or less to be cash equivalents. Thep@oy’s cash
equivalents totaled $797.2 million at November 0.0 and $1.07 billion at November 30, 2009. Theonity of
the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were ev@simoney market accounts and U.S. governmentises.

Restricted cash of $115.5 million at November 3,®consisted of $88.7 million of cash depositetth wi
various financial institutions that is requiredcadlateral for the LOC Facilities, and $26.8 milliof cash in an
escrow account required as collateral for a susetyd. Restricted cash of $114.3 million at Novenr2009
consisted solely of cash deposited in an inteessrve account with the administrative agent ofQtedit Facility
pursuant to the Credit Facility’s terms. The Créditility was terminated effective March 31, 20h@ éhe cash
deposited in the interest reserve account was veitinal.

Property and Equipment, Operating Properties and Depreciation. Property and equipment are recorded at cost

and are depreciated over their estimated usefes liwhich generally range from two to 10 yearsygishe straight-

line method. Operating properties are recordedsit @and are depreciated over their estimated ubeés| of

39 years, using the straight-line method. Repairraaintenance costs are charged to earnings asedcroperty

and equipment and operating properties are incliether assets on the consolidated balance shi&eiserty and
equipment totaled $9.6 million, net of accumulade@reciation of $27.1 million, at November 30, 20410d

$12.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation 80 % million, at November 30, 2009. Depreciatiopense totale
$3.3 million in 2010, $5.2 million in 2009 and $9r8llion in 2008.

Homebuilding Operations. Revenues from housing and other real estate asdagcognized in accordance
with ASC 360 when sales are closed and title passé® buyer. Sales are closed when all of tHeviohg
conditions are met: a sale is consummated, a giffidown payment is received, the earnings proisessmplete
and the collection of any remaining receivablegasonably assured.

Construction and land costs are comprised of dardtallocated costs, including estimated futusgctor
warranties and amenities. Land, land improvememdsodher common costs are generally allocated refative fair
value basis to homes within a parcel or communhitynd and land development costs include relatestast and re
estate taxes.

Housing and land inventories are stated at co$tsarthe carrying amount is determined not to bewerable,
in which case the inventories are written downatio ¥alue in accordance with ASC 360. ASC 360 rexputhat real
estate assets be tested for recoverability wherexants or changes in circumstances indicate lileat ¢arrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Recoverabilityseéts is measured by comparing the carrying anaian asset
to the undiscounted future net cash flows expeittdet generated by the asset. These evaluatiomspairment ar
significantly impacted by estimates of the amowamd timing of revenues, costs and expenses, aed fattiors. If
real estate assets are considered to be impamednpairment to be recognized is measured byrimiat by whicl
the carrying value of the
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assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. &8ai \s determined based on estimated future ¢asis fHiscounted
for inherent risks associated with the real esdatets, or other valuation techniques.

Fair Value Measurements. ASC 820 defines fair value, provides a frameworkmeasuring the fair value of
assets and liabilities under GAAP and establisHes aalue hierarchy that requires an entity toximaze the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobsésvaputs when measuring fair value.

Fair value measurements are used for inventoriegsrmmrecurring basis when events and circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverdkddr. value is determined based on estimated futasé flows
discounted for inherent risks associated with estdte assets, or other valuation techniques.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, restricted cash, mortgagbsaes
receivable, senior notes, and mortgages and lamiees due to land sellers and other loans. Firev
measurements of financial instruments are detewiyevarious market data and other valuation tephes as
appropriate. When available, the Company uses duutgket prices in active markets to determineviaiue.

Financial Services Operations. Revenues from the Company’s financial servicgsnamt are generated
primarily from interest income, title services, andurance commissions. Interest income is accasezhrned. Title
services revenues are recognized as closing serareerendered and title insurance policies ategshoth of
which generally occur simultaneously at the timehdaome is closed. Insurance commissions are regjwhen
policies are issued.

Warranty Costs. The Company provides a limited warranty on alit®homes. The Company estimates the
costs that may be incurred under each limited wagyrand records a liability in the amount of suosts at the time
the revenue associated with the sale of each hemeedgnized. Factors that affect the Company’samdy liability
include the number of homes delivered, historical anticipated rates of warranty claims, and cestcfaim. The
Company’s primary assumption in estimating the am®it accrues for warranty costs is that histdritams
experience is a strong indicator of future claimgegience. The Company periodically assesses thguady of its
recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the ani®@as necessary based on its assessment.

Insurance. The Company self-insures a portion of its ovetiak through the use of a captive insurance
subsidiary. The Company records expenses andifiabibased on the estimated costs required torétsveelf-
insured retention and deductible amounts undénstsrance policies, and on the estimated coststainpial claims
and claim adjustment expenses above its covenauis lor that are not covered by its policies. Thestémated cos
are based on an analysis of the Company’s histari@iens and include an estimate of constructiofecteclaims
incurred but not yet reported.

The Company engages a third-party actuary thattheeSompany’s historical claim and expense datayell
as industry data, to estimate its unpaid clainanchdjustment expenses and incurred but not regataims
liabilities for the risks that the Company is assugrunder the self-insured portion of its geneiability insurance.
Projection of losses related to these liabilitieguires actuarial assumptions that are subjectiiahility due to
uncertainties regarding construction defect claietative to the Company’s markets and the typgeaduct it
builds, claim settlement patterns, insurance ingiystactices and legal or regulatory interpretaticamong other
factors. Because of the degree of judgment requinethe potential for variability in the underlgiassumptions
used in determining these estimated liability amsuactual future costs could differ from the Comya currently
estimated amounts.

Advertising Costs. The Company expenses advertising costs as inkurhee Company incurred advertising
costs of $25.9 million in 2010, $16.5 million in@®and $34.6 million in 2008.

Sock-Based Compensation.  With the approval of the management developmedtc®@mpensation committee,
consisting entirely of independent members of then@any’s board of directors, the Company has pex/gbme
compensation benefits to its employees in the foirstock options, restricted stock, phantom sharesSARs.

The Company measures and recognizes compensapensxassociated with its grant of equity-baseddsva
in accordance with ASC 718, which requires that ganies measure and recognize compensation expease a
amount equal to the fair value of share-based patsrganted under compensation arrangements oxeegting
period. The Company estimates the fair value afkstptions and SARs granted using the Black-Schay¢ien-
pricing model. ASC 718 also requires the tax beéme§ulting from tax deductions in excess of thmpensation
expense recognized for those options to be reportdte statement of cash flows as an operating catflow and ¢
financing cash inflow.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for in accordanceASt@ 740. The provision for, or benefit fro
income taxes is calculated using the asset anilityaimethod, under which deferred tax assets #aduilities are
recorded based on
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the difference between the financial statementtardbasis of assets and liabilities using ena@rddtes in effect
for the year in which the differences are expetbetverse. Deferred tax assets are evaluatedjaargerly basis to
determine whether a valuation allowance is requiredccordance with ASC 740, the Company assegsether a
valuation allowance should be established baséts @etermination of whether it is more likely thaaot that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will hetrealized. The ultimate realization of deferredassets depends
primarily on the generation of future taxable in@during the periods in which those temporary diffees becon
deductible. Judgment is required in determiningftiiere tax consequences of events that have lesagmized in
the Company’s consolidated financial statementgaariex returns. Differences between anticipatedi actual
outcomes of these future tax consequences could davaterial impact on the Company’s consolidatehtial
position or results of operations.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. The accumulated balances of other comprehenssseih the
consolidated balance sheets as of November 30, 204 @009 are comprised solely of adjustments decbdirectl
to accumulated other comprehensive loss in accoedaith ASC 715. ASC 715 requires an employer togeize
the funded status of defined postretirement bepédits as an asset or liability on the balancetsakrequires any
unrecognized prior service costs and actuarialsglaisses to be recognized in accumulated other @mpsive
income (loss).

Loss Per Share. Basic and diluted loss per share were calculasefdllows (in thousands, except per share

amounts):
Years Ended November 30,
2010 2009 2008

Numerator:

Net loss $(69,36¢) $(101,78) $(976,13)
Denominator

Basic and diluted average shares outstan 76,88¢ 76,66( 77,50¢
Basic and diluted loss per shi $ (90 $ (1.3y) $ (1259

All outstanding stock options were excluded from thluted loss per share calculations for the yeaded
November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 because the efféiceir inclusion would be antidilutive, or woullcrease th
reported loss per share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06¢hvprovides
amendments to Accounting Standards Codificatiortcub No. 820-10, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures — Overall.” ASU 2010-06 requires adudfitil disclosures and clarifications of existingctbsures for
recurring and nonrecurring fair value measureméiiis.revised guidance was effective for the Comparilge
second quarter of 2010, except for the Level 3ragtdisclosures, which are effective for fiscabys beginning aft
December 15, 2010. ASU 2010-06 concerns disclasuiseand will not have an impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, whildresses diversity in practice about the
interpretation of the pro forma revenue and eamhtigclosure requirements for business combinatibines
amendments in ASU 2010-29 specify that if a publitity presents comparative financial statemehtsgntity
should disclose revenue and earnings of the cordlangty as though the business combination(s)dbedirred
during the current year had occurred as of thertvéigy of the comparable prior annual reporting getonly. The
amendments in ASU 2010-29 also expand the suppkameano forma disclosures to include a descriptibihe
nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pranfbadjustments directly attributable to the busiressmbination
included in the reported pro forma revenue andiegsn The amendments in ASU 2010-29 are effective
prospectively for business combinations for whiwh &cquisition date is on or after the beginningheffirst annual
reporting period beginning on or after December2l8,0. The Company believes the adoption of thidance will
not have a material impact on its consolidatedrfome position or results of operations.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the consolidated financiakstents of prior years have been reclass
to conform to the 2010 presentation.
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Note 2. Segment Information

As of November 30, 2010, the Company had identffieel reporting segments, comprised of four homieting
reporting segments and one financial services tiegpsegment, within its consolidated operationadnordance
with Accounting Standards Codification Topic No028Segment Reporting.” As of November 30, 201@, th
Company’s homebuilding reporting segments conduategbing operations in the following states:

West Coast: California

Southwest: Arizona and Nevada

Central: Colorado and Texas

Southeast: Florida, Maryland, North Carolina, andyMia

The Company’s homebuilding reporting segments agaged in the acquisition and development of land
primarily for residential purposes and offer a widgiety of homes that are designed to appeatsbtime, moveup
and active adult homebuyers.

The Company’s homebuilding reporting segments \ideatified based primarily on similarities in econic
and geographic characteristics, product types Jaggy environments, methods used to sell and caocishomes
and land acquisition characteristics. The Compaajuates segment performance primarily based omeey
pretax results.

The Company’s financial services reporting segnpeovides title and insurance services to the Coiyigan
homebuyers. This segment also provides mortgagarnaaeervices to the Company’s homebuyers througA K
Mortgage. The Company’s financial services repgriagment conducts operations in the same markdiea
Company’s homebuilding reporting segments.

The Company’s reporting segments follow the sancewating policies used for the Company’s consotidat
financial statements as described in Note 1. SumwiaBignificant Accounting Policies. Operationakults of each
segment are not necessarily indicative of the teslidt would have occurred had the segment beardapendent,
stand-alone entity during the periods presentedarethey indicative of the results to be expeatedture periods.

The following tables present financial informati@fating to the Company’s reporting segments (guands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Revenues

West Coas $ 700,64! $ 812,200 $1,055,02:
Southwes 187,73t 218,09t 618,01
Central 436,40« 434,40( 594,31
Southeas 256,97¢ 351,71 755,81
Total homebuilding revenu 1,581,76. 1,816,41' 3,023,16!
Financial service 8,23: 8,43¢ 10,76
Total revenue $1,589,99 $1,824,85 $3,033,93!

Pretax income (loss
West Coas $ 60,25( $ (88,44) $ (298,04)
Southwes (15,807 (48,577  (212,19)
Central 1,772) (29,387 (82,789
Southeas (42,80)) (78,414 (258,56
Corporate and other ( (88,38¢) (85,579) (140,15)
Total homebuilding los (88,51) (330,38 (991,749
Financial service 12,14: 19,19¢ 23,81¢
Total pretax los: $ (76,366 $ (311,189 $ (967,93)

(a)Corporate and other includes corporate generabdministrative expenses and goodwill impairm
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Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ttees:
West Coas $ 147¢ $ (7,76) $ (45,180
Southwes (8,63)) (15,509 (35,63Y)
Central — 50¢€ (4,515
Southeas 89¢ (26,857) (67,427)
Total $ (6,25) $ (49,61) $(152,75()
Inventory impairments
West Coas $ 3,826 $ 44,898 $ 229,05
Southwes 962 28,83t 160,57:
Central 34¢ 23,891 51,51¢
Southeas 4,671 23,22¢ 124,72¢
Total $ 9,81t §$ 120,84¢( $ 565,87
Land option contract abandonmer
West Coas $ 797 $ 32,67¢ $ 17,47t
Southwes — — 187
Central 6,511 —
Southeas 2,80z 14,62 23,25:
Total $ 10,11C $ 47,301 $ 40,91«
Joint venture impairment
West Coas $ — $ 7,19C $ 43,11¢
Southwes — 5,42¢ 30,43
Central — — 2,62¢
Southeas — 25,91¢ 65,67
Total $ — $ 38,537 $ 141,85(
November 30,
2010 2009
Assets:
West Coas $ 965,320 $ 838,51(
Southwes 376,23 346,03!
Central 328,93t 357,68t
Southeas 372,61 361,55:
Corporate and othe 1,037,200  1,498,78.
Total homebuilding asse 3,080,301  3,402,56!
Financial service 29,44: 33,42¢
Total asset $3,109,74' $3,435,98!
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventul
West Coas $ 37,83 $ 54,79
Southwes 59,191 56,77¢
Central — —
Southeas 8,562 8,09¢
Total $ 105,58 $ 119,66!
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Note 3. Financial Services

The following tables present financial informatietating to the Company’s financial services reipgrt
segment (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Revenue:

Interest incom: $ 6 9 31 $ 20¢

Title services 992 1,18¢ 2,36¢

Insurance commissiot 7,23¢ 7,22( 8,18¢

Total 8,23: 8,43t 10,76"
Expense!

General and administrati\ (3,119 (3,25)) (4,489
Operating incom: 5,11¢ 5,18¢ 6,27¢
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint venti 7,02¢ 14,01¢ 17,54(
Pretax incom: $ 12,14: $ 19,19¢ §$§ 23,81

November 30,
2010 2009
Assets

Cash and cash equivale $ 4020 $ 3,24¢

Receivable! 1,607 1,39t

Investment in unconsolidated joint vent 23,77" 28,74¢

Other asset 30 35
Total asset $ 29,44 $ 33,42
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 2620 $ 7,05(
Total liabilities $ 2620 $ 7,05(

Although KBHMC ceased originating and selling madg loans on September 1, 2005, it may be reqtored
repurchase an individual loan that it funded obefore August 31, 2005 and sold to an investdref t
representations or warranties that it made in cotore with the sale of the loan are breached, énagbent of an ear
payment default, or if the loan does not complyhwiite underwriting standards or other requiremehtle ultimate
investor.

Note 4. Receivables

Mortgages and notes receivable totaled $40.5 miibNovember 30, 2010 and $70.7 million at Novendfe
2009. Mortgages and notes receivable are primagifted to land sales. Interest rates on mortgagesotes
receivable ranged from 3% to 8% at November 300201 from 4% to 8% at November 30, 2009. Included
mortgages and notes receivable at November 30, BQi8ote receivable of $40.0 million on which @empany i
in the process of foreclosing on the underlyind estate.

Federal and state income taxes receivable totaethilion at November 30, 2010 and $191.5 millain
November 30, 2009. Other receivables of $66.7 omlht November 30, 2010 and $75.7 million at NovengD,
2009 included amounts due from municipalities afilityucompanies, and escrow deposits. Other readgdias were
net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $31.8iom in 2010 and $48.9 million in 2009.
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Note 5. Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand

November 30,

2010 2009
Homes, lots and improvements in product $1,298,08! $1,091,85.
Land under developme 398,63t 409,54
Total $1,696,72. $1,501,39

Inventories include land and land development ¢astsct construction costs, capitalized interexst eeal esta
taxes. Land under development primarily consistsas€els on which 50% or less of estimated devetroosts
have been incurred.

Interest is capitalized to inventories while thiated communities are being actively developeduartd homes
are completed. Capitalized interest is amortizecbimstruction and land costs as the related inviestare delivered
to homebuyers. The Company’s interest costs afallagvs (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008
Capitalized interest at beginning of yt $291,27¢ $361,61¢ $ 348,08«
Capitalized interest related to consolidation &fviously unconsolidated
joint ventures 9,91« — —
Interest incurred (e 122,23( 119,60: 156,40:
Interest expensed/loss on early redemption of @gl (68,307 (51,769 (12,96¢)
Interest amortized to construction and land ¢ (105,15() (138,179 (129,90)
Capitalized interest at end of year $249,96¢ $291,27¢ $361,61¢

(a)Amounts for the year ended November 30, 2010 irechutbtal of $1.8 million of debt issuance costitam off
in connection with the Company’s voluntary reduetad the aggregate commitment under the CreditliBaci
from $650.0 million to $200.0 million and the sufaent voluntary termination of the Credit Facilimounts
for the years ended November 30, 2009 and 2008dedbsses on the early redemption of debt of §flion
and $10.4 million, respectivel

(b) Inventory impairment charges are recognized agaihstventory costs of a community, such as ldadd
improvements, cost of home construction and capédlinterest. Capitalized interest amounts preskint the
table reflect the gross amount of capitalized ggeas impairment charges recognized are not dbnallacated
to specific components of inventol

Note 6. Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Abandonments

Each land parcel or community in the Company’s ahingentory is assessed to determine if indicabdbrs
potential impairment exist. Impairment indicators assessed separately for each land parcel or goitynon a
quarterly basis and include, but are not limitedstgnificant decreases in sales rates, averaipgsplices, volume
of homes delivered, gross margins on homes delivergrojected margins on homes in backlog or Rihousing
sales; significant increases in budgeted land d@veént and construction costs or cancellation rategrojected
losses on expected future land sales. If indicaibmotential impairment exist for a land parcecommunity, the
identified inventory is evaluated for recoverapilih accordance with ASC 360. When an indicatopatential
impairment is identified, the Company tests theebf® recoverability by comparing the carrying ambof the
asset to the undiscounted future net cash flowsagg to be generated by the asset. The undisabfuitee net
cash flows are impacted by trends and factors knovthe Company at the time they are calculatedtiaad
Company’s expectations related to: market supptiydamand, including estimates concerning averatjege
prices; sales and cancellation rates; and antaiplaind development, construction and overhead ¢todie
incurred. These estimates, trends and expectai@nspecific to each land parcel or community aag wary
among land parcels or communities.
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A real estate asset is considered impaired wharaitying amount is greater than the undiscountagé net
cash flows the asset is expected to generate. tetpedal estate assets are written down to faireyathich is
primarily based on the estimated future cash fldissounted for inherent risk associated with easet The
discount rates used in the Company’s estimatesdiged cash flows ranged from 17% to 20% duringd2rid
from 10% to 22% during 2009 and 2008. These distsmlioash flows are impacted by: the risk-free catesturn;
expected risk premium based on estimated land denednt, construction and delivery timelines; marisk from
potential future price erosion; cost uncertaintg tlu development or construction cost increasaspémer risks
specific to the asset or conditions in the marketfich the asset is located at the time the assadss made.
These factors are specific to each land parcebameunity and may vary among land parcels or comtiagi

Based on the results of its evaluations, the Compacognized pretax, noncash inventory impairméarges
of $9.8 million in 2010, $120.8 million in 2009 a®865.9 million in 2008. As of November 30, 201k tiggregate
carrying value of inventory that had been impadtggretax, noncash inventory impairment charges was
$418.5 million, representing 72 communities andowey other land parcels. As of November 30, 2008 dggrega
carrying value of inventory that had been impadtegretax, noncash inventory impairment charges was
$603.9 million, representing 128 communities andous other land parcels.

The Company’s optioned inventory is assessed trd@te whether it continues to meet the Company’s
internal investment and marketing standards. Assests are made separately for each optioned pamcz|
quarterly basis and are affected by, among otlworfs: current and/or anticipated sales rates aaeeselling prices
and home delivery volume; estimated land developraed construction costs; and projected profitgbdn
expected future housing or land sales. When aideds made not to exercise certain land optiortraats due to
market conditions and/or changes in marketingegsatthe Company writes off the costs, including-nefundable
deposits and pre-acquisition costs, related t@b@doned projects. Based on the results of iessas®ents, the
Company recognized land option contract abandongterges of $10.1 million in 2010, $47.3 million2609 and
$40.9 million in 2008.

Inventory impairment and land option contract almmmdent charges are included in construction and ¢aists
in the Company'’s consolidated statements of opeTsti

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied iregtienation process with respect to inventory inpaints
and land option contract abandonments, it is ptssitat actual results could differ substantiaityni those
estimated.

Note 7. Fair Value Disclosures

ASC 820 defines fair value, provides a frameworknfieasuring the fair value of assets and liabditiader
GAAP and establishes a fair value hierarchy thatires an entity to maximize the use of observatgats and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when méagdiair value. The fair value hierarchy can be marized as
follows:

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices imeagtarkets for identical assets or liabiliti

Level 2 Fair value determined using significalbservable inputs, such as quoted prices for aimadsets or
liabilities or quoted prices for identical or sianilassets or liabilities in markets that are ntivac
inputs other than quoted prices that are obsenfabkhe asset or liability, or inputs that areided
principally from or corroborated by observable nertfata, by correlation or other mea

Level 3 Fair value determined using significanbbservable inputs, such as pricing models, disteal cash
flows, or similar technique:

Fair value measurements are used for inventoriesramrecurring basis when events and circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverahie following table presents the Company’s assetasured at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Significant

Prices in Other Significant
Year Ended Active Observable Unobservable
November 30 Markets Inputs Inputs
Description 2010 (a) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Losse:
Long-lived assets held and us $ 11571 $ — % — $ 1157C $ (9,81
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(&) Amount represents the aggregate fair values fomeonities where the Company recognized noncash tomen
impairment charges during the period, as of the twt the fair value measurements were made. ditngircg
value for these communities may have subsequemthgased or decreased from the fair value refledtiedto
activity that has occurred since the measuremedat

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 360, Idingd assets held and used with a carrying amotnt o
$21.4 million were written down to their fair valoé $11.6 million during the year ended NovemberZmL0,
resulting in noncash inventory impairment charge$8 million.

The fair values for londjved assets held and used, determined using 3irgluts, were primarily based on
estimated future cash flows discounted for inhersktassociated with each asset. These discowatddflows are
impacted by: the risk-free rate of return; expectskl premium based on estimated land developneenstruction
and delivery timelines; market risk from potenfiaiure price erosion; cost uncertainty due to depelent or
construction cost increases; and other risks Speoithe asset or conditions in the market in \htoe asset is
located at the time the assessment is made. Taesed are specific to each land parcel or commuamt may var
among land parcels or communities.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of casth cash equivalents, restricted cash, mortgagtsaes
receivable, senior notes, and mortgages and lamiaes due to land sellers and other loans. Feirev
measurements of financial instruments are detewmriyevarious market data and other valuation teples as
appropriate. When available, the Company uses duutegket prices in active markets to determinevalue. The
following table presents the carrying values artireded fair values of the Compasyfinancial instruments, exce
for those for which the carrying values approxinmfaie values (in thousands):

November 30,

2010 2009
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial Liabilities:

Senior notes due 2011 a3/ 8% $ 99,91¢ $101,50(C $ 99,80( $100,25(
Senior notes due 2014 a3/ 4% 249,49¢ 246,25( 249,35¢( 234,37!
Senior notes due 2015 a’/ 8% 299,06¢ 289,50( 298,87 276,00(
Senior notes due 2015 al/ 4% 449,74" 435,37F 449,69¢ 419,06
Senior notes due 2017 at 9.: 260,35 279,57¢ 259,88 276,26
Senior notes due 2018 al/ 4% 298,89 286,50( 298,78 281,25(

The fair values of the Company’s senior notes atienated based on quoted market prices.

The carrying amounts reported for cash and casivaeguts, restricted cash, mortgages and notesvedile,
and mortgages and land contracts due to land seliet other loans approximate fair values.

Note 8. Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB revised the authoritatividance for determining the primary beneficiary &fI&. In
December 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, whiokiged amendments to ASC 810 to reflect the relvise
guidance. The amendments to ASC 810 replaced thetitptive-based risk and rewards calculation ftednining
which reporting entity, if any, has a controllingerest in a VIE with an approach focused on idiginty which
reporting entity has the power to direct the atitgi of a VIE that most significantly impact theB/$ economic
performance and (i) the obligation to absorb losdeke VIE or (ii) the right to receive benefite the VIE. The
amendments also require additional disclosurestaboeporting entity’s involvement with VIEs. Th@@pany
adopted the amended provisions of ASC 810 effe@eeember 1, 2009. The adoption of the amendedgoms o
ASC 810 did not have a material effect on the Camfsaconsolidated financial position or resultopkrations.

The Company participates in joint ventures frometito time for the purpose of conducting land adtjarg
development and/or other homebuilding activitiésinvestments in these joint ventures may creatgiable
interest in a VIE, depending on the contractuah&eof the arrangement. The Company analyzes fisyentures in
accordance
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with ASC 810 to determine whether they are VIEs, dingb, whether the Company is the primary bernafic All of
the Company’s joint ventures at November 30, 20kdDMovember 30, 2009 were determined under theigioms
of ASC 810 applicable at each such date to be wndinlated joint ventures, either because they wete/IEs or, if
they were VIEs, the Company was not the primarefierary of the VIEs.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compantgrs into land option contracts, or similar cacis, to
procure land for the construction of homes. Theafismich land option and other similar contractsegally allows
the Company to reduce the market risks associaitddivect land ownership and development, redtices
Companys capital and financial commitments, including iest and other carrying costs, and minimizes theuan
of the Company’s land inventories in its consokdhbalance sheets. Under such contracts, the Cogmykupay a
specified option deposit or earnest money deposibnsideration for the right to purchase lanchmfuture, usually
at a predetermined price. Under the requirementsS&l 810, certain of these contracts may creatxiable intere:
for the Company, with the land seller being idéatifas a VIE.

In compliance with ASC 810, the Company analyzeaitd option and other similar contracts to deteem
whether the corresponding land sellers are VIEs iusd, whether the Company is the primary benafic
Although the Company does not have legal titihtodptioned land, ASC 810 requires the Companptsalidate
a VIE if the Company is determined to be the pryragneficiary. As a result of its analyses, the @any
determined that as of November 30, 2010 it wagheprimary beneficiary of any VIEs from whichstpurchasing
land under land option and other similar contrasiace adopting the amended provisions of ASC Bi0,
determining whether it is the primary beneficighe Company considers, among other things, whéthes the
power to direct the activities of the VIE that meggnificantly impact the VIE's economic performan&uch
activities would include, among other things, deti@ing or limiting the scope or purpose of the V#g|ling or
transferring property owned or controlled by thé&\or arranging financing for the VIE. The Compahso
considers whether it has the obligation to absosbds of the VIE or the right to receive benefitefthe VIE.

Based on its analyses as of November 30, 2009 hwinice performed before the Company adopted the
amended provisions of ASC 810, the Company detethihat it was the primary beneficiary of certaile¥ from
which it was purchasing land under land optiontbeosimilar contracts and, therefore, consolidatgch VIES.
Prior to its adoption of the amended provisionA8LC 810, in determining whether it was the primlagyeficiary,
the Company considered, among other things, tleedfizs deposit relative to the contract price, tisk of
obtaining land entitlement approval, the risk asted with land development required under the Iaptibn or
other similar contract, and the risk of changethéxmarket value of the optioned land during thetieat period.
The consolidation of VIEs in which the Company deti@ed it was the primary beneficiary increaseceimories,
with a corresponding increase to accrued expemsesther liabilities, on the Comparsytonsolidated balance sh
by $21.0 million at November 30, 2009. The liai®kt related to the Comparsytonsolidation of VIEs from which
has arranged to purchase land under option and sithédar contracts represent the difference betwbe purchase
price of land not yet purchased and the Comparags deposits. The Company’s cash deposits relatiese land
option and other similar contracts totaled $4.liarilat November 30, 2009. Creditors, if any, afsh VIES have 1
recourse against the Company.

As of November 30, 2010, the Company had cash dsgogaling $2.6 million associated with land aptiand
other similar contracts that the Company determindat unconsolidated VIEs, having an aggregatehase price
of $86.1 million, and had cash deposits totaling.8Imillion associated with land option and otherigr contracts
that the Company determined were not VIEs, havingggregate purchase price of $274.3 million.

The Company’s exposure to loss related to its @ptibn and other similar contracts with third paestand
unconsolidated entities consisted of its non-refohel deposits, which totaled $14.8 million at Nobem30, 2010
and $9.6 million at November 30, 2009 and are hetlin inventories in the Company’s consolidateldze
sheets. In addition, the Company had outstanditgy$eof credit of $4.2 million at November 30, RCdnd
$8.7 million at November 30, 2009 in lieu of cagpdsits under certain land option or other simitartracts.

The Company also evaluates its land option and aih@lar contracts for financing arrangements in
accordance with ASC 470, and, as a result of iduations, increased inventories, with a correspanuhcrease to
accrued expenses and other liabilities, in its obidiated balance sheets by $15.5 million at Novar3fe 2010 and
$36.1 million at November 30, 2009.
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Note 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Venture:

The Company has investments in unconsolidated y@ntures that conduct land acquisition, develogmen
and/or other homebuilding activities in various keds where the Company’s homebuilding operatioadarated.
The Company’s partners in these unconsolidated y&ntures are unrelated homebuilders, and/or developers
and other real estate entities, or commercial pritess. The Company entered into these unconsetigaint
ventures in previous years to reduce or share rharicedevelopment risks and increase the numbigs ofvned an
controlled homesites. In some instances, particigah unconsolidated joint ventures has enableddbmpany to
acquire and develop land that it might not otheewiave had access to due to a project’s size,dingmeeds,
duration of development or other circumstances.l®\thie Company has viewed its participation in ursadidated
joint ventures as beneficial to its homebuilding\aties, it does not view such participation asergtial and ha
unwound its participation in a number of unconsatidl joint ventures in the past few years.

The Company and/or its unconsolidated joint venpaeners typically have obtained or entered ibeen
arrangements to have the right to purchase portibtiee land held by certain of the unconsolidgtéat ventures.
When an unconsolidated joint venture sells lanthéoCompany’s homebuilding operations, the Compueigrs
recognition of its share of such unconsolidatedtjeenture earnings until a home sale is closediiedasses to a
homebuyer, at which time the Company accountshfose earnings as a reduction of the cost of puircdéise land
from the unconsolidated joint venture.

The Company and its unconsolidated joint venturénpas make initial and/or ongoing capital conttibos to
these unconsolidated joint ventures, typically gnarata basis. The obligations to make capitatrioutions are
governed by each unconsolidated joint venture’seetive operating agreement and related documents.

Each unconsolidated joint venture is obligated gmain financial statements in accordance with ®AAhe
Company shares in profits and losses of these wotidated joint ventures generally in accordandh ws
respective equity interests. In some instancesCtimapany recognizes profits and losses that diffen its pro rata
share of profits and losses recognized by an umdioiased joint venture. Such differences may afiemn
impairments recognized by the Company relatedstmitestment in an unconsolidated joint venturecildiffer
from the recognition of impairments by the uncoitaikd joint venture; differences between the Camgfsabasis il
assets transferred to an unconsolidated joint veratnd the unconsolidated joint venture’s basthase assets; the
deferral of unconsolidated joint venture profitsrir land sales to the Company; or other items.

The following table presents information from tlerbined condensed statements of operations of the
Company'’s unconsolidated joint ventures (in thodsan

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Revenue: $ 122,20( $ 60,79( $ 112,76
Construction and land cos (120,010 (117,25%) (458,16%)
Other expenses, n (19,367) (46,437 (38,170
Loss $ (17,177 $(102,89) $ (383,57)

With respect to the Company’s investment in uncbdated joint ventures, its equity in loss of unsolidated
joint ventures included pretax, noncash impairnotratrges of $38.5 million in 2009 and $141.9 millior2008.
There were no such impairment charges in 2010.tBtige judgment and assumptions applied in thenesitbn
process with respect to joint venture impairmeinis, possible that actual results could differ stalntially from
those estimated.
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The following table presents combined condenseaoal sheet information for the Company’s unconatdid
joint ventures (in thousands

November 30,

2010 2009

Assets

Cash $ 14947 $ 12,81¢

Receivable! 147,02! 142,63¢

Inventories 575,63: 709,13(

Other asset 51,75t 56,93¢
Total asset $789,35¢ $921,52«
Liabilities and equity

Accounts payable and other liabiliti $113,47¢  $139,62¢

Mortgages and notes payal 327,85t 469,07¢

Equity 348,02! 312,81
Total liabilities and equit $789,35¢ $921,52-

The following tables present information relatioghie Companyg investments in unconsolidated joint vent
and the outstanding debt of unconsolidated jointwes as of the dates specified, categorized éydhure of the
Company’s potential responsibility under a guaraiftgny, for such debt (dollars in thousands):

November 30,

2010 2009
Number of investments in unconsolidated joint vesdt
With limited recourse debt (i — 2
With nor-recourse debt (t — 2
South Edge 1 1
Other (c) 9 8
Total 10 13
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventul
With limited recourse det $ — % 1,27
With nor-recourse dek — 9,98:
South Edge 55,26¢ 55,50:
Other 50,31 52,90¢
Total $ 10558 $ 119,66¢
Outstanding debt of unconsolidated joint ventu
With limited recourse del $ — % 11,19¢
With nor-recourse dek — 130,02!
South Edge 327,85t 327,85t
Total (d) $ 327,85¢ $ 469,07¢

(a) This category consists of unconsolidated joint uesg as to which the Company has entered intorattmaalue
maintenance guaranty with respect to a portiorachesuch unconsolidated joint venture’s outstandewyred
debt.

(b) This category consists of unconsolidated joint uesg as to which the Company does not have a gyasaany
other obligation to repay or to support the valtithe collateral (which collateral includes anytdes of credit)
underlying such unconsolidated joint ventl’ respective outstanding secured d
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(c) This category consists of unconsolidated joint uegg with no outstanding del

(d) The “Total”amounts represent the aggregate outstanding painzgtance of the debt of the unconsolidated
ventures in which the Company participates. Thewrtsdo not represent the Company’s potential
responsibility for such debt, if an

In most cases, the Company may have also enteieed kompletion guaranty and/or a carve-out gugnaith the
lenders for the unconsolidated joint ventures witkstanding debt as further described below.

The unconsolidated joint ventures have financed krd inventory investments through a variety of
arrangements. To finance their respective landiaitgun and development activities, certain of @@mpany’s
unconsolidated joint ventures have obtained loeos third-party lenders that are secured by theetlyithg
property and related project assets. The Compamgensolidated joint ventures had outstanding drittstantially
all of which was secured, of approximately $327iBion at November 30, 2010 and $469.1 million at
November 30, 2009. South Edge accounted for afiast of these outstanding debt amou

In certain instances, the Company and/or its pgghé an unconsolidated joint venture have predid
completion and/or carve-out guaranties. A compfetjoaranty refers to the physical completion ofriovements
for a project and/or the obligation to contributpi#y to an unconsolidated joint venture to enatde fund its
completion obligations. The Company’s potentiapassibility under its completion guarantees, figered, is
highly dependent on the facts of a particular cAsearveout guaranty generally refers to the payment dbéses i
lender suffers due to certain bad acts or omisdigren unconsolidated joint venture or its partnsush as fraud or
misappropriation, or due to environmental liabéiitiarising with respect to the relevant projectjipputstanding
principal and interest and certain other amountsi® lenders upon the filing by an unconsolidéoént venture o
a voluntary bankruptcy petition or, in certain cinestances, the filing of an involuntary bankruppegition.

In addition to the above-described guaranteesCtmpany has also provided a Springing Repaymenta@ta
to the lenders to South Edge. The Springing Repay@aaranty and certain legal proceedings regarSmgh
Edge are discussed further below in Note 15. Lstgters. The lenders to one of the Company’s other
unconsolidated joint ventures have filed a lawagainst some of the unconsolidated joint venturesnbers and
certain of those members’ parent companies sea&ingcover damages under completion guarantees)gotber
claims(Wachovia Bank, N.A. v. Focus Kyle Group LLC, et al. U.S. District Court, Southern District of New York
(Case No. 08-cv-8681 (LTS(GWG))) . The Company and the other parent companies,htegeiith the members, ¢
defending the lawsuit.

Note 10. Goodwill

The Company has historically tested goodwill fotgmtial impairment annually as of November 30 and
between annual tests if an event occurred or cistamces changed that would more likely than natcedhe fair
value of a reporting unit below its carrying amaoubiring 2008, the Company determined that it wexessary to
evaluate goodwill for impairment between annudistelsie to deteriorating conditions in certain hngsnarkets an
the significant inventory impairments the Compadhgnitified and recognized in that year.

Based on the results of its goodwill impairmentleadons performed in 2008, the Company determthadall
of the goodwill previously recorded was impaired. éresult, the Company recorded goodwill impairncdarges
of $24.6 million related to its Central reportinegsnent and $43.4 million related to its Southeagbrting segment
during 2008. These charges were recorded at thep@uyis corporate level because all goodwill wasiedrat that
level. The Company had no goodwill balance as ofdvaber 30, 2010, November 30, 2009 or Novembe2308.
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Note 11. Other Assets
Other assets consisted of the following (in thodsan

November 30,

2010 2009

Operating properties, n $ 71,93t $ 72,54
Cash surrender value of insurance contr 59,10: 54,59t
Property and equipment, r 9,59¢ 12,46"
Debt issuance cos 5,25¢ 6,33¢
Prepaid expenst 3,03: 7,472
Deferred tax asse 1,152 1,152

Total $ 150,07! $ 154,56

Note 12. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consistetti@following (in thousands):

November 30,

2010 2009

Construction defect and other litigation liabilgi $ 124,850 $ 121,78:
Warranty liability 93,98¢ 135,74¢
Employee compensation and related ben 76,47 88,38t
Accrued interest payab 42,96: 46,30:
Liabilities related to inventory not own 15,54¢ 57,15(
Real estate and business ta 8,22( 12,51¢
Other 104,45! 98,48t

Total $ 466,500 $ 560,36!

Note 13. Mortgages and Notes Payable
Mortgages and notes payable consisted of the fallg\iin thousands, interest rates are as of Nove3be

November 30,

2010 2009

Mortgages and land contracts due to land selledsoémer loans (3% to 7% in 2010 ¢

2% to 8% in 2009 $ 118,057 $ 163,96¢
Senior notes due 2011 a3/ 8% 99,91¢ 99,80(
Senior notes due 2014 a3/ 4% 249,49¢ 249,35¢
Senior notes due 2015 a’/ 8% 299,06¢ 298,87!
Senior notes due 2015 al/ 4% 449,74! 449,69¢
Senior notes due 2017 at 9.: 260,35: 259,88
Senior notes due 2018 al/ 4% 298,89 298,78

Total $1,775,52°  $1,820,37!

At November 30, 2009, the Company maintained thedli€Facility with a syndicate of lenders that was
scheduled to mature in November 2010. As the Comgahnot anticipate borrowing under the Creditikigc
before its scheduled maturity and to trim the castociated with maintaining the Credit Facilitffeetive
December 28, 2009, the Company voluntarily redibedaggregate commitment under the Credit Fadiiiy
$650.0 million to $200.0 million, and effective Mé&r31, 2010, the Company voluntarily terminated@nedit
Facility.
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With the Credit Facility’s termination, the Compaproceeded to enter into the LOC Facilities to wbketters
of credit in the ordinary course of operating itsimess. As of November 30, 2010, $87.5 milliotetters of credit
were outstanding under the LOC Facilities. The LIECilities require the Company to deposit and na&intash
with the issuing financial institutions as collatkfor its letters of credit outstanding. As of Mowber 30, 2010, the
amount of cash maintained for the LOC Facilitigaled $88.7 million and was included in restrictegh on the
Companys consolidated balance sheet as of that date.1h,28e Company may maintain or enter into additiam
expanded facilities with the same or other finanicistitutions.

In connection with the termination of the Credithity, the Released Subsidiaries were released@uharge
from guaranteeing any obligations with respechtss@ompany’s senior notes. Each of the ReleasesiBaties is
not a “significant subsidiary,” as defined undeddr+02(w) of Regulation S-X, and does not guaramatey other
indebtedness of the Company. Each Released Sulysidéy be required to again provide a guarantekle regpect
to the Company’s senior notes if it becomes a ‘ificant subsidiary.” The Guarantor Subsidiariestoure to
provide a guarantee with respect to the Compargyigos notes.

The indenture governing the Company’s senior ndte&s not contain any financial maintenance covenant
Subject to specified exceptions, the indentureaiastcertain restrictive covenants that, amongrdttiegs, limit the
Company’s ability to incur secured indebtednesgngage in sale-leaseback transactions involvinggaty or
assets above a certain specified value. The teowsrging the Company’s $265 Million Senior Notesitzin
certain limitations related to mergers, consolofasi and sales of assets.

As of November 30, 2010, the Company was in compégawith the applicable terms of all of its covetsan
under the Company’s senior notes, the indentu naortgages and land contracts due to land saledther
loans. The Company'’s ability to secure future ditaincing may depend in part on its ability to rémia such
compliance.

On July 14, 2008, the Company completed the eadgmption of the $300 Million Senior Subordinatentdé
at a price of 101.938% of the principal amount @asrued interest to the date of redemption. Thagzmy
incurred a loss of $7.1 million in 2008 relatedtie early redemption of debt, as a result of thHepcamium and the
unamortized original issue discount. This loss@uded in interest expense, net of amounts cag@tiloss on earl
redemption of debt in the consolidated statemeindgperations.

On October 17, 2008, the Company filed the 2008fKtegistration with the SEC, registering debt aogity
securities that it may issue from time to time mmacants to be determined. The Company’s previou$ctve 2004
Shelf Registration was subsumed within the 2008f&egistration. On July 30, 2009, the Company éssthe
$265 Million Senior Notes under the 2008 Shelf Ragtion. The Company has not issued any otheriseswnde
its 2008 Shelf Registration.

On June 30, 2004, the Company issued the $3500Mlifienior Notes at 99.3% of the principal amourthef
notes in a private placement. The $350 Million $ehlotes, which are due August 15, 2011, with edepayable
semi-annually, represent senior unsecured obligatid the Company and rank equally in right of pagtwith all
of the Company’s existing and future senior unsedumdebtedness. The $350 Million Senior Notes bay
redeemed, in whole at any time or from time to timpart, at a price equal to 100% of their primtiamount, plus
premium, plus accrued and unpaid interest to tipfiGgble redemption date. On December 3, 2004Crapany
exchanged all of the privately placed $350 Milli®anior Notes for notes that are substantially idehexcept that
the new $350 Million Senior Notes are registeredasrthe Securities Act of 1933. The $350 Milliomie Notes
are unconditionally guaranteed jointly and sevgrayl the Guarantor Subsidiaries on a senior unselcbasis.

On July 30, 2009, the Company purchased $250.0mith aggregate principal amount of its $350 Mifli
Senior Notes pursuant to a tender offer simultaseath the issuance of the $265 Million Senior NotEhe total
consideration paid to purchase the notes was $26@i6n. The Company incurred a loss of $3.7 mifliin the thir
quarter of 2009 related to the early redemptiodedit due to the tender offer premium and the untineak original
issue discount. This loss, which is included iriast expense, net of amounts capitalized/lossady edemption
of debt in the consolidated statements of operatias partly offset by a gain of $2.7 million & early
extinguishment of mortgages and land contractstallend sellers and other loans.

On January 28, 2004, the Company issued $250.@mf 53/ 4% senior notes due 2014 (the “$250 Million
Senior Notes”) at 99.474% of the principal amourthe notes in a private placement. The $250 Mill&enior
Notes, which ar

78




Table of Contents

due February 1, 2014, with interest payable semisalty, represent senior unsecured obligationb®@Gompany
and rank equally in right of payment with all oEt@ompany’s existing and future senior unsecurddhtedness.
The $250 Million Senior Notes may be redeemed, hiole at any time or from time to time in part, girece equal
to 100% of their principal amount, plus a premiyuos accrued and unpaid interest to the applicazemption
date. On June 16, 2004, the Company exchangetithi rivately placed $250 Million Senior Notes fmtes that
are substantially identical except that the newOH2lion Senior Notes are registered under theufies Act of
1933. The $250 Million Senior Notes are uncondginguaranteed jointly and severally by the Guaran
Subsidiaries on a senior unsecured basis.

On December 15, 2004, pursuant to the 2004 ShejisRation, the Company issued $300.0 million 675%
senior notes due 2015 (the “$300 Millior 58 % Senior Notes”) at 99.357% of the principal amanfrthe notes.
The $300 Million 57/ 8% Senior Notes, which are due January 15, 2015, inierest payable semi-annually,
represent senior unsecured obligations of the Cagnpad rank equally in right of payment with allthé
Company’s existing and future senior unsecuredhtatiness. The $300 Million™ 8% Senior Notes may be
redeemed, in whole at any time or from time to timpart, at a price equal to the greater of (€)%®f their
principal amount and (b) the sum of the presentesbf the remaining scheduled payments discouattéa: date ¢
redemption at a defined rate, plus, in each caseyad and unpaid interest to the applicable retiemplate. The
notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly angesgly by the Guarantor Subsidiaries on a seni@eaured basis.

On June 2, 2005, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Ragjmtr, the Company issued $450.0 million &f/& % senior
notes due 2015 (the “$450 Million Senior Notes"180.614% of the principal amount of the notes plosrued
interest from June 2, 2005. The $450 Million Semotes, which are due June 15, 2015, with intgragable semi-
annually, represent senior unsecured obligationseoCompany and rank equally in right of paymeith all of the
Company’s existing and future senior unsecuredhtetiness. The $450 Million Senior Notes may beesu, in
whole at any time or from time to time in partagtrice equal to the greater of (a) 100% of theirgipal amount
and (b) the sum of the present values of the reanascheduled payments discounted to the datedefmetion at a
defined rate, plus, in each case, accrued and dimiarest to the applicable redemption date. Toteshare
unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severallythg Guarantor Subsidiaries on a senior unsecuasid.b

On July 30, 2009, pursuant to the 2008 Shelf Remgist, the Company issued the $265 Million SeiNotes a
98.014% of the principal amount of the notes. TR@SMillion Senior Notes, which are due on Septenilie 2017
with interest payable semiannually, represent samsecured obligations of the Company, and rankakygin right
of payment with all of the Company’s existing antufe senior unsecured indebtedness. The $26%NliBienior
Notes may be redeemed, in whole at any time or fiora to time in part, at a price equal to the tgeaf (a) 100%
of their principal amount and (b) the sum of thegant values of the remaining scheduled paymergsrafipal and
interest discounted to the date of redemptiondsfaed rate, plus, in each case, accrued and divparest to the
applicable redemption date. If a change in corttemlurs as defined in the indenture, the Companyldvol require
to purchase these notes at 101% of their prineipadunt, together with all accrued and unpaid isteiEany. The
notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly angesaly by the Guarantor Subsidiaries on a seniseaured basis.
The Company used substantially all of the net prdsdrom the issuance of the $265 Million Senioteddo
purchase, pursuant to a simultaneous tender &2&0.0 million in aggregate principal amount of #8350 Million
Senior Notes.

On April 3, 2006, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Regtiin, the Company issued $300.0 million &f/% % senior
notes due 2018 (the “$300 Million'7 4% Senior Notes”) at 99.486% of the principal amanfrthe notes. The
$300 Million 71/ 4% Senior Notes, which are due June 15, 2018 withrést payable semi-annually, represent
senior unsecured obligations of the Company ankl egunally in right of payment with all of the Commyas existing
and future senior unsecured indebtedness. The 806n 7 1/ 4% Senior Notes may be redeemed, in whole at any
time or from time to time in part, at a price eqtmthe greater of (a) 100% of their principal amiand (b) the sum
of the present values of the remaining schedulgdpats of principal and interest on the notes tocoleemed
discounted at a defined rate, plus, in each caseyed and unpaid interest to the applicable retiempate. The
notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly angesgly by the Guarantor Subsidiaries on a seniseaured basis.

Principal payments on senior notes, mortgagesamaidontracts due to land sellers and other loandwe as
follows: 2011 — $204.3 million; 2012 — $13.7 millip2013 — $0; 2014 — $249.5 million; 2015 —
$748.8 million; and thereafter — $559.2 million.
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Assets (primarily inventories) having a carryindueaof approximately $161.9 million as of NovemBér
2010 are pledged to collateralize mortgages ardidantracts due to land sellers and other loans.

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencie

Commitments and contingencies include the usuédatibns of homebuilders for the completion of cants
and those incurred in the ordinary course of bissine

Warranty. The Company provides a limited warranty on alit®homes. The specific terms and conditions of
warranties vary depending upon the market in wtiehCompany does business. The Company generalydes ¢
structural warranty of 10 years, a warranty onteieal, heating, cooling, plumbing and other builglisystems each
varying from two to five years based on geographécket and state law, and a warranty of one yeaotfer
components of the home. The Company estimatesodte that may be incurred under each limited wayrand
records a liability in the amount of such costthattime the revenue associated with the saleasf bame is
recognized. Factors that affect the Company’s viagyrlability include the number of homes deliverédstorical
and anticipated rates of warranty claims, and pestlaim. The Company’s primary assumption inneating the
amounts it accrues for warranty costs is that Hisibclaims experience is a strong indicator déifa claims
experience. The Company periodically assessediiguacy of its recorded warranty liabilities, whante included
in accrued expenses and other liabilities in thesobdated balance sheets, and adjusts the amasimescessary
based on its assessment.

The changes in the Company’s warranty liability asefollows (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of ye $135,74¢ $145,36¢ $151,52!
Warranties issue 5,17: 6,84¢ 17,16¢
Payment (44,979 (24,690 (29,687
Adjustments (1,967 8,224 6,357
Balance at end of ye $ 93,98¢ $135,74¢ $145,36¢

The Company’s warranty liability at November 301@0ncluded $11.3 million associated with approxisha
296 homes that have been identified as containirsyigpected of containing allegedly defective diyywa
manufactured in China. These homes, which haverseeganaining to be completed andfepair costs remaining
be paid, were primarily delivered in 2006 and 2@0d are located in Florida. The Company believasith overall
warranty liability at November 30, 2010 is suffistavith respect to its general limited warrantyightions and the
estimated costs remaining to repair the identifieches affected by the allegedly defective drywitle Company is
continuing to review whether there are any add#éidromes delivered in Florida or other locatiors ttontain or
may contain this drywall material. Depending on décome of its review and its actual claims exgeee, the
Company may incur additional warranty-related casis increase its warranty liability in future ef$. The
amount accrued to repair these homes is basedylange¢he Company’s estimates of future costshéfactual costs
to repair these homes differ from the estimatedsgdlse Company may revise its warranty estimatéhis issue.
The Company’s warranty liability at November 30020ncluded $14.4 million of estimated remainingtso
associated with approximately 230 homes that wagatified as containing or suspected of contaimitegedly
defective drywall manufactured in China. In additifor the year ended November 30, 2009, the Cognjpenurred
a charge of $5.7 million associated with the repéallegedly defective drywall. During the yearsled
November 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company made pdgrtagaling $25.5 million and $1.3 million, respeety, for
the repair of homes that had been identified asa@ing or suspected of containing allegedly dédectirywall
manufactured in China.

The Company has been named as a defendant inawseits relating to this drywall material, and iyrin the
future be subject to other similar litigation oaichs that could cause the Company to incur sigamficosts. Given
the preliminary stages of the proceedings, the Gomjhas not concluded whether the outcome of atiyesie
lawsuits, if unfavorable, is likely to be materialits consolidated financial position or result®perations.

The Company intends to seek and is undertakingteffimcluding legal proceedings, to obtain reingaument
from various sources for the costs it has incuarexpects to incur to investigate and completaire@and to defer
itself in litigation associated with this drywallaterial. At this early stage of its efforts to istigate and complete
repairs and to respond to litigation, however,@oenpany has not recorded any amounts for poteetalveries as
of November 30, 2010.
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Guarantees. In the normal course of its business, the Comfissyes certain representations, warranties and
guarantees related to its home sales and landtbalesay be affected by Accounting Standards @Geatibn Topic
No. 460,“Guarantees.” Based on historical evidence, the @omw does not believe any of these representations,
warranties or guarantees would result in a mateffatt on its consolidated financial position esults of
operations.

Insurance. The Company has, and requires the majority afutscontractors to maintain, general liability
insurance (including construction defect and boitijyry coverage) and workers’ compensation inscgaif hese
insurance policies protect the Company againstréonoof its risk of loss from claims related te homebuilding
activities, subject to certain self-insured retemsi, deductibles and other coverage limits. In @i, California,
Colorado and Nevada, the Company'’s general lighilisurance takes the form of a wrap-up policy, rehaigible
subcontractors are enrolled as insureds on eaghcprdhe Company self-insures a portion of itsralleisk
through the use of a captive insurance subsididrg. Company records expenses and liabilities basede
estimated costs required to cover its self-insue¢ehtion and deductible amounts under its ins@guadicies, and
on the estimated costs of potential claims andrckadjustment expenses above its coverage limitsabrare not
covered by its policies. These estimated costbased on an analysis of the Company’s historigahnd and
include an estimate of construction defect claintsiired but not yet reported. The Company’s eséohéabilities
for such items were $95.7 million at November 3@.@and $107.0 million at November 30, 2009. Theseunts
are included in accrued expenses and other ligsilih the Company’s consolidated balance shedes Cbmpany’s
expenses associated with self-insurance totaletrsiflion in 2010, $9.8 million in 2009 and $10.1llfon in 2008.

Performance Bonds and Letters of Credit. The Company is often required to obtain perforoedmonds and
letters of credit in support of its obligationsvarious municipalities and other government agenicieeonnection
with community improvements such as roads, sewatsaater, and to support similar development atitisiby
certain of its unconsolidated joint ventures. Atvimber 30, 2010, the Company had $414.3 milliopesformance
bonds and $87.5 million of letters of credit outsting. At November 30, 2009, the Company had $588lifon of
performance bonds and $175.0 million of lettersreflit outstanding. If any such performance bondstters of
credit are called, the Company would be obligatedeimburse the issuer of the performance bondttarlof credit.
The Company does not believe that a material amafusnty currently outstanding performance bondetbers of
credit will be called. Performance bonds do notehstated expiration dates. Rather, the Compargleased from
the performance bonds as the underlying performancempleted. The expiration dates of some letiecsedit
issued in connection with community improvementsciole with the expected completion dates of thated
projects or obligations. Most letters of creditwswver, are issued with an initial term of one yaad are typically
extended on a year-to-year basis until the relpggtbrmance obligation is completed.

Land Option Contracts. In the ordinary course of business, the Compaugre into land option contracts, or
similar contracts, to procure land for the condinmcof homes. At November 30, 2010, the Compard/thgal
deposits of $19.0 million, comprised of cash defgasi $14.8 million and letters of credit of $4.2lman, to
purchase land having an aggregate purchase prigg66f4 million. The Company’s land option and otsienilar
contracts generally do not contain provisions rengithe Company’s specific performance.

Leases. The Company leases certain property and equiporeter noncancelable operating leases. Office and
equipment leases are typically for terms of theefivie years and generally provide renewal optimngerms up to
an additional five years. In most cases, the Comgapects that, in the normal course of businessds that expi
will be renewed or replaced by other leases. Thadéuninimum rental payments under operating leagkikh
primarily consist of office leases having initialr@emaining noncancelable lease terms in excees®f/ear, are as
follows: 2011 — $9.4 million; 2012 — $8.4 millio2013 — $6.9 million; 2014 — $4.8 million; 2015 —
$2.2 million; and thereafter — $0. Rental expensé¢hese operating leases was $8.5 million in 2810,3 million
in 2009 and $17.3 million in 2008.

Note 15. Legal Matters

South Edge, LLC Litigation. On December 9, 2010, certain lenders to Soutte itk a Chapter 11
involuntary bankruptcy petition in the United Statankruptcy Court, District of Nevad#Morgan Chase Bank,
N.A. v. South Edge, LLC (Case No. 10-32968-bam) . KB HOME Nevada Inc., the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, is a member of South Edge together othiler unrelated homebuilders and a third-partyperty
development firm. KB HOME Nevada Inc. holds a 48.6f%rest in South Edge. The involuntary bankruptcy
petition alleges that South Edge failed to undertedetain development-related activities and tayegmounts due
on the Loans. At November 30, 2010, the outstangimttipal balance of the Loans was approximately
$328.0 million. The Loans were used by South Edgeattially finance the purchase and developmettef
underlying property for a residential communitydted near Las
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Vegas, Nevada. The petitioning lenders for the lumary bankruptcy — JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,[$Veéargo
Bank, N.A. and Crédit Agricole Corporate and Invesit Bank —also filed motions to appoint a Chapter 11 tru
for South Edge, and have asserted that, among attiens, the trustee can enforce alleged obligataf the South
Edge members to purchase land parcels from Sowgh Ebulting in repayment of the Loans. On JanGag011,
South Edge filed a motion for the court to disntsso abstain from the involuntary bankruptcy petit and the
court scheduled a trial that commenced on Janugrg@L1 and is planned to continue until no ldt@ntFebruary «
2011. The exact timing of the court’s decision on the iois uncertain.

The Company, KB HOME Nevada Inc., and the othertls&dge members and their respective parent
companies each provided certain guaranties tcetiels in connection with the Loans, including $ipeinging
Repayment Guaranty. If the Company’s Springing iRyt Guaranty were enforced, its maximum potential
responsibility at November 30, 2010 would have begproximately $180.0 million in aggregate printiganount,
plus a potentially significant amount for accrued anpaid interest and attorneys’ fees in respkitteoLoans. This
potential Springing Repayment Guaranty obligatlomyever, does not account for any offsets or defetisat coul
be available to the Company to prevent or minintimeimpact of its enforcement, or any reductiothim principal
balance of the Loans arising from purchases of fardels from South Edge under authority potentigiNen to a
Chapter 11 trustee (as described above) or otherwis

The petitioning lenders previously filed the Lendédigation. The Lender Litigation, which, amonget
things, is seeking to enforce completion guarargiesalso to force the South Edge members (inalukia HOME
Nevada Inc.) to purchase land parcels from anddwighe certain financial and other support to Sdudge, ha
been stayed pending the outcome of the involurdankruptcy petition. If the involuntary bankruptestition is
dismissed, the Company expects the Lender Litiggtaesume.

A separate arbitration proceeding was also comntkimcklay 2009 to address one South Edge member’s
claims for specific performance by the other memalaard their respective parent companies to purdhadeparcel:
from and to make certain capital contributions ¢wt® Edge and, in the alternative, damages. On@l2910, the
arbitration panel issued a decision denying theifipgoerformance claims and awarding to the claihtatal
damages of approximately $37.0 million againsbathe defendants. The parties involved have appedle
arbitration panel’s decision to the United Statesi® of Appeal for the Ninth CircuiEocus South Group, LLC, et
al. v. KB HOME Nevada Inc, et al., (Case No. 10-17562) , and the case is pending. If the appeal on theagem
awarded by the arbitration panel is denied, KB HONivada Inc. will be responsible for a share othdamages.

While there are defenses to the above legal praegedhe ultimate resolution of these matterstaediming
of such resolutions are uncertain and involve mldtfactors. Therefore, a meaningful range of piidénutcomes
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. wmfable outcomes were to occur, however, thesiepisssibility
that the Company could incur significant lossesxoess of amounts accrued for these matters thit bave a
material adverse effect on its consolidated finalnmdsition and results of operations.

Other Matters. The Company is also involved in litigation andrgoyment proceedings incidental to its
business. These proceedings are in various progkstages and, based on reports of counsel, theo@uonbelieves
as of the date of this report that provisions @raals made for any potential losses (to the exstinable) are
adequate and that any liabilities or costs arisingof these proceedings are not likely to haveagenally adverse
effect on its consolidated financial position osults of operations. The outcome of any of thesegedings,
however, is inherently uncertain, and if unfavoeablitcomes were to occur, there is a possibildy tihey could,
individually or in the aggregate, have a materialliverse effect on the Compasyonsolidated financial position
results of operations.
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Note 16. Income Taxes

The components of income tax benefit (expensd)arconsolidated statements of operations are sviolin

thousands):
Federal State Total
2010
Current $ 6,50( $ 50C $ 7,00C
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefi $ 6,50( $ 50C $ 7,00(
2009
Current $ 207,90 $ 1,50( $ 209,401
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefi $ 207,90( $ 1,50C $ 209,40(
2008
Current $ (18,709 $ 10,500 $ (8,200
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit (expens $ (18,709 $ 10,500 $ (8,200

Deferred income taxes result from temporary diffess in the financial and tax basis of assetsiabdities.
Significant components of the Company’s deferreditbilities and assets are as follows (in thowsan

November 30,

2010 2009
Deferred tax liabilities
Capitalized expenst $ 106,80 $ 117,68:
State taxe 56,91¢ 52,22
Other 177 14z
Total $ 163,89: $ 170,04¢
Deferred tax asset
Inventory impairments and land option contract almenments $ 275,64( $ 378,83:
2010, 2009 and 2008 NOI 277,08 84,42¢
Warranty, legal and other accru 103,35¢ 147,92«
Employee benefit 51,33t 60,82:
Partnerships and joint ventur 49,33¢ 58,61:
Depreciation and amortizatic 22,83( 38,88t¢
Capitalized expenst 5,921 6,57:
Tax credits 145,64 140,13:
Deferred incomt 1,21¢ 1,21¢
Other 3,748 3,73t
Total 936,12- 921,16t
Valuation allowanct (771,080() (749,96
Total 165,04 171,20:
Net deferred tax asse $ 1152 $ 1,15%
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Income tax benefit computed at the statutory Ue8efal income tax rate and income tax benefit (es@e
provided in the consolidated statements of opanatdiffer as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Income tax benefit computed at statutory | $ 26,72¢ $ 108,91 $ 338,77
Increase (decrease) resulting frc
State taxes, net of federal income tax bel 4,01( 11,07¢ 25,14
Reserve and deferred incol 1,20¢ (11,07Y) 4,82¢
Basis in joint venture 13,72¢ (3,336 (4,997)
NOLs reconciliatior (24,749 (36,94) —
Recognition of federal tax benef 1,621 16,41 4,75
Tax credits 5,38¢ 203 (3,989
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass (21,119 128,81: (355,83
Other, ne 187 (4,669 (16,885
Income tax benefit (expens $ 7,000 $20940( $ (8,200

The Company recognized an income tax benefit d $#llion in 2010, compared to an income tax berefi
$209.4 million in 2009 and income tax expense o2$8illion in 2008. The income tax benefit in 20&dected the
recognition of a $5.4 million federal income taxnbét from an additional carryback of the Compar3099 NOLs
to offset earnings the Company generated in 20848605, and the reversal of a $1.6 million liakifior
unrecognized tax benefits due to the status ofrét@ad state tax audits. The income tax benef?0i@9 resulted
primarily from the recognition of a $190.7 millidederal income tax benefit based on the carrybétheo
Company’s 2009 NOLs to offset earnings the Compgemerated in 2004 and 2005, and the reversal of a
$16.3 million liability for unrecognized federal dstate tax benefits due to the status of fedemliséate tax audits.
The income tax expense in 2008 was mainly dueddiballowance of tax benefits related to the Camgza2008
loss as a result of a full valuation allowance. Duéhe effects of its deferred tax asset valuagibmwance,
carrybacks of its NOLs, and changes in its unrezeghtax benefits, the Company’s effective taxsate2010,
2009 and 2008 are not meaningful items as the Coy'p@ncome tax amounts are not directly correldtethe
amount of its pretax losses for those periods.

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership,Buginess Assistance Act of 2009 was enacted awix
and amended Section 172 of the Internal Revenue @oextend the permitted carryback period foreiffsg
certain NOLs against earnings from two years tdoujve years. Due to this federal tax legislatitre Company
was able to carry back its 2009 NOLs to offset e@sit generated in 2004 and 2005. As a residtdbmpany
filed an application for a federal tax refund oBP$17 million and reflected this amount as a redgén its
consolidated balance sheet as of November 30, 20@9Company received the cash proceeds from fhedén
the first quarter of 2010. In September of 2016,@mmpany filed an amended application for a fddararefund tc
carry back an additional amount of its 2009 NOLsffset earnings the Company generated in 20042808. The
amended application generated a refund in the ahwd®5.4 million, and the Company received casicpeds of
this refund in the fourth quarter of 2010.

In accordance with ASC 740, the Company evaluatedeiferred tax assets quarterly to determinelifaten
allowances are required. ASC 740 requires that emimeg assess whether valuation allowances showddtbblishe
based on the consideration of all available evidarging a “more likely than not” standard. Durir@L@, the
Company recorded a net increase of $21.1 milliathéovaluation allowance against net deferred sets. The net
increase was comprised of a $26.6 million valuatibowance recorded against the net deferred tsatagenerated
from the loss for the year, partially offset by 84 million federal income tax benefit from trddéional
carryback of the Company’s 2009 NOLs to offset gmysit generated in 2004 and 2005.

84




Table of Contents

During the first nine months of 2009, the Compaagognized a net increase of $67.5 million in thigaton
allowance. This increase reflected the net impaahds89.9 million valuation allowance recordedidgrthe first
nine months of 2009, partly offset by a reductidbdeferred tax assets due to the forfeiture ofatertquity-based
awards. In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Compaiepgnized a decrease in the valuation allowance of
$196.3 million primarily due to the benefit deriviedm the carryback of its 2009 NOLs to offset éags it
generated in 2004 and 2005. As a result, the reeedse in the valuation allowance for the year émidi@vember 3(
2009 totaled $128.8 million. The decrease in tHaatan allowance was reflected as a noncash indambenefit
of $130.7 million and a noncash charge of $1.9iamlto accumulated other comprehensive loss. D08, the
Company recorded a valuation allowance of $355IBomiagainst its net deferred tax assets. Theatan
allowance was reflected as a noncash charge of $3bilion to income tax expense and a noncashfiiesfe
$2.3 million to accumulated other comprehensivs [@s a result of an adjustment made in accordaithe
ASC 715). The majority of the tax benefits ass@dawith the Company’s net deferred tax assets earalried
forward for 20 years and applied to offset futweatble income. The federal NOL carryforward if otltized will
expire in 2030, and the various state NOLs williexvithin the next three to 20 years. In additittre Company’s
tax credits, if not utilized will expire within sito 20 years.

The Company’s net deferred tax assets totaledrfilllibn at both November 30, 2010 and 2009. Thesded
tax asset valuation allowance increased to $771libmat November 30, 2010 from $750.0 millionNdvember
30, 2009. The Company’s deferred tax assets foctwihidid not establish a valuation allowance etatamounts
that can be realized through future reversals i taxable temporary differences or throughydazacks to the
2006 and 2007 years. To the extent the Companyrggsesufficient taxable income in the future tibyfutilize the
tax benefits of the related deferred tax asse¢sCtimpany expects its effective tax rate to deeraaghe valuation
allowance is reversed.

Gross unrecognized tax benefits are the differehetseen a tax position taken, or expected to kentan a ta:
return, and the benefit recognized for accountimgppses. A reconciliation of the beginning and agdialances of
the gross unrecognized tax benefits, excludingésteand penalties, is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30

2010 2009 2008
Balance at beginning of ye $ 11,020 $ 18,33 $ 27,61
Additions for tax positions related to prior ye 1,72( 4,23( 19¢
Reductions for tax positions related to prior ye (1,189 (270) —
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitati — (1,277) —
Reductions due to resolution of federal and stathts (259) (9,99 (9,489
Balance at end of ye $ 11,30¢ $ 11,02¢ % 18,33:

In July 2006, the FASB issued guidance which pibsesra recognition threshold and measurement atiérstfo
the financial statement recognition and measurewlfeatax position taken or expected to be takemtiax return.
The Company adopted this guidance effective Decethki2007. As of the date of adoption, the Compamgt
liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $18.8lion, which represented $27.6 million of grossecognized tax
benefits less $9.3 million of indirect tax benefithe Company recognizes accrued interest and tienelated to
unrecognized tax benefits in its consolidated faianstatements as a component of the provisioimfarme taxes.
As of November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, there $&enillion, $1.3 million and $7.0 million, respeactly, of
unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized waffdct the Company’s annual effective tax rate. Toepany’s
total accrued interest and penalties related teaggnized income tax benefits was $3.5 million avéinber 30,
2010 and $4.9 million at November 30, 2009. The @any’s liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits at
November 30, 2010 and 2009 are included in accexpenses and other liabilities in its consoliddiathnce shee

Included in the balance of gross unrecognized &ebts at November 30, 2010 and 2009 are taxiposiof
$7.9 million and $6.5 million, respectively, for igh the ultimate deductibility is highly certainttthere is
uncertainty about the timing of such deductibilBecause of the impact of deferred tax accounbttigr than
interest and penalties, the disallowance of theteshdeductibility period would not affect the amheffective tax
rate but would accelerate the payment of cashtés authority to an earlier period.

The Company anticipates that total gross unreceglizx benefits will decrease by an amount ranfyiomg
$2.0 million to $3.0 million during the 12 monthein this reporting date due to various state fgiagsociated with
the resolution of the federal audit.
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The fiscal years ending after 2005 remain operdeifal examination and fiscal years after 2004 ieim@en tc
examination by various state taxing jurisdictions.

The benefits of the Company’s NOLS, built-in losaesl tax credits would be reduced or potentiailyiglated
if the Company experienced an “ownership changeleuisection 382. Based on the Company’s analysierpsed
as of November 30, 2010, the Company does notJeelidnas experienced an ownership change as ddfine
Section 382, and, therefore, the NOLSs, built-irsxsand tax credits the Company has generateddshotibe
subject to a Section 382 limitation as of this mtpg date.

Note 17. Stockholders Equity

Preferred Stock. On January 22, 2009, the Company adopted a Rigitesement between the Company and
Mellon Investor Services LLC, as rights agent, date of that date (the “2009 Rights Agreement”}] daclared a
dividend distribution of one preferred share pusehaght for each outstanding share of common dtoakwas
payable to stockholders of record as of the cléddmisiness on March 5, 2009. Subject to the teprmjisions and
conditions of the 2009 Rights Agreement, if theghts become exercisable, each right would initiedpresent the
right to purchase from the Company 1/100th of aesbéits Series A Participating Cumulative PreferStock for a
purchase price of $85.00 (the “Purchase Price’lssified, each fractional share of preferred stamildvgenerally
give a stockholder approximately the same dividewnting and liquidation rights as does one sharthef
Company’s common stock. However, prior to exercasgght does not give its holder any rights amalkdolder,
including without limitation any dividend, voting iquidation rights. The rights will not be exesable until the
earlier of (i) 10 calendar days after a public amme@ment by the Company that a person or groupéasme an
Acquiring Person (as defined under the 2009 Riglgteement) and (ii) 10 business days after the cenmament
of a tender or exchange offer by a person or gibupon consummation of the offer the person ougravould
beneficially own 4.9% or more of the Company’s tarnsling common stock.

Until these rights become exercisable (the “Disttitn Date”), common stock certificates will eviderthe
rights and may contain a notation to that effecty Aransfer of shares of the Company’s common spoitk to the
Distribution Date will constitute a transfer of thesociated rights. After the Distribution Dates tlghts may be
transferred other than in connection with the ti@nsf the underlying shares of the Company’s comstock. If
there is an Acquiring Person on the Distributioriddar a person or group becomes an Acquiring Peaftenthe
Distribution Date, each holder of a right, othaarttrights that are or were beneficially owned byAaquiring
Person, which will be void, will thereafter have ttight to receive upon exercise of a right andpayt of the
Purchase Price, that number of shares of the Coptgpaommon stock having a market value of two tirttes
Purchase Price. After the later of the Distributidete and the time the Company publicly announicasan
Acquiring Person has become such, the Company'sitifalirectors may exchange the rights, other tigints that
are or were beneficially owned by an Acquiring Berswvhich will be void, in whole or in part, at archange ratio
of one share of common stock per right, subjeetdjostment.

At any time prior to the later of the Distributi®ate and the time the Company publicly announcatsah
Acquiring Person becomes such, the Company’s bafaditectors may redeem all of the then-outstandigiats in
whole, but not in part, at a price of $0.001 pghtj subject to adjustment (the “Redemption Pricéle redemption
will be effective immediately upon the board ofeditors’ action, unless the action provides thahsedemption
will be effective at a subsequent time or upondbeurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more spdafients, in
which case the redemption will be effective in ademce with the provisions of the action. Immedjatgon the
effectiveness of the redemption of the rights,rpkt to exercise the rights will terminate and tmdy right of the
holders of rights will be to receive the RedemptRyite, with interest thereon. The rights issuesipant to the
2009 Rights Agreement will expire on the earlidsta) the close of business on March 5, 2019,Kp)time at whic
the rights are redeemed, (c) the time at whichritités are exchanged, (d) the time at which the @amg’s board o
directors determines that a related provision e@@ompany’s Restated Certificate of Incorporatgona longer
necessary, and (e) the close of business on 8ialfiy of a taxable year of the Company to whiehGbmpany’s
board of directors determines that no tax benefiy be carried forward. At the Company’s annualtmgeof
stockholders on April 2, 2009, the Company'’s staitters approved the 2009 Rights Agreement.

Common Sock. As of November 30, 2010, the Company was autbdrta repurchase four million shares of
its common stock under a board-approved stock obage program. The Company did not repurchasefadts/ o
common stock under this program in 2010, 2009 @820 he Company has not repurchased common shares
pursuant to a common stock repurchase
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plan for the past several years and any resumpfisoch stock repurchases will be at the discreticthe
Company’s board of directors.

During 2010 and 2009, the Company’s board of dinectieclared four quarterly dividends of $.0625geare
of common stock that were also paid during thosgsidn November 2008, the Company’s board of thirsc
reduced the quarterly cash dividend on the Compatgtnmon stock to $.0625 per share from $.25 pamesh
Consequently, during 2008, the Company’s boardrettbrs declared three quarterly dividends of $i@6share of
common stock and one quarterly dividend of $.06@5ghare of common stock, all of which were paat trear.

Treasury Sock. The Company acquired $.4 million of common stiscR010, $.6 million in 2009 and
$1.0 million in 2008, which were previously issusthres delivered to the Company by employees igfisat
withholding taxes on the vesting of restricted ktawards or forfeitures of previous restricted ktawards.
Differences between the cost of treasury stockthedeissuance are recorded to paid-in capitals& t@nsactions
are not considered repurchases under the shanehage program.

Note 18. Employee Benefit and Stock Plan

Most employees are eligible to participate in tH& Home 401(k) Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plaafider whicl
contributions by employees are partially matchedhegyCompany. The aggregate cost of the 401(k) telame
Company was $3.2 million in 2010, $3.2 million i6@® and $4.1 million in 2008. The assets of the(KORIan are
held by a third-party trustee. The 401(k) planipgrants may direct the investment of their fundsag one or
more of the several fund options offered by the(WpRlan. A fund consisting of the Company’s comnstock is
one of the investment choices available to pauiaip. As of November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, aqpately
5%, 6% and 5%, respectively, of the 401(k) Plamsassets were invested in the fund consistingeftompany’s
common stock.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholderscheth April 1, 2010, the Company’s stockholders
approved the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plae (2010 Plan”), authorizing, among other things, issuance
of up to 3,500,000 shares of the Company’s comnmckdor grants of stock-based awards to employeas,
employee directors and consultants of the Compalig. pool of shares includes all of the shareswreat available
for grant as of April 1, 2010 under the Company0§2 Stock Incentive Plan, and no new awards mayédue
under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan. Accordings/oBApril 1, 2010, the 2010 Plan became the Comgaonly
active equity compensation plan. Under the 2018,Rjeants of stock options and other similar awaedisice the
2010 Plan’s share capacity on a 1-for-1 basis,gradts of restricted stock and other similar “frdlue” awards
reduce the 2010 Plan’s share capacity on a 1.7&-fmsis. In addition, subject to the 2010 Plaefsis and
conditions, a stock-based award may also be gramtddr the 2010 Plan to replace an outstandingchgranted
under another Company plan (subject to the ternssict other plan) with terms substantially identioahose of
the award being replaced.

The Company’s 2010 Plan provides that stock optipagformance stock, restricted stock and stoctsumay
be awarded to any employee of the Company for gerad up to 10 years. The 2010 Plan also enabée€tmpany
to grant cash bonuses, SARs and other stock-bagedis: In addition to awards outstanding unde2BiE0 Plan,
the Company has awards outstanding under its Anteadeé Restated 1999 Incentive Plan (the “1999 PJavtiich
provides for generally the same types of awarde@2010 Plan. The Company also has awards ouistandder
its 1988 Employee Stock Plan and its Performancee8ancentive Plan for Senior Management, eachhidtw
provides for generally the same types of awarde@2010 Plan, but stock option awards granted uhese plans
have terms of up to 15 years.
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Sock Options. Stock option transactions are summarized asvistio

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price

Options outstanding at beginning of y 5,711,70. $ 27.3¢ 7,847,40. $ 30.11 8,173,46. $ 30.1%

Grantec 3,672,23 18.71  1,403,14. 15.4¢4 — —
Exercisec (28,287)  13.0C — — (144,020 18.31
Cancellec (457,049  22.0t (3,538,84) 28.6¢ (182,04)  42.3¢
Options outstanding at end of ye 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 5,711,70. $ 27.3¢ 7,847,40. $ 30.11
Options exercisable at end of y« 6,146,60! $ 28.7¢ 4,046,02 $ 31.0f 7,321,171 $ 29.7i
Options available for grant at end of y 21,70: 1,714,65 593,89

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiskiring the years ended November 30, 2010 and 2@88
$.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively. Therem no stock options exercised during the yearaénde
November 30, 2009. The aggregate intrinsic valugtadk options outstanding was $.3 million, $.1ligil and
$.1 million at November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008peetively. The aggregate intrinsic value of stopkons
exercisable was less than $.1 million at Novemi®e2810, and was $.1 million at both November 3@®and
2008. The intrinsic value of a stock option is #meount by which the market value of the underhstark exceeds
the price of the option. In 2009, in connectionhittie settlement of certain stockholder derivalitigation, the
Company'’s former chairman and chief executive effielinquished 3,011,452 stock options to the Camyand
those stock options were cancelled.

On August 13, 2010, the Company consummated araegehoffer (the “August 2010 Exchange Offer”)
pursuant to which eligible employees of the Complaay the opportunity to exchange their outstandash-settled
SARs granted on October 2, 2008 and January 23, 200on-qualified options to purchase share$ef t
Company’s common stock granted under the 2010 Plan.

On November 9, 2010, the Company consummated aastemachange offer (the “November 2010 Exchange
Offer”) pursuant to which eligible employees of tiempany had the opportunity to exchange theirtanting
cash-settled SARs granted on July 12, 2007 andb@ct, 2007 for non-qualified options to purchdsares of the
Company’s common stock granted under the 2010 Plan.

Pursuant to both the August 2010 Exchange Offerth@dNovember 2010 Exchange Offer, each stock optio
granted in exchange for a SAR had an exercise proal to the SAR’s exercise price and the samebeuwf
underlying shares, vesting schedule and expiratide as each such SAR. The August 2010 Exchange &ftl the
November 2010 Exchange Offer did not include-pricing or any other changes impacting the vatughé
employees. The Company conducted the August 20tBdfge Offer and November 2010 Exchange Offer in an
effort to reduce the overall degree of variabiiitthe expense recorded for employee equity-basegpensation by
replacing the SARs, which are accounted for aglifiglawards, with stock options, which are accathfor as
equity awards.

Pursuant to the August 2010 Exchange Offer, 19ddigemployees returned a total of 1,116,030 SARb¢
Company, and those SARs were cancelled on AugygxQit®d in exchange for corresponding grants ofkstgdions
to 18 of those employees to purchase an aggrefjat@%8,737 shares of the Company’s common sto$4 890
per share and one grant of stock options to ondagm@ to purchase 42,293 shares of the Compgazgrhmon stoc
at $11.25 per share.

Pursuant to the November 2010 Exchange Offer, eligible employees returned a total of 925,705 S&Rs
the Company, and those SARs were cancelled on Nose#) 2010 in exchange for corresponding granssamk
options to those employees to purchase an aggrefj@g2,170 shares of the Company’s common sto§2&110
per share and grants of stock options to sevelmositemployees to purchase an aggregate of 198¥a8&s of the
Company’s common stock at $36.19 per share.
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The stock options granted pursuant to the Augus Exchange Offer and the November 2010 Exchanégr
are included in the stock options granted totdhaabove table.

On October 7, 2010, the Company’s president angf eixiecutive officer was granted an award of
performance-based stock options to purchase argagr of 260,000 shares of the Company’s commatk sticthe
purchase price of $11.06 per share. The performbased stock options shall vest and become exbteigahe
Company’s president and chief executive officersdoet experience a termination of service prichtapplicable
dates described in the 2010 Equity Incentive PlackSOption Agreement (the “Agreement”), and if the
performance goal, as set forth in the Agreemerst eeen satisfied. The number of performance-basel! sptions
that ultimately vests depends on the achievemeonhefof three performance metrics: positive cunindadperating
margin; relative operating margin; and relativetooser satisfaction. In accordance with ASC 718 ,Gbenpany
used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model toneate the grant-date fair value per performalpased stock optic
of $4.59.

Stock options outstanding and stock options exabbésat November 30, 2010 are as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted

Weighted Average Weighted Average
Average  Remaining Average  Remaining
Exercise  Contractual Exercise  Contractual

Range of Exercise Price Options Price Life Options Price Life

$ 8.88 to $12.5! 1,501,000 $ 11.1C 9.5¢ 65,26( $ 11.5Z

$12.51 to $15.4 1,828,27! 14.9¢ 7.8¢ 966,12t 14.5¢

$15.45 to $26.2 1,896,61! 20.81 7.2 1,542,49 21.0z

$26.30 to $35.2 1,833,29! 31.01 7.4z 1,833,29 31.01

$35.27 to $69.6 1,739,42. 41.6¢ 7.2z 1,739,42. 41.6¢

$ 8.88 to $69.6: 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 7.81 6,146,600 $ 28.7: 7.2C

The weighted average fair value of stock optiormtgd in 2010 and 2009 was $2.81 and $7.16, ragpkyct
The Company granted no stock options in 2008. @hevalue of each stock option grant is estimatetdhe date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing moali¢h the following assumptions used for grants@1@ and
2009, respectively: a risk-free interest rate &b and 1.9%; an expected volatility factor for tharket price of the
Companys common stock of 61.7% and 64.3%; an expectedelind yield of 2.2% and 1.6%; and an expected
of 3 years and 4 years.

The riskfree interest rate assumption is determined basexbserved interest rates appropriate for the egd
term of the Company’s stock options. The expectaditility factor is based on a combination of thstdrical
volatility of the Company’s common stock and theplied volatility of publicly traded options on ti@ompany’s
stock. The expected dividend yield assumption s&tan the Comparg/history of dividend payouts. The expec
term of employee stock options is estimated usiagphical data.

The Company’s stock-based compensation expendeddtastock option grants was $5.8 million in 2010
$2.6 million in 2009 and $5.0 million in 2008. ABMovember 30, 2010, there was $8.0 million of tota
unrecognized stock-based compensation expensedétatinvested stock option awards. This expensepscted
to be recognized over a weighted average periddéojears.

The Company records proceeds from the exercistook ®ptions as additions to common stock and paid-
capital. Actual tax shortfalls realized for the @eduction from stock option exercises of $2.8iomillin 2010,
$4.1 million in 2009 and $1.1 million in 2008, wereorded as paid-in capital. In 2010, 2009 anB20t
consolidated statement of cash flows reflects $léom, $0 and $0, respectively, of excess tax i¢mssociated
with the exercise of stock options since Decemh@005, in accordance with the cash flow clasdifica
requirements of ASC 718.

Other Stock-Based Awards. From time to time, the Company grants restrict@hmon stock to various
employees as a compensation benefit. During thaatsn periods, the employees are entitled tevantd receive
dividends on such shares. The restrictions imposgdrespect to the shares granted lapse overgmeabthree or
eight years if certain conditions are met.
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Restricted stock transactions are summarized ksl

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

per Share per Share

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of ye 44583 $ 15.4¢ 700,00 $ 15.7C
Granted 51,02: 12.5¢ 445,83: 15.4¢
Vested — — — —
Cancellec (94,377 15.3¢ (700,000 15.7(
Outstanding at end of ye 40247 $  15.0¢ 445,83 $  15.4¢

In 2009, in connection with the settlement of dar&tockholder derivative litigation, the Companfosmer
chairman and chief executive officer relinquish@@,000 shares of restricted common stock.

On July 12, 2007, the Company awarded 54,000 Rediace Shares to its president and chief executficen
subject to the terms of the 1999 Plan, the presiaied chief executive offices’Performance Stock Agreement de
July 12, 2007 and his Employment Agreement datdxiuzey 28, 2007. Depending on the Company’s total
shareholder return over the three-year period gnainNovember 30, 2009 relative to a group of peenpanies,
zero to 150% of the Performance Shares would vesbacome unrestricted. In accordance with ASC 8,
Company used a Monte Carlo simulation model tovextt the grant-date fair value of the Performanweés. The
total grant-date fair value of $2.0 million wasagoized over the requisite service period. On Jan24&, 2010, the
management development and compensation committee €ompany’s board of directors certified the
Companys relative total shareholder return over the penforce period associated with the Performance Shad
determined that the vesting restrictions lapset véspect to 48,492 Performance Shares effectivhairdate.

In 2009 and 2008, the Company granted phantom shanrearious employees. In 2008, the Company also
granted SARs to various employees. Both phantomestend SARs are accounted for as liabilities é th
Company’s consolidated financial statements becausle awards provide for settlement in cash. Eheimipm
share represents the right to receive a cash paysqgenl to the closing price of the Company’s comrstck on
the applicable vesting date. Each SAR represerigghtto receive a cash payment equal to the pesdifference, if
any, between the grant price and the market vdlaesbhare of the Comparsytommon stock on the date of exer:
The phantom shares vest in full at the end of thieze's, while the SARs vest in equal annual insetits over three
years. As of November 30, 2010, there were 268pIédtom shares and 37,517 SARs outstanding. Thene
926,705 phantom shares and 2,292,537 SARs outataadiof November 30, 2009 and 1,099,722 phantamesh
and 2,345,154 SARs outstanding as of November@UB.2The year-over-year decrease in the number of
outstanding SARs in 2010 from 2009 reflects theantwf the August 2010 Exchange Offer and the Ndar201(
Exchange Offer.

The Company recognized total compensation expeis&.® million in 2010, $10.0 million in 2009 and
$7.1 million in 2008 related to restricted commaock, the Performance Shares, phantom shares aRd.SA

Grantor Sock Ownership Trust. On August 27, 1999, the Company established mtgratock ownership tru
(the “Trust”) into which certain shares repurchagse@000 and 1999 were transferred. The Trust, astered by a
third-party trustee, holds and distributes the ehaf common stock acquired to support certain epag
compensation and employee benefit obligations @Qbmpany under its existing stock option, the KpP({an and
other employee benefit plans. The existence of'tlist has no impact on the amount of benefits argensation
that is paid under these plans.

For financial reporting purposes, the Trust is otidated with the Company. Any dividend transacsion
between the Company and the Trust are eliminatequited shares held by the Trust remain valuedeattarket
price at the date of purchase and are shown atuatien to stockholders’ equity in the consolidabedance sheets.
The difference between the Trust share value amdntirket value on the date shares are releasedtfiefirust is
included in paid-in capital. Common stock heldhe Trust is not considered outstanding in the cdatfmns of
earnings (loss) per share. The Trust held 11,082an#8 11,228,951 shares of common stock at NoveB8he2010
and 2009, respectively. The trustee votes shares
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held by the Trust in accordance with voting direesi from eligible employees, as specified in attagseement wit
the trustee.

Note 19. Postretirement Benefits

The Company has a supplemental non-qualified, wedmetirement plan, the KB Home Retirement Plan,
effective as of July 11, 2002, pursuant to whiah @mpany pays supplemental pension benefits taicer
employees upon retirement. The Company’s suppleahaoh-qualified, unfunded retirement plan, the K8me
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, restatedt@fe as of July 12, 2001, was terminated dugig9. In
connection with the plans, the Company has purchesst recovery life insurance on the lives of@ieremployees
Insurance contracts associated with each planeddebly a trust, established as part of the plamspdement and
carry out the provisions of the plans and to fireatie benefits offered under the plans. The teugté owner and
beneficiary of such contracts. The amount of tlseiiance coverage is designed to provide sufficergnues to
cover all costs of the plans if assumptions made asnployment term, mortality experience, polieyréengs and
other factors are realized. The cash surrendeevalthese insurance contracts was $41.4 milliddasember 30,
2010 and $38.3 million at November 30, 2009.

The Company also has an unfunded death benefit flaikKB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, implementad
November 1, 2001, for certain key management enggi®yln connection with the plan, the Company hashasec
cost recovery life insurance on the lives of carainployees. Insurance contracts associated wéthlén are held
by a trust, established as part of the plan to@mgint and carry out the provisions of the plantarfthance the
benefits offered under the plan. The trust is theer and beneficiary of such contracts. The amotitite coverage
is designed to provide sufficient revenues to calecosts of the plan if assumptions made as tplegment term,
mortality experience, policy earnings and othetdecare realized. The cash surrender value oétimssirance
contracts was $13.6 million at November 30, 201 $12.9 million at November 30, 2009.

The net periodic benefit cost of the Company’s masement benefit plans for the year ended Nover8be
2010 was $5.5 million, which included service cadt$1.2 million, interest costs of $2.2 milliormartization of
unrecognized loss of $.3 million, amortization oibp service costs of $1.6 million and other caxt$.2 million.
The net periodic benefit cost of these plans ferythar ended November 30, 2009 was $5.6 millionchvimcluded
service costs of $1.1 million, interest costs o#$aillion, amortization of prior service costs&#.5 million and a
charge of $.8 million due to plan settlements, Iparffset by other income of $.2 million. For thegr ended
November 30, 2008, the net periodic benefit coshese plans was $6.5 million, which included sendosts o
$1.3 million, interest costs of $2.9 million, anipation of prior service costs of $1.6 million aotther costs of
$.7 million. In 2009, in connection with the settlent of certain stockholder derivative litigatithe Company paid
$22.2 million to its former chairman and chief extéee officer under the KB Home Retirement Plan #melKB
Home Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. Tdigliiies related to the postretirement benefihplavere
$44.1 million at November 30, 2010 and $38.3 millai November 30, 2009, and are included in accexpeénses
and other liabilities in the consolidated balanoeeds. For the years ended November 30, 2010 &%) gt
discount rates used for the plans were 5.2% artd 5&spectively.

Benefit payments under the Company’s postretirerhenefit plans are expected to be paid as foll@0%1 —
$.2 million; 2012 — $.3 million; 2013 — $1.0 mdin; 2014 — $1.5 million; 2015 — $1.6 million; anak the five
years ended November 30, 2(— $14.9 million in the aggregate.
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Note 20. Supplemental Disclosure to Consolidated Statements Cash Flows
The following are supplemental disclosures to thiesolidated statements of cash flows (in thousands)

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008
Summary of cash and cash equivalents at the et gfear
Homebuilding $ 904,40. $1,174,71! $1,135,39
Financial service 4,02¢ 3,24¢ 6,11¢
Total $ 908,43( $1,177,96. $1,141,5L
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $ 71647 $ 5589. $ 20,72¢
Income taxes pai 807 7,14t 2,35¢
Income taxes refunde 196,86¢ 242,411 125,22¢
Supplemental disclosure of honcash activit
Increase in inventories in connection with constlizh of joint
ventures $ 72,30 $ 97,55( $ —
Increase in secured debt in connection with codatibn of joint
ventures — 133,05: —
Increase in accounts payable, accrued expensesttadiabilities in
connection with consolidation of joint ventul 38,86 — —
Stock appreciation rights exchanged for stock ot 2,34¢ — —
Reclassification from inventory to operating prdjes — 72,54¢ —
Reclassification from accounts payable to investen
unconsolidated joint ventur — 50,62¢ —
Cost of inventories acquired through seller finag 55,24« 16,24( 90,02¢
Decrease in consolidated inventories not ow (41,626 (45,340 (143,09)

Note 21. Quarterly Results (unaudited)

The following tables present consolidated quartezsults for the Company for the years ended Nowsr80,
2010 and 2009 (in thousands, except per share d@sjoun

First Second Third Fourth
2010
Revenue: $ 26397¢ $ 374,05 $ 501,000 $ 450,96
Gross profit 35,97: 65,67 87,00¢ 84,82
Pretax income (los¢ (54,504 (30,609 (6,697 15,44:
Net income (loss (54,704 (30,709 (1,399 17,44
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per st $ (7)) 3 (40 3 (029) $ .23
2009
Revenue: $ 307,36. $ 38447( $ 45845 $ 674,56
Gross profit 14,78: 6,11¢ 41,77: 3,83:
Pretax los: (59,579 (83,589 (77,049 (90,98))
Net income (loss (58,07) (78,387) (66,04¢) 100,71¢
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per st $ (75 $ (109 $ (87 $ 1.31

Included in gross profit in the first, third andufth quarters of 2010 were pretax, noncash invgritopairment
charges of $6.8 million, $1.4 million and $1.6 maitl, respectively, and pretax, noncash chargekfat option
contract abandonments of $6.5 million, $2.0 millaoxd $1.6 million, respectively.

Included in gross profit in the first, second, théamd fourth quarters of 2009 were pretax, nonaasimtory
impairment charges of $24.4 million, $5.7 millid&22.8 million and $67.9 million, respectively, gmetax, noncas
charges for land option contract abandonmentsdfrfillion, $36.5 million, $1.7 million and $8.8 ridn,
respectively.

92




Table of Contents

The pretax loss in the first, second, third andtfoquarters of 2009 also included charges fort jeemture
impairments of $7.6 million, $7.2 million, $23.2ltian and $.5 million, respectively.

The net loss in the first, second and third quareér2010 included charges of $21.2 million, $1r2iion and
$3.0 million, respectively, to record valuationoalances against net deferred tax assets in aca® deéth
ASC 740. Net income in the fourth quarter of 20d€luded a decrease of $10.4 million in the defetagdasset
valuation allowance. The net loss in the firstgsgtand third quarters of 2009 included charge®2@f7 million,
$31.7 million and $35.5 million, respectively, ®cord valuation allowances against net deferrecsaets in
accordance with ASC 740. The charge in the firstrtgr of 2009 was substantially offset by a redurctf deferred
tax assets due to the forfeiture of certain eqb#ged awards. Net income in the fourth quartel06®2ncluded a
decrease of $196.3 million in the deferred tax tagakiation allowance primarily due to the bendétived from the
Company’s carryback of its 2009 NOLs to offset @&ga it generated in 2004 and 2005 in accordantefederal
tax legislation enacted in that quarter.

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theou
per share amounts for the quarters may not agrbeper share amounts for the year.

Note 22. Supplemental Guarantor Information

The Company’s obligations to pay principal, premjifnany, and interest under its senior notes aaanteed
on a joint and several basis by the Guarantor 8igr&@s. The guarantees are full and unconditiandlthe
Guarantor Subsidiaries are 100% owned by the Coynf@dre Company has determined that separate jifialh€ial
statements of the Guarantor Subsidiaries wouldaahaterial to investors and, accordingly, supplaaidinancial
information for the Guarantor Subsidiaries is présd.

In connection with the Company’s voluntary termioatof the Credit Facility effective March 31, 2Q1be
Released Subsidiaries were released and dischixoyedjuaranteeing any obligations with respecht t
Company’s senior notes. Accordingly, the supplemdiniancial information presented below refletts televant
subsidiaries that were Guarantor Subsidiaries dseofespective periods then ended.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 201
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
Revenue! $ — $ 42991 $ 1,160,07 $ — $1,589,99
Homebuilding:
Revenue: $ — $ 42991° $ 1,151,841 $ — $1,581,76:
Construction and land cos — (360,45() (947,839 —  (1,308,28)
Selling, general and administrative exper (68,149 (48,237) (173,139 — (289,52()
Operating income (los: (68,149 21,23¢ 30,87( — (16,045
Interest incomt 1,77C 30 29¢ — 2,09¢
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized/lossaoly
redemption of dek 20,35! (41,68¢) (46,974 — (68,307
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu — (18€) (6,07]) — (6,257)
Homebuilding pretax los (46,02€) (20,60¢) (21,877 — (88,51))
Financial services pretax incor — — 12,14 — 12,14
Total pretax los: (46,02¢) (20,609 (9,734 — (76,36¢)
Income tax benefi 4,20( 1,90 90C — 7,00C
Equity in net loss of subsidiari (27,547) — — 27,54 —
Net loss $ (69,36 $ (18,709 $ (8,839 $ 27,54: $ (69,369
Year Ended November 30, 200
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
Revenue! $ — $ 1,608,53: $ 216,31 $ — $1,824,85!
Homebuilding:
Revenue: $ — $ 1,608,53. $ 207,88: $ — $1,816,41!
Construction and land cos —  (1,548,67) (201,23)) —  (1,749,91)
Selling, general and administrative exper (71,18) (198,969 (32,879 — (303,029
Operating los: (71,18) (139,109 (26,23() — (236,52()
Interest incomt 5,96t 887 662 — 7,51t
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized/lossaoly
redemption of dek 31,44: (74,94¢) (8,25¢9) — (51,767)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu — (22,840) (26,77%) — (49,61%)
Homebuilding pretax los (33,779 (236,009 (60,607) — (330,38))
Financial services pretax incor — — 19,19¢ — 19,19¢
Total pretax los: (33,779 (236,009 (41,407) — (311,189
Income tax benefi 22,70( 158,80( 27,90( — 209,40(
Equity in net loss of subsidiari (90,71() — — 90,71( —
Net loss $ (101,789 $ (77,209 $ (13,50) $ 90,711 $ (101,789
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Year Ended November 30, 200
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
Revenue: $ — $ 2,331,77. $ 702,16! $ — $ 3,033,930
Homebuilding:
Revenue:! $ — $ 233,77 $ 691,39¢ $ — $3,023,16!
Construction and land cos —  (2,555,91) (758,90) —  (3,314,81)
Selling, general and administrative exper (74,07Y) (296,96 (129,989 — (501,02°)
Goodwill impairment (67,97() — — — (67,970
Operating los! (142,04 (521,10¢ (197,49:) — (860,64)
Interest income 31,66¢ 2,52¢ 42C — 34,61(
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized/lossanly
redemption of dek 56,54 (34,946 (34,567) — (12,96¢)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventu — (10,747) (142,009 — (152,75()
Homebuilding pretax los (53,839 (564,26¢%) (373,64 — (991,749
Financial services pretax incor — — 23,81¢ — 23,81¢
Total pretax los: (53,83 (564,26¢%) (349,82)) — (967,93
Income tax expens (400) (4,600 (3,200 — (8,200
Equity in net loss of subsidiari (921,89) — — 921,89: —
Net loss $ (976,13) $ (568,869 $ (353,02) $ 921,89 $ (976,13)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands)

November 30, 201(
KB Home  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Adjustments Total
Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 770,60 $ 3,61 $ 130,17 $ — $ 904,40:
Restricted cas 88,71« — 26,76% — 115,47
Receivable: 4,20t 6,271 97,57: — 108,04¢
Inventories — 774,10:. 922,61¢ —  1,696,72.
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu — 37,00 68,57¢ — 105,58:
Other asset 68,16¢ 72,80¢ 9,10¢ — 150,07¢
931,68t 893,80: 1,254,81. — 3,080,301
Financial service — — 29,44 — 29,44
Investments in subsidiari 36,27¢ — — (36,279 —
Total asset $ 967,96° $ 893,80: $ 1,284,25 $ (36,279 $3,109,74!
Liabilities and stockholde’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiied $ 124,60¢ $ 150,26( $ 424,85. $ — $ 699,72:
Mortgages and notes payal 1,632,36. 112,36t 30,79¢ — 1,775,52!
1,756,97. 262,62¢ 455,65 — 2,475,25.
Financial service — — 2,62 — 2,62(
Intercompany (1,420,88) 631,17¢ 789,70t — —
Stockholder equity 631,87¢ — 36,27¢ (36,279 631,87¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 967,960 $ 893,80: $ 1,284,25 $ (36,279 $3,109,74

November 30, 200¢
KB Home  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Corporate  Subsidiaries ~ Subsidiaries ~ Adjustments Total

Assets
Homebuilding:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 995,12 $ 56,96¢ $ 122,62 $ — $1,174,71!

Restricted cas 114,29. — — — 114,29:.

Receivable: 191,74° 109,53¢ 36,647 — 337,93(

Inventories — 1,374,61 126,77 — 1,501,39.

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu — 115,40: 4,26¢€ — 119,66¢

Other asset 68,89¢ 85,85¢ (18E) — 154,56t

1,370,05! 1,742,38 290,12¢ — 3,402,56!

Financial service — — 33,424 — 33,42«
Investments in subsidiari 35,95¢ — — (35,95%) —
Total asset $140601 $ 1,742,38 $ 323,55¢ $ (35,955 $3,435,98!
Liabilities and stockholde’ equity
Homebuilding:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheliitiied $ 147,260 $ 588,200 $ 165,87¢ $ — $ 901,34!

Mortgages and notes payal 1,656,40: 163,96 1 — 1,820,371

1,803,66! 752,17( 165,87¢ —  2,721,71!

Financial service — — 7,05(C — 7,05(
Intercompany (1,104,879 990,21( 114,66¢ — —
Stockholder’ equity 707,22¢ — 35,95¢ (35,95%) 707,22¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $1,406,01; $ 1,742,38 $ 323,55! $ (35,95) $3,435,98!
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexvi
(used) by operating activitie
Inventory impairments and land option contract
abandonment
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable!
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities
Other, ne
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventL
Purchases of property and equipment,

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activitie
Change in restricted ca

Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedo lan

sellers and other loai
Issuance of common stock under employee stock |

Excess tax benefit associated with exercise okabptions

Payments of cash dividen
Repurchases of common stc
Intercompany

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Year Ended November 30, 201
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Adjustments

Total

$ (69,369 $ (18,709 $ (883)$%  2754: $ (69,369
— 1,98 17,94 — 19,92
187,54. 3,557 20,21¢ — 211,31
— (99,216 (30,119) —  (129,33)
(16,979 (65,879 (116,359 — (199,209
(8,46)) 1,79¢ 39,36° —  32,70(
92,74C _ (176,47) (77,779 27,54:  (133,96)
— (517) (15,15 — (15,669
(229) (70) (121 — (420)
(229) (587) (15,279 — (16,089
25,57¢ — (26,769 — (1,185
—  (81,04) (20,119 — (101,15
1,851 — — — 1,851
582 — — — 582
(19,229 — — — (19,229
(350) — — — (350)
(325,469 217,24 135,77 (27,549 —
(317,03() 136,19 88,89¢ (27,547 (119,479
(224,519 (40,859 (4,159 —  (269,53)
995,12; 44,47t 138,36: — 1,177,96
$77060: $  3,61¢$ 134,20t $ — $ 908,43
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Year Ended November 30, 200
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries ~ Adjustments Total

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $(101,789 $ (77,209 $ (13,507 $ 90,71C $ (101,789
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexvi
(used) by operating activitie
Inventory impairments and land option contract

abandonment — 153,29: 14,85¢ — 168,14¢
Changes in assets and liabiliti

Receivable: 26,85: 33,21( (24,396 — 35,66

Inventories — 216,55« 216,52: — 433,07!
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities (47,289 (83,316 (122,020 — (252,62

Other, ne: 22,318 24,41 20,70: — 67,42t

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi (99,907  266,94! 92,15¢ 90,71( 349,91.

Cash flows from investing activitie

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventL — (14,517 (5,405 — (29,92
Sales (purchases) of property and equipment (142) (1,497 264 — (1,375
Net cash used by investing activit (142 (16,019 (5,147 — (21,29))
Cash flows from financing activitie
Change in restricted ca 1,112 — — — 1,112
Proceeds from issuance of senior nt 259,73° — — — 259,73
Payment of senior notes issuance ¢ (4,299 — — — (4,299
Repayment of senior and senior subordinated r (453,109 — — — (453,10
Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedc
sellers and other loal — (78,989 — — (78,987
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 3,07¢ — — 3,07
Payments of cash dividen (19,097 — — — (19,09))
Repurchases of common stc (61€) — — — (61€)
Intercompany 321,29¢ (140,049 (90,547) (90,71() —
Net cash provided (used) by financing activi 108,10¢ (219,029 (90,547) (90,710 (292,17))
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 8,06t 31,90: (3,524 — 36,44:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 987,05’ 25,067 129,39: — 1,141,5%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $995,12: $ 56,96¢ $ 125,87( $ — $1,177,96:
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Year Ended November 30, 200
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries ~ Adjustments Total

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss $ (976,13) $ (568,86¢) $ (353,02) $ 921,89 $ (976,13)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexvi
(used) by operating activitie

Provision for deferred income tax 221,30t — — — 221,30t
Inventory impairments and land option contract
abandonment — 469,01 137,77 — 606,79:
Goodwill impairmen 67,97( — — — 67,97(
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable: (92,069) 24,37¢ 7,12¢ — (60,565
Inventories — 409,62¢ 136,22: — 545,85(
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities (20,24¢) (210,319 (52,21¢) — (282,78)
Other, ne: 48,51¢ 19,97¢ 150,38! — 218,88
Net cash provided (used) by operating activi (750,65)  143,81: 26,26 921,89: 341,32.
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventu — 8,98t (68,610 — (59,625
Sales (purchases) of property and equipmen 5,83 (55) 1,291 — 7,07%
Net cash provided (used) by investing activi 5,837 8,93( (67,319 — (52,557)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Change in restricted ca (115,40 — — — (115,409
Repayment of senior subordinated nc (305,819 — — — (305,81

Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedc

sellers and other loal — (12,800 — — (12,800
Issuance of common stock under employee stock | 6,95¢ — — — 6,95¢
Payments of cash dividen (62,967 — — — (62,96
Repurchases of common stc (967) — — — (967)
Intercompany 1,105,631 (186,39 2,652 (921,89 —

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi 627,44 (199,19 2,652 (921,89) (490,99
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (117,377 (46,457) (38,400 —  (202,22)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,104,42! 71,51¢ 167,79: — 1,343,74.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 987,05 $ 25,060 $ 129,39: $ — $1,141,51
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of KB Home as of November 30, 2010 and
2009, and the related consolidated statementsesitipns, stockholdergquity, and cash flows for each of the tt
years in the period ended November 30, 2010. Ttesecial statements are the responsibility of@rmenpan’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighago
(United States). Those standards require that e ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢@sa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated
financial position of KB Home at November 30, 2G#@ 2009, and the consolidated results of its dlpasaand its
cash flows for each of the three years in the plezinxded November 30, 2010, in conformity with Wy&nerally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), KB Home's internal control overdincial reporting as of November 30, 2010, basecriteria
established in Internal Control 4ategrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of tl
Treadway Commission and our report dated Janugr2@®ll expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ganet ¥ LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 31, 2011
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and preoesda ensure that information we are requiredgolase in
the reports we file or submit under the Securitied Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processedmswized and
reported within the time periods specified in tH&CS rules and forms, and accumulated and commtetda
management, including the President and Chief BrexO@fficer (the “Principal Executive Officer”) dnExecutive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (theifieipal Financial Officer”), as appropriate, tocall timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Undesthgervision and with the participation of seniomagement,
including our Principal Executive Officer and Piijpal Financial Officer, we evaluated our disclosooatrols and
procedures, as such term is defined under Rulel%8a) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeofAt934.
Based on this evaluation, our Principal Executiic@r and Principal Financial Officer concludedttour
disclosure controls and procedures were effectvef &dNovember 30, 2010.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(&) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contr@ver Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahcia
reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13ajl&ffler the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934lddthe
supervision and with the participation of seniom@gement, including our Principal Executive Offie@d Principa
Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectivenelssu internal control over financial reporting ledson the
framework inInternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission. Based on the evaluation uthdgframework and applicable SEC rules, our mameegé
concluded that our internal control over financggorting was effective as of November 30, 2010.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered puaticounting firm that audited our consolidatedificial
statements included in this annual report, haei#is report on the effectiveness of our inteouaitrol over
financial reporting as of November 30, 2010.

(b) Report of Independent Registered Public Accting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited KB Home's internal control ovegfiial reporting as of November 30, 2010, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integaframework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the C@8t@ria). KB Home’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the effeatss of internal
control over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management’s Annual Report on Interraitfol
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isetgpress an opinion on the company’s internal cbotrer
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and ¢ipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabsessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethaudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdkepurposes in
accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles. A compsaimgernal control over financial reporting inckesglthose
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to thenteaiance of records that, in reasonable detailrately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of trsetsof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriuat
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepagation of financial statements in accordanch generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeiordgcordanc
with authorizations of management and directothefcompany; and (3) provide reasonable assurageeding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, KB Home maintained, in all mateniaspects, effective internal control over finahoggorting
as of November 30, 2010, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance she&8dflome as of November 30, 2010 and 2009, andetla¢ed
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgtsty, and cash flows for each of the three géarhe period
ended November 30, 2010 and our report dated JaBdaP011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Ganet ¥ LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 31, 2011

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repting

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting during the quarter ended
November 30, 2010 that have materially affectedirerreasonably likely to materially affect, outeimal contro
over financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item for executofficers is set forth under “Executive Officersthé
Registrant” in Part |. Except as set forth beldve dther information called for by this item isanporated by
reference to the “Corporate Governance and Boarttiekdd and the “Proposal 1: Election of Directosgttions of
our Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meetingtfckholders (the “2011 Proxy Statementifich will be filed
with the SEC not later than March 30, 2011 (120sd#yer the end of our fiscal year).

Ethics Policy

We have adopted an Ethics Policy for our directoffsgers (including our principal executive offigerincipal
financial officer and principal accounting officemhd employees. The Ethics Policy is available amveebsite at
http://investor.kbhome.com. Stockholders may retjadsee copy of the Ethics Policy from:

KB Home

Attention: Investor Relatior
10990 Wilshire Boulevar

Los Angeles, California 900z
(310) 234000
investorrelations@kbhome.cc

Within the time period required by the SEC andNesv York Stock Exchange, we will post on our wedbsit
http://investor.kbhome.com any amendment to ourcEtRolicy and any waiver applicable to our primtipxecutivi
officer, principal financial officer or principakaounting officer, or persons performing similandtions, and our
other executive officers or directors.

Corporate Governance Principles

We have adopted Corporate Governance Principleishvene available on our website at
http://investor.kbhome.com. Stockholders may retjadeee copy of the Corporate Governance Prinsifilem the
address, phone number and email address set fuotle ainder “Ethics Policy.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the “Corporate Governance aradd3o
Matters” and the “Executive Compensation” sectiohthe 2011 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorpeby reference to the “Ownership of KB Home Seiasi
section of the 2011 Proxy Statement, except foirtfe@mation required by Item 201(d) of Regulati®+K, which is
provided below.
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The following table presents information as of Naer 30, 2010 with respect to shares of our comshock
that may be issued under our existing compensatams:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of common

Number of shares remaining
common shares to available for future
be issued upor issuance under equit
exercise of Weighted-average compensation plans
outstanding options exercise price of (excluding common
warrants and outstanding options shares reflected in
rights warrants and rights column(a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockho 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 21,70:
Equity compensation plans not approved by
stockholder — — —(1)
Total 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 21,701

(1) Represents our current compensation plan for onremoployee directors that provides for grants dééed
common stock units or stock options. These stodls amd options are described in the “Director Cengation”
section of our 2011 Proxy Statement, which is ipooated herein. Although we may purchase sharesiof
common stock on the open market to satisfy the paymf these stock units and options, to datefdtiem
have been settled in cash. Further, under the mgilegee directors’ current compensation plan, our
non-employee directors cannot receive shares of@mmon stock in satisfaction of their stock unit®ptions
unless and until approved by our stockholders. dfoee, we consider the non-employee directors cosgiéeon
plans as having no available capacity to issueeshafrour common stoc

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the “Corporate Governance aradd3o
Matters” and the “Other Matters” sections of out 20Proxy Statement.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the “Independent Auditor Feeks an
Services” section of our 2011 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) 1. Financial Statements
Reference is made to the index set forth on pag# &8s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Financial statement schedules have been omittealibedhey are not applicable or the required
information is provided in the consolidated final@tatements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

31
3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

47
48

4.9

410

411

4.12

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amentiled, as an exhibit to the Company’s Current
Report orForm &K dated April 7, 2009, is incorporated by refereneesn.

By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 2fd@d, as an exhibit to the CompasyQuarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2007, is pa@ted by reference here
Rights Agreement between the Company and Melloedtor Services LLC, as rights agent, dated
January 22, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the Comjsa@urrent Report on Form 8-K/A dated
January 28, 2009, is incorporated by referenceirne

Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating364% Senior Notes due 2014 among the
Company, the Guarantors and Sun Trust Bank, Atlaateh dated January 28, 2004, filed as
exhibits to the Company’s Registration Statement383-114761 on Form S-4, are incorporated
by reference hereil

Second Supplemental Indenture relating #d 6% Senior Notes due 2011 among the Company,
the Guarantors and Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta, dated 30, 2004, filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Registration Statement No. 333-11922Bam S-4, is incorporated by reference
herein.

Third Supplemental Indenture relating to the ConyfmBenior Notes by and between the
Company, the Guarantors named therein, the Subgi@iaarantor named therein and SunTrust
Bank, dated as of May 1, 2006, filed as an exlibthe Company’s Current Report on

Form ¢-K dated May 3, 2006, is incorporated by referenceihe

Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to the CamgsaSenior Notes by and between the
Company, the Guarantors named therein and U.S. Ratiknal Association, dated as of
November 9, 2006, filed as an exhibit to the Cony’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 13, 2006, is incorporated by referenceihe

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208iating to the Company’s Senior Notes by
and between the Company, the Guarantors, and tie€E, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s
Current Report oForm &K dated August 22, 2007, is incorporated by referéwrein.

Specimen of 5/ 4% Senior Notes due 2014, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Registration
StatemenNo. 33:-114761on Form $-4, is incorporated by reference here

Specimen of /8% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current Report
on Form &K dated December 15, 2004, is incorporated by reéeréerein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ darates establishing the terms of thé/s

% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 15, 2004, is incorporated by referenceiie

Specimen of /4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current Report
on Form &K dated June 2, 2005, is incorporated by referencarh

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ daates establishing the terms of thé/a %
Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit to tben@any’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 2, 2005, is incorporated by reference he

Specimen of 8/ 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit to@benpany’s Current Report
on Form &K dated June 27, 2005, is incorporated by refereapei
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Exhibit
Number Description
4.13 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ farates establishing the terms of thé/6: %
Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit to thenfany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 27, 2005, is incorporated by reference he
4.14 Specimen of %/ 4% Senior Notes due 2018, filed as an exhibit to@benpany’s Current Report
onForm &K dated April 3, 2006, is incorporated by refereneessn.
4.15 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ darates establishing the terms of thé/z
% Senior Notes due 2018, filed as an exhibit toaGbepany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 3, 2006, is incorporated by reference her
4.16 Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, fileahasxhibit to the Company’s Current Report
onForm &K dated July 30, 2009, is incorporated by referergeih.
4.17 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ derates establishing the terms of the 9.100%

Senior Notes due 2017, filed as an exhibit to tbenfany’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
July 30, 2009, is incorporated by reference he

101 Consent Order, Federal Trade Commission DockeilON2954, dated February 12, 1979, filed as
an exhibit to the Company’s Registration StatenNmt33-6471 on Form S-1, is incorporated by
reference hereir

10.2* Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Compemsd#lan, effective as of July 11, 1985,
filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2007 Annugb&®&on Form 10-K, is incorporated by
reference hereir

10.3* Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive BefeCompensation Plan for amounts
earned or vested on or after January 1, 2005, teffeganuary 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the
Compan’s 2008 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.4* KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended atatee on October 2, 2008, filed as an
exhibit to the Compar's 2008 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here
10.5* Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Directors’ DefdrCompensation Plan established

effective as of July 27, 1989, filed as an exhibithe Company’s 2007 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.6 Consent decree, dated July 2, 1991, relating tefaéd rade Commission Consent Order, filed as
an exhibit to the Company’s 2007 Annual Report omi10-K, is incorporated by reference
herein.

10.7* KB Home Performance-Based Incentive Plan for Sedi@mnagement, as amended and restated on

October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibit to the Compag908 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

10.8* Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home Penfamce-Based Incentive Plan for Senior
Management, filed as an exhibit to the Company%518nnual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

10.9* KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estdted on October 2, 2008, filed as an
exhibit to the Compar's 2008 Annual Report on Form-K, is incorporated by reference here

1Q.10 KB Home Directors’ Legacy Program, as amended Jgriial 999, filed as an exhibit to the
Compan’s 1998 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.11 Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home @atjon and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as

Trustee, dated as of August 27, 1999, filed as<aibé to the Company’s 1999 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

10.12* Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive PRamended and restated on October 2,
2008, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 éalrReport on Form 10-K, is incorporated by
reference hereir

10.13* Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement untter Company’s Amended and Restated
1999 Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to the @amy’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended May 31, 2006, is incorporated byreafee herein

10.14* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coryigalimended and Restated 1999 Incentive
Plan, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Quayt&é&port on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
May 31, 20086, is incorporated by reference hei

10.15* KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estdted on October 2, 2008, filed as an
exhibit to the Compar's 2008 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here
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Exhibit

Number

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*

10.30*

10.31*

10.32

1Q0.33

10.34

10.35*

10.36*

Description

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the CompaB89®1 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as an
exhibit to the Compar's 2006 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here
Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under the Cam{sa2001 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as an
exhibit to the Compar's 2006 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here
KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwitspect to deferrals prior to January 1,
2005, effective March 1, 2001, filed as an exhibithe Company’s 2001 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwitspect to deferrals on and after
January 1, 2005, effective January 1, 2009, fiedrmexhibit to the Company’s 2008 Annual
Report orForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andesle restated effective January 1, 2009,
filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 Annugb&&on Form 10-K, is incorporated by
reference hereir

KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an extibithe Company’s 2001 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OrigrPeffective as of January 1, 2009, filed
as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 Annual Reporfform 10-K, is incorporated by reference
herein.

KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restafiectieé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit
to the Compar’s 2008 Annual Report cForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here
Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datedr&ary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to the
Compan’s Current Report oForm &K dated March 6, 2007, is incorporated by refererageih.
Amendment to the Employment Agreement of Jeffreli€zger, dated December 24, 2008, filed
as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 Annual Reporfform 10-K, is incorporated by reference
herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Employnfegreement between the Company and
Jeffrey T. Mezger dated as of February 28, 20054 fas an exhibit to the Company’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated July 18, 2007, is incorporated by refererareih.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendetiRastated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock
option grant to Jeffrey T. Mezger, filed as an &itttio the Company’s Quarterly Report on

Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2007, is incaiaal by reference here

Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certailv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008,
filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current ReporfForm 8-K dated July 15, 2008, is
incorporated by reference here

KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxtulihe Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2008, is incorgaray reference herei

Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfitzd,as an exhibit to the Company’s
Current Report oForm ¢-K dated October 8, 2008, is incorporated by referéecein.

KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgfiled as Attachment C to the Company’s
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for the 2009 AnMesdting of Stockholders, is incorporated
by reference hereil

Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB HanttWachovia Bank, N.A., dated
August 24, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the CompauQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
qguarter ended August 31, 2009, is incorporatecefgrence hereir

Amended and Restated KB Home Non-Employee Dire@orspensation Plan, effective as of
July 9, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the Compar3089 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an dsihio the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated April 2, 2010, is incorporated by refereheeein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibithio the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2010, is pa@ted by reference here

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K&té 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as
an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on F8r dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated by
reference hereir
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.37* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement underkiBeHome 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, fili
as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report om8-K dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated
by reference hereil
10.38* Agreement, dated July 15, 2010, between the CompadyVendy C. Shiba, filed as an exhibit to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended August 31, 2010, is
incorporated by reference here
10.39* Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit to the Company’
Current Report on Formr-K dated October 13, 2010, is incorporated by refegeherein
10.40*t KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option g
to Jeffrey T. Mezgel
12.11 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char
217 Subsidiaries of the Registra
231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.
31.1t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President artiie® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant
Section 302 of thSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2t Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicegBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB
Home Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President artuie® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant tade@06 of theSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2t Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicedBident and Chief Financial Officer of
KB Home Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as fatbPursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended

November 30, 2010, formatted in eXtensible Busimsgorting Language (XBRL): (
Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) Codsatdid Balance Sheets, (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) Consol@hStatements of Cash Flows, and (v) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blafclext. Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation
S-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 he@re deemed not filed or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of @et8 of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subjéabtlity under those section

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent in which executive officers are eligibleotaticipate.
T Document filed with this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

KB Home

By: /sl JEFF J. KAMINSK]

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Date: January 27, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpithe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl JEFFREY T. MEZGEI Director, President and January 27, 20:
Chief Executive Officer
Jeffrey T. Mezge (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl JEFF J. KAMINSK] Executive Vice President and January 27, 20:
Chief Financial Officer
Jeff J. Kaminsk (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER Senior Vice President and January 27, 20:
Chief Accounting Officer
William R. Hollinger (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ STEPHEN F. BOLLENBAC}H Chairman of the Board and Director January 27, 20:

Stephen F. Bollenbac

/sl BARBARA T. ALEXANDER Director January 27, 20:

Barbara T. Alexande

/s/ TIMOTHY W. FINCHEM Director January 27, 20:

Timothy W. Finchen

/sl KENNETH M. JASTROW, | Director January 27, 20:

Kenneth M. Jastrow,

/s/ ROBERT L. JOHNSOI Director January 27, 20:

Robert L. Johnso

/sl MELISSA LORA Director January 27, 20:
Melissa Lore
/sl MICHAEL G. MCCAFFERY Director January 27, 20:

Michael G. McCaffery

/sl LESLIE MOONVES Director January 27, 20:

Leslie Moonves

/sl LUIS G. NOGALES Director January 27, 20:




Luis G. Nogale:
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Page
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31

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amentiled, as an exhibit to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Apri2@09, is incorporated by
reference hereir

By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 2fi@d, as an exhibit to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertpraended February 28,
2007, is incorporated by reference her

Rights Agreement between the Company and Melloedtor Services LLC, as
rights agent, dated January 22, 2009, filed as<hibit to the Companyg Curren
Report on Form 8-K/A dated January 28, 2009, isiiparated by reference
herein.

Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating364% Senior Notes due 2014
among the Company, the Guarantors and Sun Trud, Bdlanta, each dated
January 28, 2004, filed as exhibits to the CompaR€gistration Statement
No. 33:-114761on Form $-4, are incorporated by reference her

Second Supplemental Indenture relating # €% Senior Notes due 2011 amc
the Company, the Guarantors and Sun Trust Bankn#st) dated June 30, 2004,
filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registratidat&ment No. 333-119228 on
Form &4, is incorporated by reference here

Third Supplemental Indenture relating to the ConyfmB8enior Notes by and
between the Company, the Guarantors named théheigubsidiary Guarantor
named therein and SunTrust Bank, dated as of M29Qs, filed as an exhibit to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 8la30086, is incorporated
by reference hereil

Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to the CamggaSenior Notes by and
between the Company, the Guarantors named tharditV&. Bank National
Association, dated as of November 9, 2006, filedrasxhibit to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 13, 2@0@corporated by
reference hereir

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208iating to the Company’s
Senior Notes by and between the Company, the Glossamand the Trustee, file
as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report omR8-K dated August 22,
2007, is incorporated by reference her

Specimen of 5/ 4% Senior Notes due 2014, filed as an exhibit toGbenpanys
Registration Statement No. 333-114761 on Form iS-i#corporated by referen
herein.

Specimen of /8% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpanys
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2@0acorporated by
reference hereir

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ darates establishing the terms of
the 57/ 8% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 15, 2004, isrpaated by reference
herein.

Specimen of /4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpanys
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 2, 200%\dsrporated by reference
herein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ darates establishing the terms of
the 61/ 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current
Report on Form-K dated June 2, 2005, is incorporated by referdcein.
Specimen of /4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbenpanys
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 27, 200 cisrporated by reference
herein.
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4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

101

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

1C.10

1011

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocs'tificates establishing the terms
the 61/ 4% Senior Notes due 2015, filed as an exhibit toGbepany’s Current
Report on Form-K dated June 27, 2005, is incorporated by referéecein.
Specimen of %/ 4% Senior Notes due 2018, filed as an exhibit toGbenpanys
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 3, 2006 nisorporated by reference
herein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocs'tificates establishing the terms
the 71/ 4% Senior Notes due 2018, filed as an exhibit toGbenpany’s Current
Report orForm ¢-K dated April 3, 2006, is incorporated by referenessin.
Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, fileghasxhibit to the Company’
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 30, 200 dsrporated by reference
herein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocs'tificates establishing the terms
the 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, filed as an éxhilthe Company’s Current
Report on Form -K dated July 30, 2009, is incorporated by referdmarein.
Consent Order, Federal Trade Commission DockelON2954, dated

February 12, 1979, filed as an exhibit to the ComyfsaRegistration Statement
No. 36471 on Form -1, is incorporated by reference her¢

Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Compimsdlan, effective as of
July 11, 1985, filed as an exhibit to the Compard087 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive BefeCompensation Plan
for amounts earned or vested on or after Janua2@d5, effective January 1,
2009, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 éalrReport on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended atateel on October 2,
2008, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 déalrReport on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Directors’ DefdrCompensation Plan
established effective as of July 27, 1989, filedwagxhibit to the Company’s
2007 Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

Consent decree, dated July 2, 1991, relating tefa¢d rade Commission
Consent Order, filed as an exhibit to the Compag987 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Performance-Based Incentive Plan for Sedianagement, as
amended and restated on October 2, 2008, filed aslbit to the Company’s
2008 Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home Penfamce-Based Incentive
Plan for Senior Management, filed as an exhibiheoCompany’s 1995 Annual
Report orForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estdted on October 2,
2008, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 éalrReport on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

KB Home Directors’ Legacy Program, as amended Jgral 999, filed as an
exhibit to the Company’s 1998 Annual Report on FAO¥K, is incorporated by
reference hereir

Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home @atjon and Wachovia
Bank, N.A. as Trustee, dated as of August 27, 18ig@l as an exhibit to the
Company’s 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is ipooated by reference
herein.
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10.12*

1C.13~*

10.14*

10.15*

1C.16*

1C.17~*

10.18*

1C.19*

10.20*

1C.21*

10.22*

1C.23*

10.24*

10.25*

1C.26*

10.27*

Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Panpgended and restated
on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibit to the Canys 2008 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement untter Company’s Amended
and Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed as an éxtbilthe Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May BD62is incorporated by
reference hereir

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Comigalmended and
Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibihé Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 8D62is incorporated by
reference hereir

KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estdted on October 2,
2008, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 déalrReport on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the CompaB981 Stock Incentive
Plan, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2006 éadrkReport on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under the Camg{za2001 Stock Incentiv
Plan, filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2006 éadrReport on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwitspect to deferrals
prior to January 1, 2005, effective March 1, 2(0fdéd as an exhibit to the
Company’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is ipooated by reference
herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwéspect to deferrals on
and after January 1, 2005, effective January 192fl@d as an exhibit to the
Company’s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is ipooated by reference
herein.

KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andeawie restated effective
January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the Com{g=R08 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an extibithe Company’s 2001
Annual Report on Form -K, is incorporated by reference here

Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OrlgnReffective as of
January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to the Com{z=R08 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restafiectieé January 1, 2009,
filed as an exhibit to the Company’s 2008 Annugb&®&on Form 10-K, is
incorporated by reference here

Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datelbr&ary 28, 2007, filed as
an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on F8fi dated March 6, 2007,
incorporated by reference here

Amendment to the Employment Agreement of Jeffrei€zger, dated
December 24, 2008, filed as an exhibit to the Camgjsa2008 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Employmfeggreement between the
Company and Jeffrey T. Mezger dated as of Febr2@yR007, filed as an exhi
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datdy 18, 2007, is
incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendatiRestated 1999
Incentive Plan for stock option grant to JeffreyMezger, filed as an exhibit to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgbarter ended August 31,
2007, is incorporated by reference her
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10.28* Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certaiv&ance Payments, adopted
July 10, 2008, filed as an exhibit to the Compargtsrent Report on Form 8-K
dated July 15, 2008, is incorporated by refererereih.

1C.29* KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxtulthe Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter erdlegust 31, 2008, is
incorporated by reference here

1C.30* Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfilad,as an exhibit to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Oct@&008, is incorporated
by reference hereil

1C.31* KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgefiled as Attachment C
the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14Ah®2009 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders, is incorporated by reference e

10.32 Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB HanttWachovia Bank,
N.A., dated August 24, 2009, filed as an exhibitii® Compan’'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Augus2B09, is incorporated by
reference hereir

10.33 Amended and Restated KB Home Non-Employee Dire@orspensation Plan,
effective as of July 9, 2009, filed as an exhibitie Company’s 2009 Annual
Report orForm 1(-K, is incorporated by reference here

1C.34 Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an éxhio the Companyg Curren
Report on Form -K dated April 2, 2010, is incorporated by refereheeein.

10.35* KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibikho the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enféeldruary 28, 2010, is
incorporated by reference here

1C.36* Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the Kénté¢ 2010 Equity
Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to the Compargurrent Report on
Form &K dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated by refererareih.

10.37* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement undeBeHome 2010 Equity
Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to the Compar@urrent Report on Form 8-K
dated July 20, 2010, is incorporated by refererereih.

1C.38* Agreement, dated July 15, 2010, between the CompadyVendy C. Shiba,
filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Répa Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended August 31, 2010, is incorporateceisrence hereir

10.39* Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datetb®er 13, 2010, is
incorporated by reference here

1C.40*t KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance
stock option grant to Jeffrey T. Mezg

12.1% Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Char¢

21t Subsidiaries of the Registral

23t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

311t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President artiie® Executive Officer of
KB Home Pursuant to Section 302 of ‘Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2t Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive ViceeBident and Chief Financial
Officer of KB Home Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President artuie® Executive Officer of
KB Home Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as fatbpursuant to
Section 906 of thSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2% Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicegBident and Chief Financial

Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectiob0,3as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of thSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.
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101 The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repon Form 10-K for the
year ended November 30, 2010, formatted in eXtém8bsiness Reportin
Language (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Statements of @piens, (ii) Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (iii) Consolidated Statements afksiolders’ Equity,

(iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, andNptes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, tagged as blocks of texsurRunt to Rule 406T of
Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files on EitHib1 hereto are deemed not
filed or part of a registration statement or prasps for purposes of Sections 11
or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendezidaemed not filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exgd#ct of 1934, as amended,
and otherwise are not subject to liability underst sections

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent in which executive officers are eligibleotaticipate.
T Document filed with thiForm 1(-K.



EXHIBIT 10.4C

KB HOME
2010 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This Stock Option Agreement (“Agreement”) iage on October 7, 2010 (“Award Date”) by and betwi€B Home, a Delaware
corporation (“Company”), and Jeffrey T. Mezger (‘Ider"). Capitalized terms used in this Agreemertt ant defined herein have the
respective meanings given to them in the KB HomEOZBquity Incentive Plan (“Plan”).

AGREEMENT

1. Subject to the terms of the Plan and thigse&ment, the Company hereby grants to Holder daroffOption”) to purchase from the
Company an aggregate of 260,000 shares of Comnuoak,S#1.00 par value per share, of the Companteapurchase price of $11.06 per
share, the Option to be exercisable as hereinaiftetided. A copy of the Plan is attached heretdamnd available upon request, and is ma
part hereof.

2. The Option shall vest and be exercisabtpifler does not experience a Termination of Serpitor to any of the applicable dates
described in this Section 2 and if, and only i§ trerformance goal, as set forth in this Sectidm®,been satisfied.

The performance goal with respect to@ipéion shall be that the Management DevelopmeniCordpensation Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”) liegermined that one of the following three perfansemetrics has been achieved as of
KB Home’s November 30 fiscal year end in any of 20012, and 2013 (each, a “measurement date”):

(@) _Positive Cumulative Operating Margiihe Company has achieved in any one performaeded(as described in this subsection
(a)) positive cumulative operating margin. Cumudatbperating margin shall be calculated as the aiutime Company’s
consolidated total operating income over a perforzagperiod, excluding the impact of inventory amidtj venture impairments
and land option contract abandonments, dividechbyGompany’s consolidated total revenue over theegaerformance period.
The first performance period shall be from Decenmbhe2010 through November 30, 2011. The seconapaence period shall t
from December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2012.thhd performance period shall be from Decembh&010 through
November 30, 2013. The performance goal for the iiwedll be satisfied in full under this Agreemehtind upon the
Committee’s determination of the achievement in paformance period of the Positive Cumulative @prg Margin
performance metric as described in this subse¢ti

(b) Relative Operating MarginThe Company’s cumulative operating margin ovpedgormance period is greater than the 50th
percentile relative to the cumulative operating giraof the companies included in the global industassification standard
homebuilding sub-industry index on the Award Date;luding companies that produce manufacturedefapricated homes,
companies in bankruptcy, companies that do notdthoimes, and compani




(©

that do not have shares of stock that trade wational securities exchange registered wéltSicurities and Exchange
Commission (or a successor federal agency) (easthcampany, a “GICS Index Comparator Company”)edasn most recent
data available for such GICS Index Comparator Canigsaas of the Company’s November 30 fiscal yedrteat encompasses
four fiscal quarters (with respect to the firstfpemance period), eight fiscal quarters (with redpe the second performance
period) or twelve fiscal quarters (with respecttte third performance period), as the case mayibedch such GICS Index
Comparator Company. If any GICS Index Comparatanfany after the Award Date merges, is acquired oniolved in a
business combination transaction and the survigargpany is a GICS Index Comparator Company, datthéosurviving
company shall be included in evaluating the achiex@ of this performance metric. If any GICS Ind&mparator Company afi
the Award Date merges, is acquired or is involved business combination transaction that resuléy such case in a surviving
company that is not a GICS Index Comparator Companif any GICS Index Comparator Company is ineal\in a “going
private” transaction, files for bankruptcy or abaultich data is no longer publicly available, daiadny such GICS Index
Comparator Company (A) to the extent available emcbmpassing one or more full fiscal quarterly gasifor any such GICS
Index Comparator Company shall be included in eatalg the achievement of this performance metrit wéspect to the
particular performance period in which the applieadent occurs, so long as there is data avaifablat least one such full fiscal
quarterly period ending within twelve months of &l of such performance period; and (B) shalbaoincluded in evaluating tl
achievement of this performance metric for the granfince period or periods (as the case may bewfly the performance
period in which the applicable event occurs; predithat in no event will data for any such GICSetn@€omparator Company tt
was included in evaluating the achievement of leisormance metric in any prior performance peliedetroactively removed
with respect to evaluating the achievement of pleiormance metric with respect to any such prieasurement period. The
performance goal for the Award will be satisfiedul under this Agreement if and upon the Comnaittedetermination of the
achievement in any one performance period of tHatlRe Operating Margin performance metric desatibethis subsection (b);
or

Relative Customer SatisfactiopBased on the most recently released pre-measuntatate results of a survey conducted by an

independent firm, as of any one of the measurextatess, the Company’s average (mean) customeragaicst rating for the
number of markets in which the Company has actparations and which are covered by the surveydsakthe average

(mean) customer satisfaction ratings of the honiders covered in the survey relative to the nundfenarkets in which such
homebuilders have active operations and are coumréle survey; provided that if no such survegniailable at any applicable
measurement date, this item may be measured bytgielata underlying customer satisfaction, asrmeined by the Committee
in its sole discretion. The performance goal fa #ward will be satisfied in full under this Agreent if and upon the
Committe's




determination of the achievement as of argyapplicable measurement date of the Relative @GestSatisfaction performance
metric described in this subsection |

All determinations with respect to the achievenadithe foregoing performance metrics shall be madéhe Committee no later th
ninety days after each measurement c

If any of the three foregoing performance metricdétermined by the Committee to have been achiavek first measurement d¢
one-third of the Option will vest on the date ofatenination and the remaining two-thirds will vé@sequal installments on the
second and third anniversaries of the Award Dalgestito Holder not experiencing a Termination ef\ce prior to any such
vesting dates. If none of the three foregoing pemmce metrics is determined by the Committee @ ieen achieved at the first
measurement date, but at least one is determindtebgommittee to have been achieved at the saveagdurement date, two-thirds
of the Option will vest on the date of determinatand the remaining one-third will vest on thedtanniversary of the Award Date
subject to Holder not experiencing a Terminatiorsefvice prior to any such vesting dates. If nonthe three foregoing performar
metrics is determined by the Committee to have laebireved at the first or at the second measuredsaes, but at least one is
determined by the Committee to have been achievtetahird measurement date, the Option will tiaest in full on the date of
determination subject to Holder not experiencirigeemination of Service prior to such date. If nafi¢he three foregoing
performance metrics is determined by the Commttideave been achieved by the third measurement (@atgp to one half of the
Option will vest if and on the date that the Contegtdetermines that the Relative Operating Margtheathird measurement date is
within at least 60% of its applicable performancetmc goal (as the goal is above thetG@ercentile; 60% of that goal is equal to
above the 3@ percentile); and (ii) up to one-half of the Optiwiill vest if and on the date the Committee deteesithat Relative
Customer Satisfaction at the third measurementidat@hin at least 60% of its applicable perforrmametric goal as described
above, in each case of (i) and (ii) subject to sctbjo Holder not experiencing a Termination ofV&e prior to the third measurem
date and in accordance with the following tabletfvperformance between 60% and 100% of achievemempolated linearly)

Performance Metric Achievement Range of Performance Option Vestin¢
Actual % of Performance Goal Achieved % of Eligible Award
60%-70% 25%-44%
70%-80% 44%-63%
80%-90% 63%-81%
90%-100% 81% to 100%

If none of the three performance metricsescdbed in this Section 2 have been achieved fwehét full or at an applicable
qualifying 60% threshold level at the third measueat date), notwithstanding any other provisiothid Agreement (including
without limitation Section 3 below), the Option #h#ot vest or
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become exercisable and Holder shall immediateffefioall rights, title and interests in and to gigrtion of the Option

3. Without limiting the generality of Sectidrabove, it is understood and agreed that the @pisubject to the following additional terms
and conditions and to the terms and conditionbeflan:

(a) 100% of the Option will vest and be@immediately exercisable, and the performancéigdgection 2 above shall be deemed
satisfied in full, upon Holder’'s Retirement. “Retinent” means severance from employment with theg@myand its Affiliates for any
reason other than a leave of absence, terminaiiotefise, death or disability, at such time astime of Holder’'s age and years of service
with the Company and its Affiliates equals at l&&sbr more, provided that Holder is then at I&&syears of age. The Company shall have
the sole right to determine whether Holder’'s seweggfrom employment constitutes a Retirement.

(b) The Committee, in its discretion, nuieem the performance goal in Section 2 above sabsfied and accelerate the vesting of the
balance, or some lesser portion of the balancieofinvested Option at any time, subject to th&ditions on acceleration of vesting set forth
in the Plan. If and to the extent so acceleratezlgpplicable balance of the Option shall vestfasendate or upon the occurrence of the
condition specified by the Committee.

(c) The Option, to the extent vested)lshany event cease to be exercisable and skpiteeand terminate to the extent not exercised
on the earlier of (1) the close of business on Batd, 2020; (2) ninety calendar days after Hokl@ermination of Service for any reason
other than for cause (as determined by the Compamigetirement; (3) the date specified in subsadi@)(1) of this Section 3 in the event of
Holder’'s Retirement, or (4) five calendar days refite date of Holder’'s Termination of Service if frause (as determined by the Company).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of tleath or disability of Holder, the performance goaabection 2 shall be deemed satisfie:
full, Holder shall be credited with one additiogalar of service vesting, and the Option (to therixvested based on Holder’s service and the
additional credited year of service vesting attthee of Holder’s disability or death) will termireabn the earlier of (xX) one year from the date
of disability or death or (y) the date specifiedsirbsection(c)(1) of this Section 3.

(d) The Option may not be sold, pledgessigned or transferred in any manner other thaeasitted by the Plan.

(e) Holder shall have none of the righfta stockholder of the Company with respect taeshaf Common Stock subject to the Option
unless and until Holder becomes the record ownsuch shares following exercise of the Option icordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

4. Any exercise of the vested Option shalitzgle by giving the Company written or electroniticeof exercise specifying the number of
shares to be purchased. The notice of exercisklshatcompanied by any additional documents requinder the Plan and by full payment
of the purchase price and any applicable withhgldaxes. Payment may be made by (a) cash or cfi®cshares of Common Stock ownec
Holder (which are not the subject of any pledgetber security interest) having a Fair Market Valag defined in the Plan) on the date of
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delivery equal to the aggregate payment require;)alelivery of a written or electronic noticeattHolder has placed a market sell order
with a broker with respect to shares then issuapt: exercise of the Option, and that the broksrideen directed to pay a sufficient portion
of the net proceeds of the sale to the Compangtigfaction of the aggregate payment requireddeg bs payment of such net proceeds is
then made to the Company upon settlement of suely gaovided that Holder may elect to have the @any withhold shares otherwise
issuable upon exercise of the Option in satisfaatibany applicable tax withholding obligation.

5. Neither the execution and delivery heramfthe granting of the Option shall confer upond#aslany right to be employed or engaged in
any capacity by the Company or any Affiliate, octmtinue in such employment or engagement, of sttatfere with or restrict in any way
the rights of the Company and any Affiliate, whitdhts are hereby expressly reserved, to dischdajder at any time.

6. The Option is subject to all of the termd @onditions of the Plan, including without limtitan, any terms, rules, or determinations made
by the Committee pursuant to its authority under®han and Plan provisions on adjustment of awaais;transferability, satisfaction of tax
requirements and compliance with other laws.

7. The Company may impose such restrictioosditions or limitations as it determines approjgrias to the timing and manner of any
resales by Holder or other subsequent transfetsabger of any shares of Common Stock issued to &fadd a result of the exercise of this
Option, including without limitation (a) restrictie under an insider trading or other Company pplicyrestrictions designed to delay and/or
coordinate the timing and manner of sales by Hadaher others following a public offering of the Coamy’s stock, (c) stock ownership or
holding requirements and (d) restrictions as toue of a specified brokerage firm for such resatesther transfers.

8. Any notice given hereunder to the Compdmgllde addressed to the Company at its corpoeddduarters, attention Senior Vice
President, Human Resources, and any notice giveuheer to Holder shall be addressed to Holderoddéd's address as shown on the
records of the Company.

9. Holder agrees to be bound by the termscanditions of this Agreement and of the Plan arad it the event of any conflict in terms
between this Agreement and the terms of the Phanterms of the Plan shall prevail.

10. This Agreement will be construed, admenstl and enforced in accordance with the lawseStiate of California. This Agreement
and the grant of the Option evidenced hereby $igafiubject to rescission by the Company if an exelcariginal of this Agreement is not
received by the Company within four weeks of theatavDate.

11. The Option is intended to be exempt framrequirements of Section 409A of the Code, arsdAbreement shall be interpreted in a
manner consistent with such intent. Notwithstandingthing to the contrary in the Plan or in thiségment, Holder agrees that Holder shall
be solely responsible for the satisfaction of aliets, interest and penalties that may be imposétbtder or for Holder’s account in
connection with the Option (including without limtton any taxes, interest and penalties under @edf)9A), and neither the Company nor
its Affiliates shall have any obligation to reimber indemnify or otherwise hold Holder harmlessfrany or all of such taxes, interest or
penalties.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its dulheorized officer, and Holder have executed thise®gnent as of the day and year
first above written.

KB HOME
By: /S/ THOMAS F. NORTON

Thomas F. Nortor
Senior Vice President, Human Resour:

HOLDER:

By: /S/JEFFREY T. MEZGER
Jeffrey T. Mezger

Date: 11-4-2010



KB HOME
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(In Thousands, Except Ratios)

EXHIBIT 12.1

Years Ended November 30,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Earnings
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxe $(76,36¢) $(311,18) $(967,93) $(1,460,77) $571,84
Add:
Interest incurret 122,23( 119,60: 156,40:. 199,55( 237,80:
Amortization of premiums and discour
related to dek 2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,06z 2,47¢ 2,441
Portion of rent expense considered to be
interest 4,65¢ 7,507 16,50: 28,46 27,651
Amortization of previously capitalized
interest 95,23¢ 138,17¢ 129,90: 171,49t 143,24¢
Distribution of earnings from
unconsolidated joint ventures, net of
equity in income (loss 19,63¢ 43,26: 157,39: 171,57t 15,16«
Deduct:
Interest capitalize (53,927 (67,839 (143,436 (186,56() (221,074
Income (loss) as adjust $113,62( $ (68,887 $(649,100) $(1,073,76) $ 777,08!
Fixed charges
Interest incurret $122,23( $119,60: $156,40: $ 199,55( $ 237,80:
Amortization of premiums and discounts
related to dek 2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,06z 2,47¢ 2,441
Portion of rent expense considered to be
interest 4,65¢ 7,507 16,50 28,46¢ 27,65
$129,03° $128,69! $17496° $ 230,49. $267,89¢
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg — — — — 2.9C
Coverage deficiency (i $(15,417) $(197,58) $(824,07) $(1,304,25) $ —

The ratios of earnings to fixed charges are contpatea consolidated basis excluding our Frenclodtatued

operations for the years ended November 30, 20672666.

(a) Earnings for the years ended November 30, 201,208 and 2007 were insufficient to cover fixbdiges
for the periods by $15.4 million, $197.6 millior82%.1 million and $1.30 billion, respective



KB HOME AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21

The following subsidiaries* of KB Home were inclutlim the November 30, 2010 consolidated financial

statements:

Name of Company/Jurisdiction dhcorporation or Formation

Percentage o
Voting Securities

Owned by

the Registrant

ora

Subsidiary of
the Registrant

Arizona

KB HOME Phoenix Inc.

KB HOME Sales— Phoenix Inc.
KB HOME Sales— Tucson Inc.
KB HOME Tucson Inc.

California
KB HOME Coastal Inc.

KB HOME Greater Los Angeles Inc
KB HOME Insurance Agency Inc

KB HOME Sacramento Inc
KB HOME South Bay Inc.

Colorado
KB HOME Colorado Inc.

Delaware

KB HOME Charlotte Inc

KB HOME DelMarVa LLC

KB HOME Florida LLC

KB HOME Fort Myers LLC
KB HOME Gold Coast LLC
KB HOME Gulf Coast Inc.

KB HOME Jacksonville LLC
KB HOME Maryland LLC

KB HOME North Carolina Inc
KB HOME Orlando LLC

KB HOME Raleigl-Durham Inc.
KB HOME South Carolina Inc
KB HOME Tampa LLC

KB HOME Treasure Coast LL!
KB HOME Virginia Inc.

KB HOME Wisconsin LLC

KB Urban Inc.

Florida
KB HOME Title Services Inc.

[llinois
KB HOME Mortgage Compan

10C
10C
10C
10C

10C
10C
10C
10C
10C

10C

10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C
10C

10C

10C




Percentage of
Voting Securities

Owned by
the Registrant
ora
Subsidiary of
Name of Company/Jurisdiction dhcorporation or Formation the Registrant
Nevada
KB HOME Nevada Inc. 10C
KB HOME Reno Inc. 10C
Texas
KB HOME Lone Star Inc 10C
KBSA Inc. 10C

* Certain subsidiaries have been omitted from this Tihese subsidiaries, when considered in thecggtg as a
single subsidiary, do not constitute a significaubsidiary as defined in Rul-02(u) ofRegulation -X.



EXHIBIT 23
KB HOME AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-15343XB Home,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-129278&ppeng to the KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan,
the KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, the KB HdPeeformance-Based Incentive Plan for Senior
Management, the KB Home Non-Employee Directors ISRlan, the KB Home 401(k) Savings Plan, the
KB Home 1999 Incentive Plan, the KB Home 2001 Stimdentive Plan, certain stock grants and the eesal
of certain shares by officers of the Compe

(3) Registration Stateme(Form -8 No. 33:-168179)pertaining to the KB Home 401(k) Savings Plan,
(4) Registration Stateme(Form -8 No. 33:-168181)pertaining to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentiver?

of our reports dated January 31, 2011 with resjoeitte consolidated financial statements of KB Hparel the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting of KB Home, included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended November 30, 2010.

Ganet ¥ LLP

Los Angeles, California
January 31, 201



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jeffrey T. Mezger, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual reportForm 1(-K of KB Home;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statemmade, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading wittect$p the period covered by this rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included ifsth
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andcas
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the peripdssented in this repo

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintainin
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&hge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisi@ngare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepare

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supam, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principle

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveradgbe disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materiffibgted, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registran’s board of directors (or persons performing thewaedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably kil adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiakinétion; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that itwes management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registre’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated January 27, 2011

/sl JEFFREY T. MEZGEF

Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jeff J. Kaminski, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual reportForm 1(-K of KB Home;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factoit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statemmade, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading wittect$p the period covered by this rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statémend other financial information included ifsth
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andcas
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the peripdssented in this repo

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahare responsible for establishing and maintainin
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&hge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))

for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisi@ngare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepare

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supam, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principle

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveradgbe disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materiffibgted, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registran’s board of directors (or persons performing thewaedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably kil adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiakinétion; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that itwes management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registre’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated January 27, 2011

/sl JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB HomegttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
November 30, 2010 (tt*Report”), |, Jeffrey T. Mezger, President and CGlitgecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, agptetbpursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxewf 2002,

that to the best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremteof section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshzamge

Act of 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the findnmbadition

and results of operations of the Compse

/sl JEFFREY T. MEZGEF

Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated January 27, 2011




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB HomegttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
November 30, 2010 (tt*Report”), 1, Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive Vice Présnt and Chief Financial Officer of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section01.3% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sask@mnley Act
of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremteof section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitieshzamge

Act of 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Reportljapresents, in all material respects, the findnmbadition

and results of operations of the Compse

/sl JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

Dated January 27, 2011




